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TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON ELECTRONIC MEETING
THURSDAY, JUNE 16, 2022 - 5:00 P.M.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81052392824?pwd=VUItejFRbjdQK1YORTcyYWUzTHVCdz09

Meeting ID: 810 5239 2824

Passcode: 018492

One tap mobile
+16473744685,,81052392824+#,,,,¥018492# Canada
+16475580588,,81052392824+#,,,,018492# Canada

Dial by your location
+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 780 666 0144 Canada
+1 204 272 7920 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada

Meeting ID: 810 5239 2824

Passcode: 018492

AGENDA
1. Call to Order
2. Land Acknowledgement Statement

We will begin the meeting by sharing the Land Acknowledgement Statement:

We would like to begin by acknowledging that Melancthon Township recognizes
the ancestral lands and treaty territories of the Tionontati (Petun/Wyandot(te)),
Haudenosaunee (Six Nations), and Anishinaabe Peoples. The Township of
Melancthon resides within the lands named under the Haldimand Deed of 1784
and the Lake Simcoe-Nottawasaga Treaty (Treaty 18).

These territories upon which we live and learn, are steeped in rich Indigenous
history and traditions. It is with this statement that we declare to honour and
respect the past and present connection of Indigenous peoples with this land, its
waterways and resources.

3. Announcements
4, Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda
5. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof

6. Approval of Draft Minutes — June 2, 2022


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81052392824?pwd=VUltejFRbjdQK1Y0RTcyYWUzTHVCdz09

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Business Arising from Minutes
Point of Privilege or Personal Privilege

Public Question Period (Please visit our website under Agendas and Minutes
for information on Public Question Period)

Public Works

1. Report from Kaitlin Chessell, Secretary Roads Sub-Committee,
Recommendations from June 7, 2022 Meeting

2. Motion to release Tender Security Deposit Cheques to Graham Bros.

Construction Limited — Tender 01-2021 and 02-2021
3. Motion to release Tender Security Deposit Cheque to The Murray Group
Limited — Tender 03-2021

4. Other

Planning

1. Applications to Permit
2. Other

Climate Change Initiatives
Police Services Board
County Council Update
Correspondence

Board & Committee Minutes

1. Shelburne & District Fire Board — April 5, 2022

2. NVCA May 2022 Board Meeting Highlights

3. Grand River Conservation Authority — May 27, 2022

Items for Information Purposes

Town of Shelburne Application for Consent and Minor Variance

Town of Aurora Resolution regarding Bill C-233 “Keira’s Law”

Integrity Commissioner Guy Giorno Inquiry Report, Wallace V. Mercer

Melancthon Day — June 25, 2022

Monitoring Plan for Melancthon Pit #2 and Future Bonnefield Property Pit

Expansion

Town of Grand Valley Housekeeping ZBA regarding Sea Containers

Letter from Minister of Rural Economic Development and Rural Broadband

Strategy regarding Federal Funding for Rural Communities

8.  Town of Shelburne Notices of Decision for 246 Irwin Street and 250 Main
Street East

9. Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd., Site Plan Amendment Approval

10. Township of Mulmur Resolution regarding Ontario Climate Caucus

11. Shelburne & District Fire Board Resolution regarding Town of Shelburne’s
Revised Land Acknowledgement

12. Shelburne & District Fire Board Resolution regarding Fire Chief's 2021
Annual Report

13. Environmental Sustainability Day Climate Action In Dufferin Presentation
(Councillor Mercer)

14. Ontario’s first Pollinator Highways Meeting — September 15, 2022
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

General Business

1.

Notice of Intent to Pass By-law
1. By-law to Authorize a Boundary Road Agreement between
the Township of Southgate and the Township of Melancthon
New/Other Business/Additions
1. NEC Update on 140 & 142 Mill Lane (Councillor Mercer)
2. Additions
Unfinished Business
1. Notice of Intent to Pass By-law
1. By-law to Prescribe Lower Rates of Speed on 4t Line NE
from 5t Line to Dufferin County Road 9 — Third Reading
2. Email from Kristine Pedicone regarding Melancthon Road
Speeds
2. In Person Council meetings
3. Township Diversity Policy
4 Headwaters Farm Fresh Guide — 2022 Financial Contribution

Delegations

1.

5:20 p.m. - Derek Richmond, CUPW, regarding support our delivering
community power resolution to expand service at Canada Post in Rural
Communities

5:30 p.m. — Murray Short, RLB, Auditor, regarding the Presentation of
the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

6:00 p.m. — Terry Ward, Inspector — Detachment Commander, Dufferin
OPP (invited by Council) regarding the reduction in the speed limit on 4t
Line NE and the challenges that may be presented as a result

6:15 p.m. — Notice of Public Meeting Regarding a Zoning By-law
Amendment on Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 1 O.S to modify the Open
Space Recreation (0S1) — Samuel E Young Golf 516423 County Road 124
6:20 p.m. — Notice of Public Meeting Regarding a Zoning By-law
Amendment on Parts 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, Plan 7R-6754 located in Part of
Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 O.S. together with other lands located in Part
of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 0.S. 2577791 Ontario Inc — Ghotra

Third Reading of By-laws

Notice of Motion

Confirmation By-law

Adjournment and Date of Next Meeting — Thursday, July 14, 2022 -
5:00 p.m.

On Sites

Correspondence on File at the Clerk’s Office



e The Corporation of
Y THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
A 157101 Hwy. 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6

Telephone - (519) 925-5525

Fax No. - (519) 925-1110

Website: www.melancthontownship.ca
Email:info@melancthontownship.ca

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON

MEMORANDUM
TO: MAYOR WHITE AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL
FROM: KAITLIN CHESSELL, SECRETARY ROADS SUB-COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATIONS FROM ROADS SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING
JUNE 7, 2022

DATE: JUNE 9, 2022

8.4 General Business; Sign to be installed on River Road with number of
motorcycles accidents on the sign

The Roads Sub-Committee had a discussion regarding the placement of the “Motorcycle
Accident Sign” and “Speed Kills Signs” as we want to place them in strategic spots so
that drivers will see them. The Committee decided that there are a couple different
spots in Horning'’s Mills that the “Motorcycle Accident Sign” could be impactful and it
would be helpful to have a second sign.

Recommendation:

The Roads Sub-Committee recommends to Council that we order a 2" Motorcycle
Accident Sign.

8.4 General Business; Other/Addition
177 Main Street, Stair Renovations Email
The Roads Sub-Committee discusses that the stairs appear to be on the road allowance,

but they should be treated the same as a driveway culvert, the owner installs it and it is
the responsibility of the land owner to maintain this. Staff advised that they have looked

et (0. |
JUN 16 2022



in the property file and no agreement between the Township and the Landowner for
the installation of the stairs was in the file.

Recommendation:

The Roads Sub-Committee recommends to Council that we advise the property owner
that we will not be taking responsibility for the stairs at 177 Main Street, Melancthon
that are on the road allowance.
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APPLICATIONS TO PERMIT FOR APPROVAL
June 16, 2022 COUNCIL MEETING

PROPERTY OWNER PROPERTY DESCRIPTION SIZE OF BUILDING TYPE OF STRUCTURE USE OF BUILDING DOLLAR VALUE D.C.'s COMMENTS
Amsey Bauman 116116 2nd Line SW 297 m2 ( 3197 sq ft) Farm Shed Agricultural Shed $90,000 NO
Applicant: Aaron Bauman Part Lot 302, Con 3 SW
Amsey Bauman 803137 220 Sideroad 218 m2 (2347 sq ft) Dwelling Single Family Dwelling $400,000 NO currently has house
Applicant: Tobias Martin Part Lot 37, Con 4 NE
James MacDonald 19 Oldfield Court 15 m2 (161 sq ft) Deck Deck $4000- $5000 NO
Lot 10, Plan 134
Amsey Bauman 116116 2nd Line SW 1538.66 m2 (16562 sq ft) Horse-cattle barn Barn $450,000 NO
Applicant: Aaron Bauman Pt Lot 302, Con 3 SW
Amsey Bauman 116116 2nd Line SW 10 m2 (108 sq ft) feed bins silos and feed bin $90,000 NO
Applicant: Aaron Bauman Pt Lot 302, Con 3 SW
Windy Stream - Alvin Martin 098311 4th Line SW 44,59 m2 (480sq ft) farm shed agricultural storage $15,000 NO
Applicant: Aaron Bauman Lot 245-246, Con 4 SW
Dunburne - Josiah Bauman 398247 County Road 21 23.61 m2 (254 sq ft) accessory building agricultural accessory building $15,000 NO
Applicant: Aaron Bauman W Pt Lot 24, Con 4 OS
Windy Stream Farm - Alvin Martin 098311 4th Line SW 457.23 m2 (4922 sq ft) Barn repair and Addition horse barn and feed storage 485,000 NO
Applicant: Aaron Bauman Lot 245-246, Con 4 SW
Greg McKibbon 556540 Mulmur Melancthon Townline 80 m2 (861 sq ft) storage garage storage $40,000 NO

Part Lot 10, Con 1 OS Part 6
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SHELBURNE & DISTRICT FIRE BOARD

April 5, 2022

The Shelburne & District Fire Department Board of Management meeting was held
electronically (Zoom ID 838 5423 8403) on the above mentioned date at 7:00 P.M.

Present
As per attendance record.

1. Opening of Meeting

1.1 Chair, Walter Benotto, called meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

2. Additions or Deletions

None.

3. Approval of Agenda
3.1 Resolution # 1

Moved by J. Horner — Seconded by E. Hawkins

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Board of Management approves the agenda as presented.
Carried

4. Approval of Minutes

4.1 Resolution # 2

Moved by S. Hall — Seconded by G. Little

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Board of Management adopt the minutes under the date of March 1, 2022 as
circulated.
Carried

B cmm# |
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5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

Pecuniary Interest

No pecuniary interest declared.

Public Question Period

No questions.

Delegations / Deputations

Michelle Adams, CPA, CA, Senior Accountant, RLB
Resolution # 3

Moved by M. Mercer — Seconded by G. Little

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
Leave be given to Michelle Adams, Senior Accountant, from RLB to address the
Board.

Carried

Michelle Adams, Senior Accountant, RLB reviewed the draft Financial Statements
with the Board.

Unfinished Business

None.
New Business
Draft Financial Statements, RLB
Resolution # 4

Moved by S. Hall — Seconded by J. Horner

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Shelburne & District Fire Board accept and approve the Draft Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year end of December 31, 2021 prepared and
presented by RLB.

AND THAT the Secretary-Treasurer be authorized to sign the representation letter.
Carried



9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

11.
11.1
12.

12.1

2021 Operating Budget Surplus
Resolution # 5

Moved by J. Horner — Seconded by S. Hall

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
The 2021 surplus of $90,317.91, be transferred to the capital account and operating
reserve account. The amount of $35,000.00 to an operating reserve account and

the balance of $55,317.91 to the capital account.
Carried

Chief’s Report

Monthly Reports (March 2022)

There was a total of 21 incidents for the month of March.

Update from the Fire Chief

The Chief advised that there were 10 inspections completed and 1 in progress.
The Chief participated in the Shelburne Public Library’s “Community Reader”
program. The Chief reviewed 2 site plans for the Town of Shelburne planning
department and reviewed the Town of Mono’s proposed fireworks by-law.

Future Business:

2021 Annual Report.

Accounts & Payroll — February 2022

Resolution # 6

Moved by E. Hawkins — Seconded by S. Hall

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The bills and accounts in the amount of $25,392.16 for the period of
February 25, 2022 to March 30, 2022 as presented and attached be approved for
payment.

Carried



14. Confirming and Adjournment
14.1 Resolution#7

Moved by M. Mercer — Seconded by S. Hall

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

All actions of the Board Members and Officers of the Shelburne and District Fire

Board of Management, with respect to every matter addressed and/or adopted by

the Board on the above date are hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed; And each

motion, resolution and other actions taken by the Board Members and Officers at

the meeting held on the above date are hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed.
Carried

14.2 Resolution # 8

Moved by S. Hall - Seconded by J. Horner

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Board of Management do now adjourn at 7:43 pm to meet again on
June 7, 2022 at 7:00 pm or at the call of the Chair.
Carried

Respectfully submitted by: Approved:

Nicole Hill Walter Benotto
Secretary-Treasurer Chairperson



SHELBURNE & DISTRICT FIRE BOARD MEMBERS

Meeting Attendance Record Under Date of April 5, 2022

Municipality / Member Present Absent
Township of Amaranth
Heather Foster X
Gail Little X
Town of Mono
Sharon Martin X
Fred Nix X
Township of Melancthon
Vacant
Margaret Mercer X
Town of Shelburne
Walter Benotto X
Shane Hall X
Township of Mulmur
Earl Hawkins X
Janet Horner X
Staff
Ralph Snyder — Fire Chief X
Jeff Clayton — Deputy Chief X

Nicole Hill — Sec/Treas.




NVCA May 2022 Board Meeting Highlights
Next Meeting: June 24, 2022, held virtually

For the full meeting agenda including documents and reports, visit NVCA’s website.

Restoring the Nottawasaga
Watershed - a documentary

Fred Dobbs, Manager, Stewardship Services
shared a documentary showcasing the
importance of sports fishing in our watershed
municipalities, and how NVCA and its partners
are working to restore the Nottawasaga River to
maintain and enhance these unique recreational
opportunities.

View the documentary here

Change in service provider for
conservation area remote parking
payment

NVCA will be moving to HotSpot as the new
remote parking payment system starting on
June 8, 2022. Staff were recently notified by
the current service provider that remote
payment services will no longer be offered.

Staff will be waiving parking fees during
Customer Appreciation Week (June 1 - 7,
2022) to thank NVCA patrons for their
continued support.

Update on Phase 2 Changes to the
Conservation Authorities Act

The Ministry of Environment, Conservation and
Parks (MECP) is moving forward with Phase 2 of
the changes to the Conservation Authorities Act
(CAA) to improve the governance, oversight,
transparency and accountability of CA
operations.

The regulations and policy build on current CA
budgetary practices with updates to align the
levy apportionment methods and budget
processes with the new funding framework and
categories of programs and services established

by recent amendments to the CAA and first
phase of regulations. The changes will ensure a
smooth transition by January 1, 2024 of CAs to
the new funding framework and three
categories of programs and services.

Potential Appointment of Agricultural
Representative

Changes to the CAA enabled the Minister of
MECP to appoint a member from the
agricultural sector to each conservation
authority Board of Directors.

On February 8, 2022 conservation authorities
were notified that the Ministry had posted job
advertisements on the Public Appointments
Secretariat website for an agricultural sector
position for each conservation authority.

NVCA’s Administrative By-law will be updated
to reflect the Minister’s ability to appoint an
agricultural sector representative. The new
member will be subject to NVCA’s
Administrative Bylaw including the Code of
Conduct and Conflict of Interest policies.

Planning Services Review

As noted in a March 2022 staff report, between
2018 and 2021, NVCA'’s Planning Services team
has seen a 75% increase in workload, placing
tremendous pressure on staff to meet provincial
and municipal review timelines and has resulted
in reduced efficiency in recognizing user fee
revenues.

In addition, the NVCA Board of Directors
approved housekeeping changes to planning
and permit review fees in December 2021. It
was anticipated that a more in depth review of
fees would occur in 2022/23.

NVCA will examine current fees and
opportunities to expand the level of service

8195 8t Line, Utopia, ON, LOM 1T0 ® 705-424-1479 ® admin@nvca.on.ca

www.nvca.on.ca
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meet the needs and expectations of our
partners, as well as be more consistent with
other conservation authorities. This increased
level of service is expected to potentially
include the addition of new technical staff

An RFP has been issued to retain consulting
services to review NVCA’s Planning Services
department program rates and fees.

Natural Heritage Program Strategy

NVCA staff released the Natural Heritage
Program Strategy. The document outlines the
program’s historical work completed and
outlines the recommended directions in support
of the NVCA's Integrated Watershed
Management Plan, Strategic Plan and Business
Plan.

Building on the strength of the program
accomplishments to date while recognizing the
value of current natural heritage monitoring
and planning approaches and support the
integrated watershed management framework,
the core program areas include: development
of a watershed-wide natural heritage system,
wetland evaluation and mapping, monitoring,
natural heritage inventories, and program
communications.

These program components provide supports to
the NVCA'’s vision of “a sustainable watershed
that is resilient to the effects of climate change,
urban growth and other stressors and provides
for safe, healthy and prosperous people and
communities.”

8195 8™ Line, Utopia, ON, LOM 1TO e 705-424-1479 e admin@nvca.on.ca
WWW.Nnvca.on.ca



Grand River Conservation Authority
Summary of the General Membership General Meeting — May 27, 2022

To GRCA/GRCF Boards and Grand River watershed municipalities - Please share as appropriate.

Action Items
The Board approved the resolutions in the following reports as presented in the agenda:
o GM-05-22-46 - Human Resources Policies Update
o GM-05-22-50 - Financial Summary
+ GM-05-22-43 - Provincial Offences Act Officer Designation - Section 29 Conservation Areas

Information Items
The Board received the following reports as information:

GM-05-22-44 - Conservation Authorities Act Amendments - Overview of Phase 2 Regulations
GM-05-22-44 - Return to In-Person Board Meetings — Options

GM-05-22-42 - Cash and Investment Status

GM-05-22-47 - Pheasant Hunt Program - Third Party Agreement

GM-05-22-49 - Natural Heritage Program Update

GM-05-22-48 - Current Watershed Conditions

Correspondence

The Board received the following correspondence:

« Lauren Tonelli, on behalf of the Ontario Federation of Anglers and Hunters and the North
American Versatile Hunting Dogs Association — Ontario Grand River Chapter re: Pheasant
Hunting Program

Source Protection Authority
The General Membership of the GRCA also acts as the Source Protection Authority Board. No meeting
of the Source Protection Authority was held.

For full information, please refer to the May 27 Agenda Package. Complete agenda packages and minutes of past
meetings can be viewed on our online calendar. The minutes of this meeting will be posted on our online calendar
following the next meeting of the General Membership scheduled on June 24, 2022.

You are receiving this email as a GRCA board member, GRCF board member, or a Grand River watershed
member municipality. If you do not wish to receive this monthly summary, please respond to this email with the
word ‘unsubscribe’.
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TOWN OF SHELBURNE
Planning & Development Department

Snmﬁpu.na-‘u/rm

HELBURNE

ONTARIO, CANADA

May 27t 2022

CIRCULATED BY E-MAILTO:

e County of Dufferin e Enbridge
o MTO o Bell
e NVCA ¢ Rogers Communication
e Township of Amaranth e Shelburne EDC
e Township of Melancthon e Engineering
¢ School Boards e Legal
e (Canada Post o Fire Dept
e OPG e Police
e Hydro One e Council
¢ Public Works

APPLICATIONS FOR CONSENT & MINOR VARIANCE

FILE NOS: B22/02 & A22/06
PROJECTS: 307 VICTORIA STREET & 105 MORDEN DRIVE

1) Application for Consent B22/02 — Anthony Matthew and Kristy Savausky have submitted an application
for consent for a property located at 307 Victoria Street. The subject property is legally described as Part
of Lot 1, Plan 8A, Block 18, Parts 1 & 2 on Plan 7R-1141. The property has an existing total area of
approximately 832 square metres with approximately 16 metres of frontage on Victoria Street and 45
metres of flankage on Centre Street. The purpose and effect of the application is to sever a portion of the
property to have a land area of 392 square metres to create a new residential lot for a single detached
dwelling on the subject land. The retained land will have an area of 440 square metres and is to be used
for an existing single detached dwelling. The applicant has also submitted an application for Zoning By-
law Amendment (Z22/02) concurrent with this application.

1) Application for Minor Variance A22/06 - Orville Findley on behalf of the owner of the property located
at 105 Morden Drive, has submitted an application for a Minor Variance to request relief from Sections
3.4.1(ii) and 5.68 of Zoning By-law 38-2007 in order to construct a converted dwelling with a second
dwelling unit in the cellar of the existing single detached dwelling. The application is seeking relief from
the regulation which states that a dwelling unit shall not be located in the cellar of a dwelling.

A copy of the completed application forms and sketches are attached for your review. The Notice of
Public Meeting is also attached for your consideration. Please contact me should you require additional
information to complete your review.

| would appreciate any comments, concerns or conditions you may have by:

Wednesday, June 15, 2022.

203 Main Street East, Shelburne, ON L9V 3K7
Tel: 519-925-2600 Fax: 519-925-6134 Web: www.shelburne.ca

d
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TOWN OF SHELBURNE
Planning & Development Department

A Preple Place, A Change of Pace

HELBURNE

OHTARIO, CANADA

Please provide comments in an electronic format via email, or if you have no comment or objection
please complete the attached response sheet and return it by email, to planning@shelburne.ca. Should
you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact me.

Sincerely,

Steve Wever, MCIP, RPP
Town Planner

Attachment(s)

203 Main Street East, Shelburne, ON L9V 3K7
Tel: 519-925-2600 Fax: 519-925-6134 Web: www.shelburne.ca




TOWN OF SHELBURNE

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
SHETBURNE
Minor Variance Application
Circulation Response Form
File: A22/06

Project: Application for Minor Variance
105 Morden Drive

If you have no comments or objection to the approval of the above noted application please complete this
form and email it to the Town Planner at the Town of Shelburne by June 15", 2022.

Email: planning@shelburne.ca

By signing this document I acknowledge that as a representative of the noted organization / body /
or person, | have reviewed this application and as a result have no comments or concerns related

to this matter.

Agency Name
(Please Print)

Representative Name
(Please Print)

Representative Title
(Please Print)

Signature

Date

203 Main Street East, Shelbume, ON L9V 3K7

Tel: 519-925-2600 Fax: 519-925-6134 Web: www.shelburne.ca



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF SHELBURNE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

UNDER SECTIONS 53 & 45 OF THE PLANNING ACT
SHELBURNE

oWTARLD, CaN

Take notice that the Committee of Adjustment of the Corporation of the Town of Shelburne will hold a public meeting
on:
MONDAY, JUNE 27™, 2022

The public meeting is scheduled to start at 6:30 p.m., or as shortly thereafter as possible, and will be held in an online
virtual meeting format, as outlined below. The purpose of the meeting is to consider the following planning applications:

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT

1) Application for Consent B22/02 — Anthony Matthew and Kristy Savausky have submitted an application
for consent for a property located at 307 Victoria Street. The subject property is legally described as Part
of Lot 1, Plan 8A, Block 18, Parts 1 & 2 on Plan 7R-1141. The property has an existing total area of
approximately 832 square metres with approximately 16 metres of frontage on Victoria Street and 45
metres of flankage on Centre Street. The purpose and effect of the application is to sever a portion of the
property to have a land area of 392 square metres to create a new residential lot for a single detached
dwelling on the subject land. The retained land will have an area of 440 square metres and is to be used
for an existing single detached dwelling. The applicant has also submitted an application for Zoning By-
law Amendment (Z22/02) concurrent with this application.

2) Application for Minor Variance A22/06 - Orville Findley on behalf of the owner of the property located
at 105 Morden Drive, has submitted an application for a Minor Variance to request relief from Sections
3.4.1(ii) and 5.68 of Zoning By-law 38-2007 in order to construct a converted dwelling with a second
dwelling unit in the cellar of the existing single detached dwelling. The application is seeking relief from
the regulation which states that a dwelling unit shall not be located in the cellar of a dwelling.

Maps showing the locations of the subject properties are provided below.

Further to the COVID-19 Pandemic and the Provincial Orders that limit public gatherings, the Committee of
Adjustment meeting will be held electronically through Zoom video conferencing and will be livestreamed. To
participate in the meeting electronically through Zoom video conferencing, please contact the Secretary-
Treasurer at jwilloughby@shelburne.ca to register in order to have access to the public meeting, no later than
Thursday June 231, 2022. Should you wish to view the proceedings, you will have the opportunity to view a live
stream of the meeting on the Town of Shelburne’s YouTube channel:
https://iwww.youtube.com/channel/lUCsar-MwF8CXrgPbe2EVxh-w.

For more information about this matter, including information about appeal rights, email planning@shelburne.ca
or visit the Town's website at www.shelburne.ca.

Tansley




203 Main Street East For Office Use Only
Box 69 A22/06
Shelburne, Ontario File #:

’ Date Received:May 5 2022
LON 1S0 D::: Aiizged;‘ML——ay 112022

Tel: (519) 925-2600
Fax: (519) 925-6134

www.townofshelburne.on.ca

Application Fees:
$2,500.00

TOWN OF SHELBURNE
APPLICATION FORM FOR A MINOR VARIANCE

1. APPLICATION INFORMATION

Name of Applicant: O RU\LLE TAND e Y
Mailing Address: _ 2L N ORTWEWCE  (CREBS BT BRAMPTON oW LR 2YY

Telephone Number (Hom_’ax Number:

Telephone Number (Business): Email Address:

2. OWNER

If the Applicant is not the Owner of the subject lands, than authorization from the Owner is required, as well
as the following information:

Name: MORAWMED BRACCHVS
Mailing Address;:_ 2 5% WleHelenw #VE ) prchAm OO LIS 3mMy

Telephone Number:

Fax Number:

Cormrespondence to be sent to: C-Owner DAgent EBoth

3. MORTGAGES, CHARGES OR OTHER ENCUMBRANCES

Name:

Mailing Address:

04/04/2013



4. SUBJECT LANDS

Street Name and Number: 105 Morden dr

(if corner lot please include both street names)

Lot 6-40 Concession:

Reference Plan: Part/Block/Lot:
Area of subject lands: Frontage:_12.32 M
Depth: 33.50 M

What is the current use of the subject land?____ RESIDENTIAL (SFD)

What is the proposed use of the subject lands? RESIDENTIAL (TUD)

When were the subject lands acquired by the current owner? Feb 10 y 2020

How long have the existing uses continued on the subject lands?_SINCE INCEPTION

5. ZONING AND OFFICIAL PLAN INFORMATION

What is the present Official Plan designation of the subject lands? Residential (Low Density)

. . Residential Type Three E ti R3-1
What is the present zoning? P . ee Exception One (R3-1) Zone

PURCHASE DATE

Please describe the nature and extent of the requested minor variance:_ CHANGE OF USE FROM

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING TO TWO UNIT DWELLING. BASEMENT AS PER CURRENT BY-LAW

CONSIDERED AS A CELLER. USE OF THIS SPACE TO CREATE A SECOND DWELLING, WITHA

BELOW GRADE ENTRANCE AT THE REAR

6. ACCESS

Is the subject land accessible by:
OProvincial highway
EMunicipal road (maintained year round)
ORight of way
OOther, describe

04/04/2013



7. BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES

Are there any existing buildings or structures on the subject lands?

M yes

Ono

if yes, please complete the following for each building or structure:

Building One Building Two
Type of Building: RESIDENCE
Setback from Front Lot Line: 5.82M
Setback from Rear Lot Line: 8.05 M
Sgtbgck_ from Side Lot Line 1.25 M
(interior):
Setbag:k from Side Lot Line 0.65M
(exterior):
Height (metres): 6.17M
Dimensions.
Floor Area: 112.44 SQM
Date of Construction: 2015

Are any buildings or structures being proposed to be built on the subject lands?

O yes

Eno

If yes, please complete the following for each building or structure:

Building One Building Two

Type of Building:

Setback from Front Lot Line:

Setback from Rear Lot Line:

Setback from Side Lot Line
(interior):

Setback from Side Lot Line
(exterior):

Height (metres).

Dimensions:

Floor Area:

Date of Construction:

8. SERVICING

Water Supply
Sewage Disposal
Frontage on Road

Is storm drainage provided by:

Municipal Private
a o
a o
[ ] O

@Storm Sewer ODitch
OOther, describe

Other
o
a
a

OSwale

04/04/2013



9. STATUS OF OTHER APPLICATIONS

Are the subject lands the subject of any other applications under the Planning Act for approval?
O yes M no

If yes, what is the file number?

What is the status of the application?

10. DRAWINGS

Please include a drawing showing the following:

1. The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land;

2. The location, size and type of all existing and proposed buildings and structures on the subject land,
indicating the distance of the building or structures from the front yard lot line, rear yard lot line and side
yard lot lines;

3. The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and on land that is
adjacent to the subject land that, in the opinion of the applicant, may affect the application. Examples
include buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands,
wooded areas, wells and septic tanks;

4. The current uses on land that is adjacent to the subject land;

5. The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an
unopened road allowance, a public travelled road, a private road or a right of way; and

6. The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land.

Drawings should be of an adequate size to clearly identify all features and provide dimensions. The
drawings should be to scale. The Town may require drawings to be prepared on a legal survey, and
additional information to be surveyed.

11. PAYMENT OF FEES

As of the date of this application, | hereby agree to pay for and bear the entire cost and expense for any
engineering, legal, landscape architectural and/or external planning consulting expenses incurred by the
Town of Shelburne during the processing of this application, in addition to any application fee set by the
Town of Shelburne

Mg 10, D00

Date Signature of Owner/Applicant

Note: All invoices for payment shall be sent to the person indicated in section 2 of this application, unless
otherwise requested.

04/04/2013



12. AUTHORIZATION

IWe _Movipwmgy SIACCHL( am/are the owner(s) of the subject lands for which this
application is to apply. e 6 upw&d B ACKUS  do hereby grant authorization to
BRGWLE FiubLE 4 __to act on my/our behalf in regard to this application.

g 10, 200D
Date ' Signature of Registered Owner(s)

13. AFFIDAVIT

L _Mokpanieo BACCHUS ofthe _ (ATy V€ (WACL({An in

the solemnly declare that all of the above statements contained
herein and in all exhibits transmitted herewith are true and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing it to be true, and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under other, and by
virtue of "The Canada Evidence Act".

DECLARED BEEORE MEAT ~THE (o) & SHELARwLEAT

in the COLLATY of the: D fFrel(,
this __ |( b day of V\A//-\rv’ L _OAD>”
<\

Witn? Signature or Registered OUwner (s) or Agent

14. PERMISSION TO ENTER

| hereby authorize the members of staff and/or elected members of Council of the Town of Shelburne to
enter upon the subject lands and premises for the limited purpose of evaluating the merits of this
application. This is their authority for doing so.

A 0 5 102
Date

Signature of Registered Owner (s) or Agent

- - -

Personal information contained on this form is collected under the authority of The Municipal Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act. This sheet and any additional information provided will be placed on the Council agenda.
The agenda is a public document and forms part of the permanent public record. Questions about this collection should
be directed to the Clerk at 519-925-2600.

04/04/2013
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NOTES

1) DOOR SHALL WOT SWNG OVER A STEP.

2) DOOR SHALL COMPLY WiTH OBC 2042 B 9.7 $ 2 TO PRUV DE RESISTANCE TO FORCED ENTRY

3) WINDOW SHELL COMPLY WITH 0BC 2012 8.5 38 1.(7).

4) EXTERIOR £/GHT SHALL COMPLY WITH 0BC 2002 B 9.3 21

5) CONCRETE SLAB SHALL BE MINIMUM 3 (75 MM) THICK &S PER OBC 2012 8.9.16.4.3

6) FLOOR DRAIN SHELL BE CONNECTED 10 STORM DRAIN OR SUMP WITH A PUMP NOT WEEPING TILE OR SANITARY DRAIN

7) ALL PLUMBING SHALL CONFGRM TO THE ONTARIO BUILDING CODE, O REG.332A12, AS AMENDED. DIVISION B.PART 1.

8) GLASS IN ENTRANCE DOORS TO HOUSES OR INDIVIGUAL DWELLING UNITS SHALL E SAFETY CLASS OR WIRED CLALS
WHERE THE GLASS AREA EXCEEDS 05 SO M AND EXTENDS TO LESS THAN 900MM FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE BO0Z 45
PER OBC 2028961 L (2

POURED CONCRETE SLAS,
AND FOUNDATION
VAL 3B WPA W/ SX-8X AR
ENTRAINMENT OVER 130 W4
TH CLEAR STONE + R 20
RIGID DEULATEIN—

uEw G\MRD 1070MM HIGH
iM BETWEEN PICKET
COMFDRHING 10 0 B C 10|2

GUARD 42° HT. WITH MAXIMUM
SPACING BETWEEH VERTICAL
PICKETS OF 2" (Sirw

POURED CONCRETE
32MPA W/ 5% 8% AIR
ENTRAINMENT
4" RIGID INSULATION R-20
HORIZONTAL RENF. 15M 8" C/C.

TH

EXTERIDR SLA%EJ‘
C9HPA Wy 2 8% AIR

o ENTRAINMENT
A 3 VERTICAL RENF. 15M 12° C/C
BASEMENT b N TEMP STEEL 15M 12° ¢/C
\ EXISTING FOOTING TO REMAIN
L 2 LAYER OF 2° RIGID 3
INSULATIOHN R-20 UNDER LANDING i) o
HANDRAIL W/ S0M) SCALE = /16" = 1'0°

H
CLEARANCE FROM THE WALL

—®

BELOW GRADE ENTRANCE PLAN
SCALE= 3/16 = 1

EX. INSULATIO

2-2'28° HEADER

Exterior light controlied
2° RIGID by 2 wat swiich within the
INSULATION P weling a3 pe! artcte

GUARD T0 BE 42° (1070mm)
LOCATION OF FLOOR DRAIN

CONNECTED SUMP PUMP

Existing wall to install
4smm th. sold Insulated s neel
4" RIGID IISULATION R-20 MAND RAIL 34%-38° HEIGHT
rikle 5.3.5,3 10 reist
Torced emity AS PER 9.0.7.4.{2)
EXISTING WALL /FOGTING INSULATION DETAIL

HEIGHT
/_wnn MAX OPENING SIZE OF 2° (S0mm)

EXISTING
= NS BASEMENT A
235! \\\\ A
2" RIGID INSULATION // % iU 407 GRADE TO
4Smm th. insulated doot with . ALIGWABLE PRESSURE OF

deadbok as per obc 9.7.5.2 1o
resist forced entry, tampered
safety glass as per obc 9.6.1.4

15H @ 24° DOWELS.

D\ Riia)

STEP FOOTING DETAIL
Scales 3716 » 10

EXTERIOR SLAB 4°

BOTTOM REH
POURED CONCRETE

I2HPA w1 5% 3% AIR 15H @ 12" nowus
HTRAINMENT

4* RIGID INSULATION R-20
4° COMPACTED GRARULAR FILL (TPY.)

ExlsnnGA WEEPING
TILE TO REMAIN

LOCATION OF FLOOR DRASH
CONNECTED SUMP PUMP

75 KPA OR GREATER

SECTION AA

SCALE = 3/16" = 107
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UL ]

NEW CAST IRON CUSTOM MADE
GUARD 1070MM HIGH MAX. S50MM
BETWEEN PICKET CONFORMING TO
2012 0.B.C. 9.8.8.2 LOADING
REQUIREMENT. THE GUARD POSTS
ARE ATTACHED TO CONCRETE FOUND.
WALL WITH 4NOS 3" DIA. 4" LONG
BOLTS AT EVERY 5 FEET.

,_‘

il

T

—_—
%

SMM L° X & METAL PLATE
WITH 4 LONG 1" DIa
SCREWS

HANDRAIL COMMECTION

HANDRAIL W/50MM CLEARANCE
FROM THE WALL AS PER 08C
3.4.6.L. LOADING REQUIREMENT

HANDRAIL AND GUARD

200 MM 25 MPA CONCRETE

—5HM L A L METAL PLATE
WITH &° LONG 3° DIA
SCREWS

200 MM 25 MPA CONCRETE
[ |

NOTE:

. HEIGHT OF HANDRAILS TO COMPLY
0BC 2012 B.9.8.7.4.

THE CONSTRUCTION OF A GUARDS
SHALL CONFORM TO THE LOADING
CRITERIA OBC 2012 B.4.1.5.14.
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TOWN OF SHELBURNE

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
+ A Py, . A Charge of Pace
SHETBURNE
Zoning By-law Amendment & Consent
Circulation Response Form
Files: Z22/02 & B22/02
Project: Applications for Zoning By-law Amendment & Consent
307 Victoria Street
Part of Lot 1, Plan 8A, Block 18, Parts 1 & 2 on Plan 7R-1141, Town of
Shelburne

If you have no comments or objection to the approval of the above noted applications please complete
this form and email it to the Town Planner at the Town of Shelburne by June 15%*, 2022,

Email: planning@shelburne.ca

By signing this document | acknowledge that as a representative of the noted organization / body /
or person, | have reviewed this application and as a result have no comments or concerns related
to this matter.

Agency Name
(Please Print)

Representative Name
(Please Print)

Representative Title
(Please Print)

Signature

Date

203 Main Street East, Shelburne, ON LOV 3K7
Tel: 519-925-2600 Fax: 519-925-6134 Web: www.shelburne.ca




BYZ0 arpplication FeL
K %g Qw‘f\)\?\r\semb‘ CQ.Q‘OO.;‘

203 Main Street East For Office Use Only
Box 69
Shelburne, Ontario File#: B22/02
LON 1S0 gg iz::;:ltzg April 28 2022
Tel: (519) 925-2600 Application Fees:
Fax: (519) 925-6134 $5,195.00
www.townofshelburne.on.ca
T
TOWN OF SHELBURNE

APPLICATION FORM FOR CONSENT

1. APPLICATION INFORMATION

Name of Applicant: MMMM
Mam“illiii ii i\iﬁir\ i’f ihe\iii| iiii lii iiﬁ
Tele

Telephone Number (Business): Email Address:

2. OWNER

If the Applicant is not the Owner of the subject lands, than authorization from the Owner is required, as well
as the following information:

Name: S&me as  aoove .

Mailing Address:

Telephone Number: Fax Number:

Mailing Address:

04/04/2013



4. APPLICATION

What is the type and purpose of the application?

E/new lot

O lot addition

[0 easement

O charge or lease
Ocorrection of title

If known, the name of the person to whom the land or an interest in the land is to be transferred, charged or
leased:

5. SUBJECT LANDS (LANDS TO BE SEVERED AND LANDS TO BE RETAINED)

Street Name and Number:_ (> 1 Vickvia 8‘\‘

Lot Lo% - &lpd’. \B Concession:

Reference Plan: _ 1R~ \14{ paryBlockiLot_ Lot | , Block \8 _ \
Area of subject Iands:Mmfage:_upjwm /‘55 £}, ;éﬁf; l‘gﬁ\y
Depth: ‘-\S:im! Hﬁ’“ﬁ’ GS;%\-@’QQ‘M /

What is the current use of the subject lands? T%ld e]A‘k' Lol
What is the proposed use of the subject lands? cesidental

Are there any easements or restrictive covenants affecting the subject lands? Yes a Nom/

Specify:

When were the subject lands acquired by the current owner?__21 ML\i 20\

How long have the existing uses continued on the subject lands? _A@P@L_\HM‘{' .

6. LANDS TO BE SEVERED

Area of severed lands:_&A\ S rontage: \q B\ ln/ (QY‘H’
Depth: \48\va/(og +.
What is the current use of the lands to be severed?_vagmma\_%@.

What is the proposed use of the lands to be severed? TES\&GW\'I‘Q\

Number and use of buildings and structures on the lands to be severed:

Existing: _\ Dxd %&V‘d&/\ ghed CV‘ZVMMQ).
Proposed:__\ fe&d&«’nw\ o se .

04/04/2013



Are the lands to be severed accessible by?

gZovincial highway

unicipal road (maintained year round)
ORight of way
OOther, describe

SERVICING

Municipal Private Other
Water Supply Ey a n]
Sewage Disposal IB/ =] m]
Frontage on Road l:l/ n ] (m}
Is storm drainage provided by: méorm Sewer ODitch OSwale

OOther, describe

ZONING AND OFFICIAL PLAN INFORMATION

What is the present Zoning of the lands to be severed? RZ .

What is the present Official Plan designation on the lands to be severed?_gesﬂ&hd_(jﬁ!df U dem& h-,)

7. LANDS TO BE RETAINED - . i
. o \ot s Stiahtly
Area of retained lands: .H' W]ﬁ_aﬂg\tage: ‘LQ.—W‘* m j o ®) H /;ie 8!/\1,«'9659*6
nmn&f o
Depth: 25, zq?ﬂl% -H r.@?ut- whd.ev © /
)
What is the current use of the lands to be retained?_@de/\ﬁﬁj \ﬂ"‘a‘§

What is the proposed use of the lands to be retained? Ve&d&aﬁ(b\

Number and use of buildings and structures on the lands to be retained:
Exising: _\ house + \ %&V&S@. Proposed. SN

Are the lands to be retained accessible by:

OBrovincial highway

Dﬁunicipal road (maintained year round)
ORight of way
OOther, describe

SERVICING

Municipal Private Other
Water Supply a u]
Sewage Disposal w o [m]
Frontage on Road n/ (w] (m]
Is storm drainage provided by: D&er Sewer ODitch OSwale

OOther, describe

04/04/2013



ZONING AND OFFICIAL PLAN INFORMATION

What is the present Zoning of the lands to be retained? RZ.

What is the present Official Plan designation on the lands to be retained?_@s_ﬂzm_Lmﬁi L dﬁ/\SiW] )

8. OTHER APPLICATIONS

Are or have the subject lands been the subject of any other applications under the Planning Act for
approval?

O yes %o (Q\WW l ?UV QZA ok
y This L‘ Vg

If yes, what is the file number?

What is the status of the application?

9. DRAWINGS

Please include a sketch or survey showing the following:

1. The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land including the lot(s) to be created,

2. The location, size and type of all existing and proposed buildings and structures on the subject land,
indicating the distance of the building or structures from the front yard lot line, rear yard lot line and side
yard lot lines;

3. The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and on land that is
adjacent to the subject land that, in the opinion of the applicant, may affect the application. Examples
include buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands,
wooded areas, wells and septic tanks;

4. The current uses on land that is adjacent to the subject land;

5. The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an
unopened road allowance, a public travelled road, a private road or a right of way; and,

6. The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land.

Drawings should be of an adequate size to clearly identify all features and provide dimensions. The
drawings should be to scale. The Municipality may require drawings to be prepared on a legal survey, and
additional information to be surveyed.

10. PAYMENT OF FEES

As of the date of this application, | hereby agree to pay for and bear the entire cost and expense for any
engineering, legal, landscape architectural and/or external plannlng consultlng expenses incurred by the
Town of Shelbume during the processing Of this 2 e e e

m of Shelburne.

ol %’L'} Lor)

Note: Altinvoices for payment shall be sent to the iSRG e L
otherwise requested.

04/04/2013



11. AUTHORIZATION

I/We am/are the owner(s) of the subject lands for which this
application is to apply. IWe do hereby grant authorization to
to act on my/our behalf in regard to this application.

Date Signature of Registered Owner(s)

12. AFFIDAVIT

Wi, m%m%%*_\‘m&uﬁme [won ot Shelonrne, oN in
the u 01 D solemnly declare that all of the above statements contained

herein and ih all exhibits transmitted herewith are true and 1 make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing it to be true, and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under other, and by
virtue of "The Canada Evidence Act".

DECLARED BEFORE ME AT _The Jown € &hdlbung
M [

in the COUJ\;'!/ QD'}"LM =  of

' i PAend

13. PERMISSION TO ENTER

| hereby authorize the members of staff and/or mgmbers of Committee of Adjustment of the Town of
Shelburne to enter upon the subject lands and pr, imi i i
this application. This is their authority for doing

Pl gt war

Date

Personal information contained on this form is collected under the authority of The Municipal Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act. This sheet and any additional information provided will be placcd on the Council agenda. The agenda is
a public document and forms part of the permanent public record. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Clerk at
519-925-2600.

04/04/2013
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TOWN OF SHELBURNE
Planning & Development Department

A Prople Plece, A Change of Pace
SHELBURNE

oNTARIO A

May 27, 2022
CIRCULATED BY E-MAILTO:

e County of Dufferin o Enbridge

e MTO e Bell

e NVCA e Rogers Communication
e Township of Amaranth e Shelburne EDC

¢ Township of Melancthon e Engineering

¢ School Boards e Legal

e Canada Post ¢ Fire Dept

e OPG e Council

e Hydro One e Public Works

APPLICATION FOR ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

FILE NO: Z22/02
PROJECT: 307 VICTORIA STREET

Please take notice that the Town of Shelburne received an application for a Zoning By-law Amendment
for land known municipally as 307 Victoria Street, and legally described as Part of Lot 1, Plan 8A, Block
18, Parts 1 & 2 on Plan 7R-1141, in the Town of Shelburne, County of Dufferin. A copy of the completed
Zoning By-law Amendment application form, sketch, and response form are attached. The Town has
also received a related application for Consent to sever the subject land (B22/02) which has been
circulated with this application. Please contact me should you require additional information to complete
your review.

| would appreciate any comments, concerns or conditions you may have by:
Wednesday, June 15", 2022.
Please provide comments in an electronic format via email, or if you have no comment or objection

please complete the attached response sheet and return it by email, to planning@shelburne.ca. Should
you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact me.

Sincerely,

Steve Wever, MCIP, RPP
Town Planner

Attachment(s)

203 Main Street East, Shelburne, ON L9V 3K7
Tel: 519-925-2600 Fax: 519-925-6134 Web: www.shelburne.ca




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF SHELBURNE

NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION AND PUBLIC MEETING

A Prophe Ploce. A Change of Pace UNDER SECTION 34 OF THE PLANNING ACT
SHELBURNE

ONTARNID, CANARA

Take notice that the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Shelburne has received a complete
application for a Zoning By-law Amendment (File No. Z22/02) and will hold a public meeting on:

MONDAY, JUNE 27, 2022

The public meeting is scheduled to start at 6:30 p.m., or as shortly thereafter as possible, and will be held
in an online virtual meeting format, as outlined below.

The purpose of the meeting is to consider an Amendment to the Town of Shelburne Zoning By-law No. 38-
2007. Take notice that the application has been deemed complete so that it can be circulated and reviewed.

The property subject to the proposed Amendment is municipally known as 307 Victoria Street. The property
is designated as Medium Density Residential in the Official Plan and zoned Residential Type Two (R2) in
the Zoning By-law. The accompanying map illustrates the location of the land subject to the proposed
zoning amendment.

The purpose and effect of the Amendment is to rezone the property from Residential Type Two (R2) Zone
to a new site-specific Residential Type Two Exception (R2-#) Zone. The applicant has also submitted a
Consent application (B22/02) for the purpose of creating a new residential lot to be severed from the existing
property. The proposed Amendment applies to both the severed and retained land. The application is
proposing site-specific provisions for the retained lot to recognize the existing front yard (2.59 metres),
exterior side yard (2.13 metres), lot frontage (16.76 metres), reduced lot area (439.74 square metres) and
to permit the provision of required parking within a driveway in the required front yard. Site-specific
provisions requested for the proposed severed lot include a reduced front yard of 4.57 metres whereas 6.0
metres is required, a reduced rear yard of 5.18 metres whereas 7.5 metres is required, a reduced lot area
of 392 square metres whereas 464.0 square metres is required and to permit the provision of required
parking within a driveway in the required front yard.

Further to the COVID-19 Pandemic and the | l I | ‘ LJ 122 I -g Andrew St
Provincial Orders that limit public gatherings, | Wellington St S/ 205

the public meeting will be held electronically | 208 I.B FF-/ 2291237 | 241 |249 g
through Zoom video conferencingandwillbe [@|zinfaia| |z o I> [ = I

livestreamed. To participate in the meeting | = ™| 7|~ |™

electronically ~ through  Zoom  video 216 (=i 0 T o |
conferencing, please contact the Clerk at 24 ; 6|14
jwilloughby@shelburne.ca to register in [0 ‘3 § § § a4 2 Slf?lec:t P'rop|ert¥ i
order to have access to the public meeting, 116|232 l

no later than Thursday June 23, 2022.

Should you wish to view the proceedings, Joseph St

you will have the opportunity to view a live lln ]
131

L 307

308

stream of the meeting on the Town of i) 1312
Shelburne’s YouTube channel o 316
https://iwww.youtube.com/channel/UCsar- 320
MwF8CXrgPbe2EVxh-w. Jeffery St
I 408
For more information about this matter, S 111 410

including information about appeal rights,
email planning@shelburne.ca or visit the Town's website at www.shelburne.ca.
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203 Main Street East For Office Use Only
Box 69 o
. File #:
Eg;}blu;ge, Onio Date Received:April 28 2022
Date Accepted:
Tel: (519) 925-2600 Application Fees:
Fax: (519) 925-6134 $3,835.00
www.townofshelburne.on.ca
TOWN OF SHELBURNE

APPLICATION FORM FOR AN ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

Date Received: A)Yi\ 2% 2022
1. APPLICATION INFORMATION N "

Name of Applicant: ' vousty % ¥n
ame of Applican &ﬁmﬂﬁm Sf\ll &Qﬂm&su.'_

Telephone Number (Business): Email Address:

2. OWNER

If the Applicant is not the Owner of the subject lands, than authorization from the Owner is required, as well
as the following information:

Name: Sﬂme as Qoove,
Mailing Address:

Telephone Number: Fax Number:

3. MORTGAGES, CHARGES OR OTHER ENCUMBRANCES

Name;

Mailing Addres

Name:

Mailing Address:

04/04/2013



4. SUBJECT LANDS

Lot LOk 1, B\ock 2 Concession:
Reference Plan: [ - “"“ Part/Block/Lot,_LOY \; T}\OC\‘- 13

Street Name and Number._ 207 ViCYV1Q St Covrev \ot of UM%‘\" q Cenite 8+

(if corner lot please include both street names)

Area of subject lands: ?&Z_ﬂbm_MFrontage M_MJ_&:&M) slt N y F‘E

: \ + @ ok
Depth:_45 Wim ’ 145 2% E{iﬁ @ \pCl
What is the current use of the subject land? re&d@/d’ﬁl

What is the proposed use of the subject lands? ]'E}S\&th&\

When were the subject lands acquired by the current owner? 21 Wﬂ\% Zoll

How long have the existing uses continued on the subject lands? A\D{)i’ﬂ}c 9718 o ‘p( 6@4}" .

5. ZONING AND OFFICIAL PLAN INFORMATION

What is the present Official Plan designation of the subject lands? %MGQ - mmm_deb\ﬁ h»{

What is the present zoning? Q..Z .

What is the purpose of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment?

10 Sever Ahe avowe ok into tWo \ots, |
_Lord to be reineds W™ sem /413 s M- GEIN ouse.

Lend Yo be Svered = 292 s%m [N m‘s{lff.*v@am.

6. PROPOSED DEVLEOPMENT

Please describe any proposed development on the subject lands (include buildings, floor area, height,
parking spaces, etc. and attached plans with site and development statistics):

N ok S Hime

04/04/2013



7. ACCESS
Is the subject land accessible by:

OBrovincial highway
Nﬂlumcnpal road (maintained year round)
ORight of way
OOther, describe

8. SERVICING

Municipal Private Other
Water Supply o] o
Sewage Disposal & o o
Frontage on Road 4 a o
Is storm drainage provided by: ﬂétorm Sewer ODitch OSwale

OOther, describe

9. STATUS OF OTHER APPLICATION

Are the subject lands the subject of any other applications under the Planning Act?

Q/ Yes D No 0 Unknown

If yes, describe the application(s)? Consprst QDCESS

10. DRAWINGS

Drawings shall be provided as required in the Official Plan Amendment Process sheet.

11. PAYMENT OF FEES

As of the date of this application, | hereby agree to pay for and bear the entire cost and expense for any
engineering, legal, landscape architectural and/or external plannmg consulting expenses incurred by the
Town of Shelburne during the processing of this application, in addition to any application fee set by the
Town of Shelburne.

A()r, l Wlk} lo2v

Date

Note: All invoices for payment shall be sent to the person indicated in section 2 of this application, unless
otherwise requested.

04/04/2013



12. AUTHORIZATION

I\We am/are the owner(s) of the subject lands for which this
application is to apply. I"We do hereby grant authorization to
to act on my/our behalf in regard to this application.

Date Signature of Registered Owner(s)

13. AFFIDAVIT
1, Aingnn Mattiew Savusi ¥ \Lv\sm Wisktppine Dewm §) Shalounce in

the_( M‘ ol g%n_f solémnly declare that all of the above statements contained
herein and in all exhibits transmitted herewith are true and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing it to be true, and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under other, and by
virtue of "The Canada Evidence Act".

DECLARED REFORE ME AT_cdown € Hulbune

in the [~ Softhe  cbufier— -
this T v . <Soa—

14. PERMISSION TO ENTER
| hereby authorize the members of staff and/or elected members of Council of the Town of Shelburne to

enter upon the subject lands and premises for the limited puroose of evaluating the merits_of this
application. This is their authority for doing so.

/.l L%*“) Lo L

Date

Personal information contained on this form is collected under the authority of The Municipal Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act. This sheet and any additional information provided will be placed on the Council agenda.
The agenda is a public document and forms part of the permanent public record. Questions about this coltection should
be directed to the Clerk at 519-925-2600.

04/04/2013
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Legislative Services
Michael de Rond
905-726-4771

AU I@RA clerks@aurora.ca

Town of Aurora
100 John West Way, Box 1000
Aurora, ON L4G 6J1

May 31, 2022
Delivered by email
justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca
karina.gould@parl.gc.ca

The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, P.C., M.P.
Prime Minister of Canada

80 Wellington Street

Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2

The Honourable Karina Gould, P.C., M.P.

Minister of Families, Children and Social Development
House of Commons

Ottawa, ON K1A 0A6

Dear Prime Minister Trudeau and Minister Gould:

Re: Town of Aurora Council Resolution of May 24, 2022
Motion 10.1 - Councillor Humfryes; Re: Private Member's Bill C-233 "Keira's Law"

Please be advised that this matter was considered by Council at its meeting held on
May 24, 2022, and in this regard, Council adopted the following resolution:

Whereas violence against women is a Canadian public health crisis that demands
urgent action; and

Whereas one in four women experience domestic violence in their lifetime. One
woman or girl is killed every other day, on average, somewhere in our country;
and

Whereas the most dangerous time for a victim of abuse is when she separates
from her partner. According to research from the U.S. Centre for Disease Control
and Prevention, when there is a history of coercive control, violence and a recent
separation, a woman'’s risk of domestic homicide goes up 900 times; and

Whereas the current Canadian court system is not equipped to protect women.
According to the National Judicial Institute, there is no mandatory education for
Judges on domestic violence. Judges need education on what constitutes
domestic violence or coercive control. A formal education program would ensure

Ith# A

JUN 16 2022



Town of Aurora Council Resolution of May 24, 2022
Private Member's Bill C-233 "Keira's Law"
May 31, 2022 20f3

another line of defense for victims, as well as preventing violence and abuse
before it happens; and

Whereas the COVID-19 pandemic has only exacerbated the domestic violence
crisis. Women'’s shelters and crisis centres have reported a marked increase in
requests for services this year. The concerns for children are significant.
According to recent research from The Children’s Hospital of Eastern Ontario,
doctors have seen more than double the number of babies with serious injuries
as this time last year. These include head injuries, broken bones or in some
cases death. Institutions across the country are reporting a similar trend; and

Whereas, according to Article 19 of the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child,
children must be protected from “all forms of physical or mental violence, injury
or abuse, neglect or negligent treatment, maltreatment or exploitation, including
sexual abuse, while in the care of parent(s), legal guardian(s) or any other person
who has care of the child.” Our current family justice system often fails our
children in this regard; and

Whereas, in worst case scenarios, children are killed by a violent parent. As
reported by the Canadian Domestic Homicide Prevention Initiative, recent
separation and domestic violence are the two biggest risk factors for domestic
violence related child homicides; and

Whereas custody disputes are an additional risk factor. Each year in Canada,
about 30 children are killed by a parent. Mothers are responsible about 40 per
cent of the time, often due to postpartum depression or mental illness. In the 60
per cent of cases where fathers are the murderers, anger, jealousy or post-
separation retaliatory revenge are the usual motivations; and

Whereas Keira's Law is named after four-year-old Keira Kagan, who was killed
while in the custody of her father, in 2020; and

Whereas many cases of domestic violence are inappropriately labelled as “high
conflict” in the family court system. According to research by Rachel Birnbaum, a
Social Work Professor at the University of Western Ontario who specializes in
child custody, approximately one third of cases called “high conflict” by the court
had substantiated evidence of valid concerns about domestic violence. These
cases must be recognized and treated differently by judges; and

Whereas voting in favour of “Keira's Law", contained in Private Member's Bill C-
233, will not only protect victims of violence and children, it will save lives by



Town of Aurora Council Resolution of May 24, 2022
Private Member's Bill C-233 "Keira's Law"
May 31, 2022 30f3

amending the Judges Act to establish seminars for judges on intimate partner
violence and coercive control;

1. Now Therefore Be It Hereby Resolved That Aurora Town Council calls upon
the House of Commons to support Member of Parliament Anju Dhillon's
Private Member's Bill C-233, that will raise the level of education on
domestic violence and coercive control for federally appointed Judges; and

2. Be It Further Resolved That a copy of this resolution be sent to: The Right
Honourable Justin Trudeau, Prime Minister of Canada; The Honourable
Karina Gould, MP, Minister of Families, Children and Social Development;
The Honourable Candice Bergen, Interim Leader of the Conservative Party of
Canada; Yves-Francois Blanchet, MP, Leader of the Bloc Quebecois;
Jagmeet Singh, MP, Leader of the New Democratic Party; MP Tony Van
Bynen; and MP Leah Taylor Roy; and

3. Be It Further Resolved That a copy of this resolution be circulated to all
Ontario municipalities and the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM).

The above is for your consideration and any attention deemed necessary.

Yours sincerely,

(W

Michael de Rond
Town Clerk
The Corporation of the Town of Aurora

MdR/Ib

Copy: Hon. Candice Bergen, M.P,, Interim Leader of the Conservative Party of Canada
Yves-Frangois Blanchet, M.P., Leader of the Bloc Québécois
Jagmeet Singh, M.P., Leader of the New Democratic Party of Canada
Tony Van Bynen, M.P. Newmarket—Aurora
Leah Taylor Roy, M.P. Aurora—0ak Ridges—Richmond Hill
Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM)
All Ontario municipalities



TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON INTEGRITY COMMISSIONER,
GUY GIORNO

Citation: Wallace v. Mercer, 2022 ONMIC 11
Date: May 31, 2022
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THE COMPLAINT

1. Ms Karren Wallace (Complainant) alleges that Councillor Margaret Mercer
(Respondent) contravened the Code of Conduct for Members of Council and Members
of Local Boards, By-law Number 11-2019, by contacting the Ontario Provincial Police
about a communication she had received from the Respondent.

SUMMARY

2. Ms Wallace is a resident of the Township who communicates with Council
Members concerning local issues. After receiving emails from Ms Wallace, January 27,
Councillor Mercer complained to the OPP, and an OPP constable visited Ms Wallace at
home.

3. Ms Wallace alleges that Councillor Mercer was acting in the capacity of Council
Member when she contacted the OPP. She alleges that Councillor Mercer asked the OPP
to visit Ms Wallace in an attempt to intimidate Ms Wallace and to discourage Ms Wallace’s
further political discourage.

4, | find that Councillor Mercer’'s purpose in calling the police was to silence further
criticism from Ms Wallace. Nonetheless, this finding does not mean that Councillor
Mercer contravened the Code.

5. People who believe that they need the assistance of law enforcement have a right
to contact the police. So long as they respect police independence, and do not misuse
the influence of office, elected officials possess the same rights as anyone else to request
police assistance.

6. Despite my finding that the Respondent was attempting to silence further criticism
from a resident, the Code of Conduct and the Municipal Act do not prohibit a Council
Member from seeking police assistance and do not authorize an Integrity Commissioner
to supervise police calls made by Council Members.

7. Councillor Mercer did not disrespect the principle of police independence. She is
not a police services board member and has no authority or responsibility for policing.
Councillor Mercer also did not engage in political interference with policing. In contacting
the OPP she did not use the influence of her office as a Council Member. Calling the
police was not harassment of Ms Wallace as defined by the Code.

8. | am reporting to Council that the Code was not contravened.



BACKGROUND

9. At 8:12 p.m., January 27, Ms Wallace, from her personal email account, sent the
following email to all Members of Township Council, at their Township email addresses:*

Subject: Concerned citizen

| am emailing to express my concerns about the dysfunction and dynamics on
display among members of Melancthon Council.

Recently, within days of Facebook posts made by the Mayor on his personal page
expressing his concerns about possible damage to municipal infrastructure, a
majority of Council called a special meeting to discuss the issue.

As expressed at that January 18, 2022, meeting, four members of Council felt the
reputation of the municipality had been called into question and it was important
enough to call a special meeting.

Six days later, a meeting scheduled weeks in advance, held legislatively under the
Planning Act to discuss a by-law regarding diversified on farm uses, was called to
order. Immediately, a majority of Council voted to adjourn the meeting, without
hearing from any of the ratepayers who took time to attend the meeting to provide
input and comments, as was their legislated right.

Margaret Mercer stated her reason for requesting adjournment was the Planner did
not follow the instructions of Council in drafting the by-law. The support of three
other members of Council in adjourning the meeting clearly called the Planner's
integrity and professional credibility into question.

This, despite Council discussing the draft by-law and providing direction to the
Planner on at least at two opportunities at Committee of the Whole meetings in the
fall of 2021.

The outcome of the cancellation of that meeting was the immediate resignation of
the Planner, thereby halting all development in the municipality.

And yet our Council is silent on the reputation of the municipality on this major issue
and to date has not called a special meeting to discuss this troubling development.

The ratepayers in Melancthon deserve better.

They deserve a Council that works cohesively on major issues that do not sink to a
level of pettiness. An example of this is when Margaret Mercer expressed on a Zoom
Council meeting she was upset the Mayor did not greet her at a function in the
manner in which she felt she was accorded. Another particularly offensive comment
was when, with Mr. Harvey Lyon on the Zoom meeting, Mercer stated everyone
would be better off if he were dead.

Melancthon residents expect their elected officials will be received at a Provincial
level on matters of concern with respect, not with the knowledge of the dysfunction
and dynamics at play, as reported in the print and social media.

' My standard practice in these reports is to edit direct quotations to correct spelling, grammar and
names, and to achieve uniformity in punctuation and capitalization.



This Council, as many others, are facing unprecedented challenges regarding
COVID, infrastructure deficient, funding issues, increasing taxes, aging
infrastructure, crime, a potential impact to local water, and many others. And yet
they focus on Facebook posts to try to score political capital.

You were put in your position to represent the best interests of your constituents.
Please rise to the occasion.

Karren Wallace

10. At 9:29 p.m., Ms Wallace forwarded the above email to the personal email address
of Councillor Mercer, and provided this explanation:

As you advised at the special meeting of Council on January 18, | know you aren't
on social media, so | wanted to be fair and let you know this has been shared on
Facebook.

Feel free to call anytime to discuss 519-925-3845.
Karren

11. That same evening, Ms Wallace posted the text of her email to Council on
Facebook’s Muimur Melancthon Community Group page. Her Facebook post began as
follows:

Here is the email | just sent to Council (and YES Mercer did state on a Zoom meeting
everyone would be better off if Mr. Harvey Lyon were dead and YES he was on the
Zoom meeting: | am emailing to express my concerns about the dysfunction and
dynamics on display among members of Melancthon Council.

[then followed the entire text of the email that Ms Wallace had sent to Council]

12. Immediately below her post of the email to Council, Ms Wallace then posted the
following:

| fully expect to receive a cease and desist order from Margaret and when | do, | will
be glad to post it here!

13.  Upon receiving Ms Wallace’'s email to her personal email address, Councillor
Mercer contacted the OPP. A constable from the Dufferin County detachment was
assigned to the matter. He spoke to Councillor Mercer by telephone and then visited
Ms Wallace at her home.

14.  Later the same night, Ms Wallace emailed all of Council, and posted on Facebook,
to inform people of the police visit and to express her displeasure at what had occurred.
She stated:

In response to my email to Melancthon elected officials earlier this evening (see
thread below), in the municipality where | own a residence, Margaret Mercer,
contacted the OPP to complain about my email. She requested the OPP to come to
my home to tell me that she did not wish to receive any of my emails.



I have copied the Officer in question so a copy of this email thread can be placed in
the file so there is clarity that at no time were threats exchanged or anything but
factual information provided.

Calling the OPP on a ratepayer who is exercising their democratic right to engage
with their municipal representative, directed to their publicly paid email address, is
an absolute waste of taxpayer money, and more importantly, police resources and
time.

A component of her complaint was that she was also receiving emails to her
personal email address. That is true, but those emails were concerning the Strada
quarry proposal, which as a Councillor she was forwarded as a matter of courtesy
so0 she could be informed. At one point, she emailed to demand that she wasn't kept
fully informed about the issue. Her complaint has been duly noted and she will no
longer receive any information about this important issue.

Additionally, everyone on that Strada email, list months ago, were requested to
advise by return email if they did not wish to receive further emails. At no time did
Margaret Mercer reply that she did not wish to receive emails to her personal email
about the issue.

In my exchange with the investigating Officer, it was confirmed that my continuing
to engage with my municipal Councillor(s) at their public municipal email address is
not illegal, provided it is based on fact and not threatening.

15.  On February 7, Ms Wallace submitted the Complaint that became the subject of
my inquiry.

PROCESS FOLLOWED

16.  In operating under the Code, | follow a process that ensures fairness to both the
individual bringing a Complaint (the Complainant) and the Council Member responding to
the Complaint (the Respondent). This process is based on the Complaint Protocol that
was adopted by Council.

17.  This fair and balanced process begins with me issuing a Notice of Inquiry that sets
out the issues in the inquiry. The Complaint, including any complaint materials, is attached
to the Notice. The Respondent is given the opportunity to respond, and then the
Complainant receives the opportunity to reply to the Response. The Respondentis made
aware of the Complainant's name. | do, however, redact personal information such as
personal phone numbers and email addresses.

18. | received the Complaint on February 7 and issued a Notice of Inquiry,
February 10.

19. The Complaint had cited sections 1.15 and 1.16 of the Code. | exercised my
discretion to determine that the inquiry would consider section 1.15 and section 1.3 but
not section 1.16.
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20. Section 1.15 covers harassment as defined in the Human Rights Code. The
Human Rights Code defines harassment as, “engaging in a course of vexatious comment
or conduct that is known or ought reasonably to be known to be unwelcome.” This is
similar to the language of section 1.15 of the Code of Conduct. In this case, the allegation
of harassment is that Councillor Mercer contacted the OPP in an attempt to intimidate
Ms Wallace and to discourage Ms Wallace's political discourse.

21.  While the Complaint did not expressly mention section 1.3, | determined that the
last sentence of section 1.3 was applicable to the allegation that Councillor Mercer acted
in her capacity as a Council Member when she contacted the OPP. That sentence reads:
“No member shall use the influence of office for any purpose other than the exercise of
their official duties.” | therefore exercised my discretion to reformulate the complaint to
include the last sentence of section 1.3.

22. | exercised my Municipal Act discretion not to inquire whether Councillor Mercer
contravened section 1.16 of the Code. Section 1.16 of the Code of Conduct states that
bullying is “repeated” behaviour. The Complaint does not allege any behaviour that was
repeated. Consequently, even if all the facts alleged in the Complaint were supported by
the evidence, there would be no contravention of section 1.16.

23.  Councillor Mercer provided a written response on February 18. Ms Wallace replied
on February 27. Councillor Mercer submitted a supplementary response, March 9, to
which Ms Wallace replied, March 20.

24. | conducted interviews of two individuals whom | believed might possess relevant
information: the Mayor, and the resident who was allegedly the subject of a “better off ...
dead” comment (see paragraph 11).

25. lissued a summons under subsection 33 (3) of the Public Inquiries Act, as well as
a delegation under subsection 223.3 (3) of the Municipal Act to a lawyer who works with
me, authorizing him to receive the evidence of an additional witness, an OPP constable.
The evidence, on affirmation, was provided March 28.

26. | interviewed the Respondent in writing (at her request), between April 2 and
April 27.

27. Under the process that | follow, the parties are entitled to see and address each
other’s submissions, but interviews are conducted in private. During the interview, a party
or witness is entitled to be accompanied by legal counsel. A party is not permitted to
participate in or attend the interview of a witness or the other party.

28. On May 14, | shared with Councillor Mercer and her lawyer, Mr. Mark Donald, a
draft of this report. | received comments from Mr. Donald on May 20. As | indicate at
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various places below, | have taken the Respondent’s feedback into account in finalizing
the report.

29.  During the inquiry, | also determined (and informed the parties on March 19) that |
did not possess reasonable grounds for a referral to law enforcement under section 223.8
of the Municipal Act. Section 223.8 compels an Integrity Commissioner to suspend an
inquiry once the Integrity Commissioner determines that there are reasonable grounds to
believe that a law has been contravened. That section reads as follows:

If the Commissioner, when conducting an inquiry, determines that there are
reasonable grounds to believe that there has been a contravention of any other Act,
other than the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act, or of the Criminal Code (Canada),
the Commissioner shall immediately refer the matter to the appropriate authorities
and suspend the inquiry until any resulting police investigation and charge have
been finally disposed of, and shall report the suspension to council.

30. At one point during the inquiry, the Respondent stated that the Complainant had
made a death threat. The Respondent also stated that this was an ongoing police matter.

31. The fact that something is a police matter — the fact that police constables are
involved — is not what triggers the application of section 223.8. Section 223.8 is triggered
if the Integrity Commissioner “determines that there are reasonable grounds to believe
that there has been a contravention” of either the Criminal Code or an Ontario statute
other than the Municipal Act and the MCIA.

32. | carefully considered all the social media points provided to me by both parties,
as well as their submissions. | also considered potentially relevant legislation, including
the Criminal Code which, in section 264, deals with criminal harassment.?2 My March 19
determination, based on the information in front of me at the time, was that | did not have
reasonable grounds to believe that there had been a contravention of any other Ontario
Act? or the Criminal Code. Consequently, | informed the parties that the inquiry would
continue.

33. The obligation to consider section 223.8 is a continuing obligation. If at any point
in the inquiry | had determined that there were reasonable grounds to believe that there
had been a contravention of any other Ontario Act or the Criminal Code, then | would
have been required to suspend the inquiry. At no time during the inquiry did | determine
that reasonable grounds existed.

34. This report identifies all withesses who were interviewed in the course of the
inquiry. | accept a portion of the Respondent’s submission about fairness and identifying
witnesses. In my view, identifying the witnesses contributes to fairness and to the

2 The first two subsections of s. 264 are reproduced at paragraph 98 of this report.
3 That s, other than the Municipal Act and the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act.
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transparency of the process, but it is neither mandatory nor always essential to fairness:
Di Biase v. Vaughan (City), 2016 ONSC 5620 (CanLll), at paras. 148-149. Indeed, the
Municipal Act, subsection 223.5 (1), requires that an Integrity Commissioner “preserve
secrecy with respect to all matters that come to his or her knowledge in the course of his
or her duties.” Subsection 223.6 (2) makes an exception for disclosure in an inquiry report
of such matters as in the Integrity Commissioner’s opinion are necessary for the purposes
of the report. In this case, | am of the opinion that identifying the witnesses is necessary
for the report’s purposes.

POSITIONS OF THE PARTIES

Complainant’s Position

35. Ms Wallace notes that she was exercising her democratic right to engage with her
municipal representative. She states that her communications were factual and non-
threatening.

36.  She alleges that Councillor Mercer asked the police to visit her at home and to tell
her that Councillor Mercer did not want to receive her emails.

37. Ms Wallace alleges that the Councillor's conduct was “a blatant attempt to
intimidate, harass and bully me” and that the Councillor contacted the OPP in her capacity
as an elected official.

38.  On the specific question of why Ms Wallace used the Councillor's personal email
address (in addition to several emails that she sent to the Councillor's Township address,
Ms Wallace explains as follows:

A component of [Councillor Mercer's] complaint was that she was also receiving
emails to her personal email address. That is true, but those emails were concerning
the Strada quarry proposal, which as a Councillor she was forwarded as a matter of
courtesy so she could be informed. At one point, she emailed to demand that she
wasn't kept fully informed about the issue. Her complaint has been duly noted and
she will no longer receive any information about this important issue.

Additionally, everyone on that Strada email, list months ago, were requested to
advise by return email if they did not wish to receive further emails. At no time did
Margaret Mercer reply that she did not wish to receive emails to her personal email
about the issue.

39. On the issue of what the OPP constable told her, Ms Wallace states that she was
informed that it is legal to email elected officials and to post on social media content that
is factual and not threatening.

40. Ms Wallace denies that the OPP told her not to contact Councillor Mercer again.
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Respondent’s Position

41.  Councillor Mercer's initial response to me was that, “I contacted the OPP as a
resident of Melancthon after the Complainant made a death threat which she sent to me
by email and then posted on Facebook.”

42, According to the initial response, Councillor Mercer contacted the OPP for
personal safety reasons, and did so after consultation with family.

43. The Councillor states that she contacted the OPP in a personal capacity and not
as a Council Member. She notes that if she had intended to act in an official capacity then
she would have communicated through the Township’s CAO.

44.  Councillor Mercer's supplementary response maintained the position that she had
received a death threat from the Complainant. Excerpts from her supplementary
response appear below:

Let me reiterate that | take this death threat very seriously, as does my family. This
is my home and this is a personal policing matter.

Her persistent actions show disrespect for the police, and for my rights to personal
safety.

It must be stated: she instigated all contact with me from the outset; contact was
initiated by her. It is not welcome nor is it reciprocated.

When someone does not wish to respond, or engage, or has called the police, surely
that would be a signal to a reasonable person to back off, cease, desist, and just
stop.

She has a right to communicate with Council and the Township. She does not have
the right to harass individual council members and demand that they answer her in
a fashion that would suit her — particularly when uttering a death threat.

The death threat was a final straw indicating she had crossed the line and police
needed to be notified.

Clearly, | have reason to be concerned because even after police intervention she
continued to contact me. Police intervention had little to no effect on her.

She has not respected my personal boundaries. This is an attack.

At no time does the complainant’s right to online political discourse trump my right
for safety in my personal home. | have a right to feel safe here as a resident and to
call the police anytime | do not.
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It is her responsibility to conduct herself accordingly and respect police authority,
amongst other civic responsibilities.

| am concerned, as is my family, for my personal safety because in addition to this
death threat, online posts were also calling for residents to show up at my door. This
kind of rhetoric is alarming.

It is tantamount to civic unrest.

| have good reason to believe that she is a risk to my personal safety based on her
actions to date which indicate she wishes me harm. Death threats are a serious
matter particularly coming from someone who has a repeated pattern of using
intimidation to control others.

45.  During the written interview, | probed Councillor Mercer’s assertion that she had
been threatened with death. The only mention of death in Ms Wallace’s communications
was the following (and statements like it):

Here is the email | just sent to Council and YES Mercer did state on a Zoom meeting
everyone would be better off if Mr. Harvey Lyon were dead and YES he was on the
Zoom meeting.

46. It seems clear that Ms Wallace was alleging that Councillor Mercer had wished
someone dead, not threatened Councillor Mercer with death. In the interview, Councillor
Mercer addressed the death threat issue as follows:

| called the police because Ms. Wallace sent a threatening email which | perceived
as a death threat against a member of our community. As the Integrity Councillor is
aware, Ms. Wallace stated in her email to me:

“... and YES Mercer did state on a Zoom meeting everyone would be better
off if Mr. Harvey Lyon were dead and YES he was on the Zoom meeting ..."

| had made no such comment, and | was concemned that Ms. Wallace would use this
falsehood to do harm to Mr. Harvey Lyon under the guise that | was responsible. |
felt it was inappropriate to simply ignore the statement under these circumstances.

It was not a threat against me personally, but rather, a threat against another
individual (Mr. Harvey Lyon) that | believed she may act upon.

47.  During the interview, Councillor Mercer clarified that in order to explain the nature
of the email that she perceived as threatening, it was necessary to inform the OPP
constable that she was a municipal councillor. She explained, however, that she first
called the OPP she did not identify herself as a councillor.

48. In her initial* and supplementary responses, Councillor Mercer asserted that the
OPP asked Ms Wallace to cease communication with Councillor Mercer.

4 According to the initial response (February 18): “After the OPP went to her home and asked her
to cease communication with me, she emailed me again.”
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49. Councillor Mercer emphasized that, by continuing to send emails, Ms Wallace had
“defied” a police instruction:

The one constable phoned me after he attended her home. He said he specifically
told her not to contact me again.

She did contact me again by email and then posted it on Facebook which defies the
police request.

Clearly, | have reason to be concerned when an individual does not respect me, my
need for safety, and the request of a police officer to comply.

50. Councillor Mercer's supplementary response suggests that getting Ms Wallace to
stop emailing was a purpose of contacting the OPP:

Clearly, | have reason to be concerned because even after police intervention she
continued to contact me. Police intervention had little to no effect on her.

It is her responsibility to conduct herself accordingly and respect police authority,
amongst other civic responsibilities.

51. During the interview, however, Councillor Mercer maintained that she had not
asked the OPP to stop Ms Wallace from communicating:

Q. The police constable who responded to the call has stated that the purpose of
your call to the police was to have Ms Wallace stop contacting you. Did you ask
the police to stop Ms Wallace from contacting you?

A. The constable’s recollection as to the purpose of my call is incorrect. | called the
OPP on the evening of January 27 to report a frightening email that I'd received
when | was in my home later in the evening (around 9 PM). | was frightened by
the content of the email as it threatened the death of a community member. |
discussed the email with friends and family members who directed me to
immediately call the police. | called the OPP so they would be aware of the
content of the email to create a police report of what had happened and to
investigate. The threat was not “council business.”

| do not recall asking the police to stop Ms. Wallace from contacting me. The
purpose of the call was to deal with the threat described above ... | asked the
officer how to deal with Ms. Wallace and what my legal rights were in light of
this threatening email.

52.  According to Councillor Mercer, she did not ask the police constable to visit
Ms Wallace. The constable did so in his own discretion.

53.  Councillor Mercer agrees that Ms Walllace is entitled to contact a Council Member
about “relevant issues.” She states that Ms Wallace “is not entitled to threaten and harass
Council Members under the guise of public discourse.”

54. Through counsel, the Respondent argues that — except as required by the
Municipal Act, section 223.8 (see paragraphs 31 to 33, above) — an Integrity
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Commissioner lacks jurisdiction to consider whether the Criminal Code was contravened
and should not comment in a report on Criminal Code contraventions. The Respondent
also argues that | have no jurisdiction to comment on the Respondent’'s purpose in
contacting the police. | address these submissions under the Issue C heading, at
paragraphs 96 to 101.

55.  Through counsel, the Respondent submits that, as a matter of fairness, the inquiry
report must name all witnesses. | address this submission in paragraph 34, above.

FINDINGS OF FACT

56. Findings of fact appear in the Background section of this report, and below.
Findings are based on the evidence, according to the standard of the balance of
probabilities. Where accounts differ, | have made findings that are in harmony with the
preponderance of the probabilities based on all of the evidence.

57. | find that Councillor Mercer telephoned the OPP on January 27 and spoke to an
operator based in Orillia. The operator recorded the subject of the complaint as
“harassment.”

58. Police Constable Andrew Fines of the Dufferin County detachment was
dispatched. P.C. Fines spoke to Councillor Mercer by telephone, then visited Ms Wallace
at home, and then (according to usual procedure) phoned Councilior Mercer again to
follow up.

59.  Councillor Mercer is not a member of the Township of Melancthon Police Services
Board and has no responsibility for, or authority related to, policing. Before speaking to
her on January 27, P.C. Fines did not know who Councillor Mercer was and he had never
heard her name. | find as a fact that Councillor Mercer had no influence over the police
constable, and that nobody would reasonably perceive that she has influence over the
OPP generally.

60. Councillor Mercer did tell P.C. Fines that she was a Township of Melancthon
Council Member, but | find that she did not seek preferential treatment. | accept the
evidence of P.C. Fines that Councillor Mercer's complaint was handled no differently than
anyone’s similar complaint would have been addressed.

61. | also find that, in asking the OPP for a remedy (that is, asking that the
communications be stopped: see paragraph 66), Councillor Mercer was acting in the
capacity of someone who alleged she was being harassed and not relying on her position
as a Council Member.



14

62. | find that Councillor Mercer did not tell P.C. Fines that Ms Wallace had made a
death threat. | note the constable’s evidence that if a death threat had been mentioned
then he would had remembered it and would have recorded it in his notes.

63. The parties disagree on whether the police constable told Ms Wallace not to
contact Councillor Mercer again. (I note that Councillor Mercer did not witness what
P.C. Fines said to Ms Wallace; she only heard from the constable after the fact.) Where
the recollections of the parties differ, | rely primarily on the evidence of P.C. Fines and the
police occurrence report. | find that P.C. Fines began the conversation by conveying
Councillor Mercer's desire that Ms Wallace not email the Councillor again, but readily
accepted Ms Wallace's explanation that residents have the right to email their elected
officials. He did, however, ask Ms Wallace no longer to use the Councillor's personal
email address.

64. The discussion between Ms Wallace and the constable ended with Ms Wallace
agreeing not to use the Councillor's personal email address again, but confirming that
she would continue to email the Councillor at her Township email account. This finding
is consistent with the evidence of P.C. Fines, the statement of Ms Wallace, and the OPP
occurrence report.

65. P.C. Fines cautioned Ms Wallace not to spread false information. (Ms Wallace told
the constable, and maintains, that she did not communicate false information.)

66. On the question of whether Councillor Mercer asked the OPP to stop Ms Wallace
from communicating with her, | find, on balance of probabilities, that Councillor Mercer
did ask P.C. Fines to visit Ms Wallace to ask her to stop sending emails. | accept the
evidence of P.C. Fines, a disinterested witness, who testified that he went “to Ms
Wallace’s house as per the request of Ms Mercer.”

67.  According to the police constable, once at the home:

The conversation was pretty straightforward. | advised her the reason | was there,
and that “Ms Mercer would not like to receive communication from you anymore.”

68. As context for Councillor Mercer’'s request to him, P.C. Fines explained that it is
standard procedure to ask someone who has called for police assistance why the call
was made and what resolution was sought:

So, I always ask people | deal with: “What's going to satisfy you tonight? What is the
purpose of you calling me tonight?”

Her purpose was to have Ms Wallace stop contacting her. So, | went over to her
house and asked her to stop contacting.

69. Additional factors support the finding that Councillor Mercer had asked the OPP to
stop Ms Wallace from communicating with her. First, the OPP had logged Councillor
Mercer's call as a harassment complaint, and it is likely that someone who alleged
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harassment would have asked for the harassment to stop. Second, during the first month
of this inquiry, Councillor Mercer expressed concern that Ms Wailace had failed to comply
with an (alleged) police request to stop contacting the Councillor. Her comments about a
police request to cease contact are consistent with my finding that she had asked the
police to convey that message.

70. In fairness to Councillor Mercer,® | gave her an opportunity to address the
constable’s evidence that the purpose of her call to the police was to have Ms Wallace
stop contacting her. (My question and the Councillor's answer are reproduced at
paragraph 51, above.) Councillor Mercer maintained that the recollection of P.C. Fines
is incorrect. Yet she also stated, “| do not recall asking the police to stop Ms. Wallace
from contacting me.” [emphasis added]

71. My finding that Councillor Mercer did ask P.C. Fines to visit Ms Wallace to tell her
to stop sending emails takes into account the Councillor's evidence as well as the
evidence of the constable, the police report, and other relevant evidence.

72. | find as a fact that Councillor Mercer did not tell the OPP that Ms Wallace had
made a death threat. Councillor Mercer's interview evidence supports this finding.

73.  While | find that Councillor Mercer’'s purpose in calling the police was to silence
further criticism from Ms Wallace, for the reasons explained in the next section, this finding
does not mean that Councillor Mercer contravened the Code.

74. Finally, | find as a fact that the OPP, in the person of P.C. Fines, took Councillor
Mercer’s call seriously, acted on it, and attempted to achieve a resolution. | find that the
police did not treat Councillor Mercer’s concern as frivolous, vexatious, or groundless.

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS

75. | have considered the following issues:

A. Did Councillor Mercer attempt to interfere with police independence?

B. Does an Integrity Commissioner otherwise have jurisdiction over a Council
Member’'s complaint to the police?

C. Given the disposition of Issue B, what are the limits of the opinions and
findings in this report?

D. Did Councillor Mercer misuse the influence of office contrary to section 1.3
of the Code?

E. Did Councillor Mercer harass the Complainant contrary to section 1.15 of
the Code?

5 See Browne v. Dunn, 1893 CanLll 65 (FOREP), 6 R. 67 (H.L.), at 71, and R. v. Lyttle, 2004 SCC 5
(CanLlIl), [2004] 1 S.C.R. 193, at para. 65.
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Issue A: Did Councillor Mercer attempt to interfere with police
independence?

76. No.

77. Police independence underpins the rule of law.” A fundamental, Canadian legal
principle is that the independence of law enforcement must be free from political
interference. The police must not be subject to political direction.®

78. Interference or attempted interference with police independence would be contrary
to the Code of Conduct, in particular, section 1.3, which prohibits the use of the influence
of office for a purpose unrelated to official duties. See: Gobin v. Nicholson, 2020 ONMIC
13 (CanLll), at paras. 67-69; Re Partner, 2018 ONMIC 16 (CanLll), at paras. 136-141;
Greatrix v. Williams, 2018 ONMIC 6 (CanLIl), at paras. 46, 50.

79. In this case, there is no evidence that Councillor Mercer attempted to interfere in
the independence of the OPP. | have found (paragraphs 59 to 6160) that she did not
possess any influence over the OPP, including P.C. Fines, that no one would reasonably
perceive that she had such influence, that she did not seek preferential treatment, and
that in asking to stop future communications she acted in the capacity of someone who
alleged she was being harassed and did not rely on her position as a Council Member.

80. Merely seeking police assistance does not mean that a politician is attempting to
give political direction or to interfere with police independence. Elected officials have the
same rights as other individuals to request help from the police. There is a difference
between the improper act of attempting to give political direction and the perfectly
legitimate act of complaining to the police when one feels victimized.

81.  Support for this analysis is found in Re Grimes, 2022 ONMIC 9 (CanLll), at
paras. 52-53. In that case, City of Toronto Integrity Commissioner Jonathan Batty found
that the Council Member complied with the Code of Conduct when he followed proper
channels to inform law enforcement officials of alleged unlawful activity, without
attempting to them about what they needed to do. | agree with Integrity Commissioner
Batty that reporting a concern to the police through proper channels, without giving
direction, does not constitute political interference with police independence.

7 R.v. Campbell, 1999 CanLll 676 (SCC), [1999] 1 S.C.R. 565, at para. 28.

8 R.v. Campbell, at para. 33; Smith v. Ontario (Attorney General), 2019 ONCA 651 (CanLll), at paras.
62-63.
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Issue B: Does an Integrity Commissioner otherwise have
jurisdiction over a Council Member’s complaint to the police?

82. No. While the attempt to give political direction to the police or to interfere with the
independence of law enforcement would be subject to the applicable code of conduct, an
Integrity Commissioner does not otherwise have jurisdiction to oversee and second-
guess a Council Member’s request for police assistance.

83. As explained above (paragraphs 29 to 33), under section 223.8 of the Municipal
Act, an Integrity Commissioner must consider whether the facts in an inquiry give
reasonable grounds to believe that there has been a contravention of an Ontario Act
(other than the Municipal Act and the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act) or of the Criminal
Code. Where such reasonable grounds exist, the Integrity Commissioner must
immediately refer the matter to the police and suspend the inquiry.

84. In my view, there were not, and there still are not, reasonable grounds to believe
that legislation, including the Criminal Code, has been contravened. That is why |
continued the inquiry and did not make a referral to the police.

85. My determination relates only to my obligations, as Integrity Commissioner, under
section 223.8. Because | am aware of no reasonable grounds for belief that the
Complainant’'s emails and posts breached the law (including the criminal harassment
provision of the Criminal Code), | did not notify the police. My determination is not,
however, a finding that Councillor Mercer was wrong to contact the police. Section 223.8
confers on me no jurisdiction to determine whether a Council Member properly or
improperly sought police assistance. Indeed, section 223.8 reflects a clear legislative
intent that Integrity Commissioners have no business interpreting and applying the
criminal law.

86. My opinion, that there exist no reasonable grounds to believe that Ms Wallace’'s
emails and posts breached the Criminal Code, is relevant only to my own obligation under
section 223.8. My opinion is irrelevant to whether Councillor Mercer contravened the
Code by contacting the OPP. A Council Member does not need Integrity Commissioner
approval to request police assistance.

87. It cannot be the case that a Council Member may contact the police only if an
Integrity Commissioner believes on reasonable grounds that the law was broken. Neither
the Municipal Act nor the Code of Conduct provide this.

88.  Atparagraph 73, | have found that Councillor Mercer’s purpose in calling the police
was to silence further criticism from Ms Wallace. In my view, however, this finding does
not establish a Code of Conduct contravention.
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89. Itis beyond the scope of Codes of Conduct and Integrity Commissioners to decide
when and whether municipal councillors may request police assistance. Integrity
Commissioners possess no special expertise in interpreting the Criminal Code. It is not
in the public interest to discourage people, including elected officials, from seeking the
assistance of law enforcement. This is particularly the case when an elected official or
family member feels threatened. In that circumstance, whether an Integrity Commissioner
believes that the threat is real is of secondary importance. To discourage people who
feel threatened from requesting police assistance can obviously have potentially
dangerous repercussions.

90. In the event that a complaint to the police is made without justification, then the
criminal law and the police, not codes of conduct and Integrity Commissioners, are
appropriately suited to address the situation.®

91. In this case, the police treated Councillor Mercer's concern seriously and
attempted to resolve the matter. The OPP did not treat the Councillor's complaint as
frivolous. There is no evidence that the OPP viewed Councillor Mercer’s call as improper
or an abuse of the law enforcement process. Indeed, the constable who responded
attempted to resolve the issue, and advised Ms Wallace about appropriate
communication. In this context, my opinion (in relation to section 223.8) — that nothing
written by the Ms Wallace gave reasonable grounds to believe that she had broken a law
—is irrelevant to the Code of Conduct issue. The OPP clearly viewed Councillor Mercer's
call as worthy of a response and settlement efforts; it would be inappropriate for me to
conclude that Councillor Mercer should not have contacted the OPP in the first place.

92. | am mindful of the fact that, in a democracy, people possess every right to
communicate with their elected representatives. This includes the right to criticize.'®
Indeed, politicians must expect that they will be subject to searching criticism, even
castigation by members of the public.!! As the Chief Justice of Canada observed in 1938,
criticism makes our democratic institutions strong:

There can be no controversy that such institutions derive their efficacy from the free
public discussion of affairs, from criticism and answer and counter-criticism, from
attack upon policy and administration and defence and counter-attack; from the
freest and fullest analysis and examination from every point of view of political
proposals.2

9 See, for example, Criminal Code, s. 140 (public mischief).

10 McLaughlin v. Maynard, 2017 ONSC 6820 (CanLll), at para. 69; Savard ¢. Emond, 2002 CanLll 32769
(QC CA), at para. 31.

' Martin v. The Manitoba Free Press Co., 1892 CanLll 196 (MB CA), 8 Man. R. 50 at 72; Vander Zalm
v. Times Publishers, 1980 CanLlIl 389 (BC CA), at para. 5; Vellacott v Saskatoon Starphoenix Group
Inc., 2012 SKQB 359 (CanLll), at para. 48; Kent v Martin, 2016 ABQB 314 (CanLlIl).

12 Reference re Alberta Statutes, [1938] S.C.R. 100, at 133, cited with approval in Reference re
Remuneration of Judges of the Provincial Court of Prince Edward Island; Reference re Independence



19

93. Nobody who expresses an opinion to a government official should be subject to
reprisal, including a visit from the police. On the other hand, everyone's conduct must be
lawful. All Canadians — government officials included - are entitled to contact the police
when they feel threatened or subjected to unlawful behaviour.

94. The issue is whether an Integrity Commissioner may sit in judgement of an elected
official’s request for police assistance — whether an Integrity Commissioner can assess
that a threat is real and a call to the police is reasonable. Subject to the obligation created
by section 223.8 of the Municipal Act, making threat assessments is not the Integrity
Commissioner’s role, nor should it be. Integrity Commissioners possess neither the
expertise nor the statutory authority to assess threats or to make findings about the
reasonableness of contacting the police.

95. Insummary, itis not my place to determine whether Councillor Mercer was justified
in contacting the police. She had the right to do so. As | have noted, regardless of my
determination under section 223.8, the OPP took Councillor Mercer’s concern seriously,
communicated with both parties, and attempted to resolve the matter.

Issue C: Given the disposition of Issue B, what are the limits of
the comments and findings in this report?

96. In response to the draft, Mr. Donald, counsel for the Respondent, argues that,
having found an Integrity Commissioner lacks jurisdiction to decide when and whether a
Council Member may request police assistance, | must not state an opinion on whether
the Respondent was actually threatened and | must not make any finding about the
Respondent's purpose in contacting the OPP. For the reasons that follow, | accept the
first part of the argument, and not the second part.

97. Except as required by section 223.8 of the Municipal Act, an Integrity
Commissioner lacks jurisdiction to consider whether the Criminal Code was contravened.
As explained above, section 223.8 provides for a referral to the police, not for making
findings in an inquiry report. No section of the Municipal Act confers authority to include
criminal findings in a report such as this one.

98. The criminal harassment provision of the Criminal Code, section 264, reads, in
part, as follows:

(1) No person shall, without lawful authority and knowing that another person is
harassed or recklessly as to whether the other person is harassed, engage in
conduct referred to in subsection (2) that causes that other person reasonably, in all
the circumstances, to fear for their safety or the safety of anyone known to them.

and Impartiality of Judges of the Provincial Court of Prince Edward Island, [1997] 3 S.C.R. 3, at 74.
See also: G. Giorno, Judicial Activism and the Constitution, Canada Watch 8:1 (October 2000) 13, 15.
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(2) The conduct mentioned in subsection (1) consists of

(a) repeatedly following from place to place the other person or anyone known
to them;

(b) repeatedly communicating with, either directly or indirectly, the other person
or anyone known to them;

(c) besetting or watching the dwelling-house, or place where the other person,
or anyone known to them, resides, works, carries on business or happens
to be; or

(d) engaging in threatening conduct directed at the other person or any
member of their family.

99. | accept the Respondent’s submission that this report must not state any opinion
about whether conduct described in section 264 of the Criminal Code occurred. It must
not state an opinion on whether the Respondent was actually threatened.

100. An Integrity Commissioner may only make findings related to whether the Code of
Conduct was breached: see Baker v. Ryan, 2019 ONMIC 4 (CanLll), at para. 47.
An Integrity Commissioner must not make findings about criminality, and should not opine
about criminality. Consequently, | refrain from stating an opinion on whether Councillor
Mercer was actually threatened.

101. Counsel also argues that | may not make any finding about Councillor Mercer’s
purpose in contacting the OPP. In my view, the purpose of her call to the police is relevant
to compliance with the Code of Conduct, including section 1.3, which incorporates the
requirement of non-interference with police independence. Consequently, the finding
about the purpose of the call to the police (which was included in the draft on which the
Respondent commented) remains in this report.

Issue D: Did Councillor Mercer misuse the influence of her office,
contrary to section 1.3 of the Code?

102. No. Given the disposition of Issues A and B, | conclude that Councillor Mercer did
not misuse the influence of her office. She did not interfere with police independence.
She was exercising her right to report a perceived threat to the police. Regardless of my
opinion of the threat level, it is not my place to second-guess her exercise of that right.

103. Further, in the circumstances of this case, | have found that, when she
communicated with the OPP on January 27, Councillor Mercer was not making use of the
influence of her office as a Township Council Member. Since she was not using the
influence of her office, she cannot be said to have used the influence in a manner contrary
to section 1.3 of the Code.
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Issue E: Did Councillor Mercer harass the Complainant, contrary
to section 1.15 of the Code?

104. No.

105. The Code of Conduct adopts the Human Rights Code definition:

"harassment” means engaging in a course of vexatious comment or conduct that is
known or ought reasonably to be known to be unwelcome [emphasis added]

106. Neither the Township’'s Code of Conduct nor the Human Rights Code defines
“course” or “vexatious,” but the meanings of these words have been considered
numerous times by the Supreme Court of Canada, Ontario courts, boards of inquiry, and
the Human Rights Tribunal. An Integrity Commissioner cannot invent new definitions for
legal terminology, but instead should apply the accepted meanings found in the Ontario
jurisprudence.

107. A course of conduct or course of comment is an essential ingredient of
harassment. The word “course” generally refers to a pattern of activity.'® As the Supreme
Court of Canada observed, “It is certainly difficult to see a course of conduct in a single
incident.”** Unless the conduct is egregious or a comment is particularly virulent,s a
single incident does not amount to a course of conduct and therefore is not harassment.'®
The allegation in this inquiry relates to a single incident (Councillor Mercer's January 27
call to the police) and, on that basis alone, the conduct is not harassment.

108. Section 1.15 of the Code of Conduct and section 10 of the Human Rights Code (to
which the Code of Conduct refers) also use the term “vexatious.” For the reasons that
follow, it is impossible to conclude that Councillor Mercer’s cali to the OPP was vexatious.

109.  According to the case law, “vexatious” has two different meanings, depending on
the context in which is it used.

110. In the human rights context, when applied to comments and conduct:

The term “vexatious” clearly imports a subjective element into the definition of
harassment. The comment or conduct must be annoying, distressing or agitating to
the person complaining: see Wall v. University of Waterloo (1995), 1995 CanLll
18161 (ON HRT), 27 C.H.RR. D/44 (Ont. Bd. Inq.). It has also been said that
conduct is vexatious where the complainant finds the comments and conduct

3 Rodgers v. Hydro One Networks, 2011 HRTO 877 (CanLll), at para. 65.
% Honda Canada Inc. v. Keays, 2008 SCC 39 (CanLlIl), [2008] 2 SCR 362, at para. 73.

5 Grigorakis v. Essex County Soccer Association, 2012 HRTO 906 (CanLll) at para. 22; B.C. v. London
Police Services Board, 2011 HRTO 1644 (CanLll), at paras. 46-48.

16 Alli v. Region of Waterloo Public Health Department, 2019 HRTO 1564 (CanLll), at para. 16; Morrison
v. King (Township), 2016 HRTO 667 (CanLll), at para. 12; Szabo v. Niagara (Regional Municipality),
2010 HRTO 1083 (CanLll), at para. 54
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worrisome, discomfiting and demeaning; see Saunders v. Morsal Developments
Ltd. (August 23, 1995), No. 718 (Ont. Bd. Inqg.)."”

On the other hand, when used to describe to lawsuits, legal proceedings, and
formal complaints (including human rights complaints), “vexatious” has a different
meaning. Often it is interpreted to refer to a proceeding that cannot succeed,'® that is
commenced maliciously without good cause,'® or initiated without sufficient?® or
reasonable grounds.?! According to Black’s Law Dictionary, an action is vexatious “when
the party bringing it is not acting bona fide, and merely wishes to annoy or embarrass his
opponent, or when it is not calculated to lead to any practical result’?? Other judicial

applications of the word “vexatious” have been summarized as follows:

(a) the bringing of one or more actions to determine an issue which has already
been determined by a court of competent jurisdiction constitutes a vexatious
proceeding;

(b) where it is obvious that an action cannot succeed, or if the action would lead to
no possible good, or if no reasonable person can reasonably expect to obtain relief,
the action is vexatious;

(c) vexatious actions include those brought for an improper purpose, including the
harassment and oppression of other parties by multifarious proceedings brought for
purposes other than the assertion of legitimate rights;

(d) it is a general characteristic of vexatious proceedings that grounds and issues
raised tend to be rolled forward into subsequent actions and repeated and
supplemented, often with actions brought against the lawyers who have acted for or
against the litigant in earlier proceedings;

(e) in determining whether proceedings are vexatious, the court must look at the
whole history of the matter and not just whether there was originally a good cause
of action;

(f) the failure of the person instituting the proceedings to pay the costs of
unsuccessful proceedings is one factor to be considered in determining whether
proceedings are vexatious;

(9) the respondent's conduct in persistently taking unsuccessful appeals from
judicial decisions can be considered vexatious conduct of legal proceedings.

17
18
19
20

21

22
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Streeter v. HR Technologies, 2009 HRTO 841 at para. 33.
Mascan Corp. v. French, 1988 CanLlIl 5747 (Ont. C.A)), at para. 17.
John v. Samuel, 2018 ONSC 5651 (CanLll), at para. 24.

Law Society of Upper Canada v. Chavali, 1998 CarswellOnt 1581 at para. 20; aff'd 1998 CanLIl 5043
(Ont. C.A).

Vatamanu v. Baird, 2009 CarswellOnt 8045 (S.C.), at para. 36, Elguindy v. Koren (2008), [2009] O.J.
No. 764 (S.C.), at para. 46.

Carby-Samuels v. Carby-Samuels I, 2017 ONSC 6834 (CanLll), at para. 2, citing Black’s Law
Dictionary, in The Law Dictionary (online).

Re Lang Michener and Fabian, 1987 CanLIl 172, 59 O.R. (2d) 353 (H.C.J.), at para. 20.
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112. The most significant difference between the two meanings of “vexatious” is found
in their subjective and objective elements. In the harassment context, “vexatious” is
assessed entirely subjectively, from the perspective of the person affected by the conduct.
In the context of proceedings and complaints, “vexatious” has an objective element
(whether the proceeding lacks reasonable grounds and chance of success) and the
subjective element, when applicable, is the intention of the person initiating the
proceeding or complaint.?4

113. Here, the conduct that is alleged to constitute harassment was a complaint to law
enforcement. It is clear that Councillor Mercer's call to the police and the constable’s
subsequent visit to Ms Wallace’'s home were unwelcome to Ms Wallace. Nonetheless, in
light of the jurisprudence, because this case deals with a request for police assistance,
the word “vexatious” cannot be determined subjectively by reference to Ms Wallace's
perception. If every call to the police were assessed subjectively based on the feelings
of the person complained about, then almost every call to the police would be “vexatious”
and constitute harassment. This cannot be the standard by which calls to the police are
judged.

114. The OPP did not treat Councillor Mercer’s call as vexatious. The OPP did not treat
her complaint as groundless, incapable of success, or made in bad faith and without good
cause. In light of the OPP response, it is impossible to describe Councillor Mercer's call
to the police as “vexatious” conduct under section 1.15 of the Code. (Further, as | have
already explained, an Integrity Commissioner is not in a position to assess the merits of
an elected official’'s request for police assistance.) Consequently, Councillor Mercer's
January 27 contact with the OPP did not constitute harassment of Ms Wallace.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

115. This report finds no contravention of the Code of Conduct. | recommend that
Council receive it for information.

CONTENT

116. Subsection 223.6 (2) of the Municipal Act states that | may disclose in this report
such matters as in my opinion are necessary for the purposes of the report. All the content
of this report is, in my opinion, necessary.

24 Carby-Samuels v. Carby-Samuels I/, 2017 ONSC 6834 (CanLll), at footnotes 1-2.



Respectfully submitted,

Guy Giorno
Integrity Commissioner
Township of Melancthon

May 31, 2022
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APPENDIX: EXCERPTS FROM CODE OF
CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS OF COUNCIL AND
MEMBERS OF LOCAL BOARDS

1.3

1.15

1.16

The Council of Melancthon Council and Local Boards Code of Conduct is a
general standard that augments the provincial laws and municipal By-laws that
govern conduct. It is not intended to replace personal ethics.

All Members shall serve their constituents in a conscientious and diligent
manner. No member shall use the influence of office for any purpose other than
the exercise of their official duties.

Harassment is defined in accordance with the Ontario Human Rights Code as
vexatious comment or conduct that is unwelcome or ought reasonably to be
known to be unwelcome.

Members of Council and Members of Local Boards acknowledge that every
person who is a Councillor or employee has a right to freedom from harassment
in the workplace.

Harassment of another Member, Staff or any Member of the Public is
misconduct.

Workplace bullying is defined as “repeated” unreasonable behaviour directed
towards an employee or a group of Staff, that creates a risk to health and safety.
Unreasonable behaviour can be defined as behaviour that harms, intimidates,
threatens, victimizes, undermines, offends, degrades or humiliates another Staff
Member/s.

Bullying another Member of Council, Board Member, Staff or any Member of the
Public is misconduct.
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Melancthon Township Celebrates 169" Anniversary

with Annual Park Party

MELANCTHON - Melancthon Township always celebrated it’s Anniversary with a party at the Horning’s
Mills Community Park every June. Community and beyond gathered for a fun late afternoon event that
brought hundreds to the hamlet’s recreation park. BBQ, musical performances, bouncy castles , kids’
games and our very own first responders. The evening was finalized with a spectacular fireworks display.

Then came the pandemic.

On Saturday June 25th, we will gather again at the Park and celebrate our community. We start the day
at the Horning’s Mills Community Hall (Main St. and River Rd.) with a vendors’ market that will run from
10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

Activities will then shift to the Horning’s Mills Park (15" Sideroad & Main St), starting at 3:00 p.m. These
activities will include a First Responder Challenge that will see firefighters, paramedics and others
compete against each other in a tug-of-war and obstacle course.

A Bouncy Castle will entertain the kiddies, as well as an activity area , games, and the Park playground.

Then our firefighters will host a BBQ of yummy fare which includes hamburgers (meat and vegan),
hotdogs, sausages and ice cream! All proceeds go to the Fire halls.

Our musical performance of the evening will be by community favourite, Gary Heaslip & band.

We recommend bringing chairs and blankets, so you can be comfortable watching a professional
fireworks show around sunset.

Join us in celebrating our history, our present and our future as we gather together again.
For more information:
Nanci Malek

bentertainment@rogers.com

Indott

HiaL 4 £ 20292
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Please see attached for the Melancthon Pit #2 and Bonnefield Property 2021 Amphibian Monitoring Report.
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Kathryn Hoo

Kathryn Hoo <khoo®@nrsi.on.ca>
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1.0 Introduction

Natural Resource Solutions Inc. (NRSI) was retained in 2021 by Strada Aggregates to continue
an annual anuran (frog and toad) monitoring program for Melancthon Pit #2 (also known as
Shelburne South Pit), located on 4™ Line in the Township of Melancthon, Dufferin County (Map
1). The annual monitoring program was recommended in the Level 1 and 2 Natural
Environment Assessment (NEA) reports for the subject property as completed by NRSI and
recommended by Michalski Nielson in their review of the NEA Level 2 report (NRSI 2010).

In accordance with the Integrated Monitoring Plan for biological and hydrogeological monitoring
within the existing and future Strada Aggregates pit operations (Appendix 1), NRS| expanded
this monitoring program in 2018 to integrate additional anuran monitoring within the future
Bonnefield property pit expansion (see Map 1). Annual monitoring at the wetland located on the
Bonnefield property was recommended in NRSI's NEA report for the Prince and Bonnefield
properties (NRSI 2017), which documented the presence of breeding amphibians within the
wetland during 2016 surveys. Monitoring in 2018 to 2021 documented additional baseline data
on breeding amphibian species presence and relative abundance prior to aggregate extraction.
The future Bonnefield property pit expansion will be fully integrated with the existing aggregate
operations at Melancthon Pits #1 and #2.

The monitoring program was designed to include the following:

1. Annual monitoring of the on-site wetlands to understand the presence and abundance of
breeding amphibians (NRSI), and,

2. Annual surface and groundwater monitoring to assess water level fluctuations in the
small on-site wetland pockets (Whitewater Hydrogeology).

Aggregate extraction operations at Melancthon Pit #2 commenced in 2014, including
construction of facility structures (e.g., truck laneways, scale house installation). 2021 therefore
represented the 8" year of facility operation on the property. Sediment and erosion control
fencing was maintained as shown on the original Operational Plan prepared by MHBC (2010).
Existing on-site wetland features have been maintained in accordance with the Operational
Plan. 2021 also represented the 4" year of annual biological and hydrogeological monitoring at
the Bonnefield property wetland following 2016 surveys completed as part of the natural
environment and hydrogeological studies undertaken for the pit expansion license and
municipal planning approval (NRSI 2017, Whitewater Hydrogeology 2017). See Map 1 for the
Melancthon Pit #2 and Bonnefield property locations.

This report summarizes the results of anuran surveys completed in 2021 at both Melancthon Pit
#2 and the Bonnefield property. The results of the Melancthon Pit surveys were compared to
baseline (pre-extraction) data collected by NRSI in 2009 (as part of the NEA Level 2 study) and
2013. Operational-stage data (2014-2021) were also examined for any trends or notable
variations in data among years within the operational stage of the pit. The Bonnefield property
surveys documented additional baseline data on breeding amphibian species presence and
relative abundance at this site prior to aggregate extraction.

The overall objective of this study is to monitor temporal breeding anuran species presence and
relative abundance (i.e., calling codes; see Methods below) within and between the pre-
extraction and operational phases of Melancthon Pit #2 and the Bonnefield property pit

Natural Resource Solutions Inc. 1
Summary of 2021 Biological Survey Results



expansion within an integrated study. Anuran survey results are also compared against annual
surface water and groundwater monitoring data, collected by Whitewater Hydrogeology Ltd, to

assess potential relationships with anuran breeding habitat conditions. [f significant changes in
biological and hydrological conditions are observed, it may suggest negative impacts caused by

pit operations, and may trigger the need for additional recommendations to adequately address
and mitigate those impacts.

Natural Resource Solutions Inc. 2
Summary of 2021 Biological Survey Results



2.0 Methods

2.1 Anuran Call Surveys

Anuran call surveys were completed at Melancthon Pit #2 and the Bonnefield property during
three night-time survey visits on April 8, May 17 and June 24, 2021, following the Marsh
Monitoring Program survey protocol (Bird Studies Canada 2009). All stations that were
surveyed in 2020 were again surveyed in 2021 (Map 2).

Using standardized survey forms, NRSI biologists identified by sound all species that were
calling within 50m, 50-100m, or greater than 100m from the station during a 3-minute passive
listening period. For each documented species, a three-level calling code system was used as
a qualitative measure of relative abundance. Calling code 1 was used when abundances were
low enough that the number of calling individuals could be estimated and calls did not overlap;
calling code 2 was used when the calls overlapped somewhat but the number of individuals
could still be estimated; calling code 3 was used when the group was calling as a full chorus
and it was not possible to estimate number of individuals. Each species recorded on the survey
form was written with a corresponding calling code; for calling codes 1 or 2, the estimated
number of individuals was also recorded. Wherever possible, water temperature and pH were
recorded on the survey form in addition to other ambient condition data (e.g., air temperature,
wind, precipitation). Surveys occurred between a half-hour after sunset and midnight, and the
survey time was recorded on the forms during each visit. Surveys were completed during
appropriate weather and temperature conditions as outlined in the survey protocol (Bird Studies
Canada 2009).

2.2 Hydrological, Hydrogeological and Water Quality Monitoring

2021 was the 8" year in which surface water level data was collected at two stations within
Melancthon Pit #2, and the 3™ year in which surface water level data was collected at one
station within the Bonnefield property, by Whitewater Hydrogeology as part of the compliance
monitoring program required as a condition of the pit Site Plan. The water level monitoring
points within Melancthon Pit #2 correspond to anuran survey stations ANR-001 (i.e., the “North
Pond”) and ANR-005 (the “South Pond”) as shown on Map 1. The water level monitoring points
within the Bonnefield property correspond to anuran survey station ANR-009 (i.e., the “Shallow
Marsh Wetland”) and a small vernal pool located approximately 60m south of ANR-009 (i.e. the
“Vernal Pool’), as shown on Map 1. Water level monitoring of the North and South Ponds was
completed during mid-May to early November 2021, using water level loggers. Water level
monitoring at the Shallow Marsh Wetland and Vernal Pool was limited in 2021 due to on-going
vandalism. See the 2021 Groundwater and Surface Water Monitoring Report, Shelburne Pits 1-
4 (Whitewater Hydrogeology 2022) for further details about water level survey methodology.

Groundwater level monitoring was also completed by Whitewater Hydrogeology within
Melancthon Pit #2 and the Bonnefield property in 2021, as reported in the 2027 Groundwater
and Surface Water Monitoring Report. Within Melancthon Pit #2, groundwater level data was
collected at two stations that corresponded to areas at or near amphibian monitoring stations.
Specifically, these monitoring wells were placed adjacent to the North Pond (ANR-001) and
between anuran stations ANR-006 and 007a (see Whitewater Hydrogeology 2022).
Groundwater monitoring at ANR-001 consisted of a deep overburden (Tavistock Till) well
(OW10A in Whitewater Hydrogeology (2022)), while groundwater monitoring near stations ANR-
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006 and ANR-007a (OWB6A) consisted of a shallow (sand and gravel) groundwater well. OW6A
is also adjacent to the wash pond that was put into use beginning in 2017. For the purposes of
this report, results from OWBA are presented, including an analysis of the possible localized
effect of the wash pond on shallow groundwater. The shallow groundwater well at ANR-001
that was monitored in previous years was not monitored in 2018-2021. This shallow
groundwater well was dry the majority of the year and the true overburden water table is
therefore monitored by the deep overburden well (T. White, Whitewater Hydrogeology, pers.
comm., January 2020).

Within the Bonnefield property, groundwater level data was collected at one location in 2021:
wells OW18A/OW18B in the northeastern portion of the property. As described by Whitewater
Hydrogeology (2022), monitors ‘A’ are shallow groundwater wells if the sand and gravel unit is
saturated; otherwise, they are situated in the Tavistock Till. Monitors ‘B’ are constructed in the
bedrock contact aquifer system.

Surface water quality was measured for the North and South Ponds, as reported by Whitewater
Hydrogeology (2022). Measured parameters included pH, conductivity, dissolved oxygen,
temperature and total dissolved solids, as well as an analysis of volatile organic compounds and
petroleum hydrocarbons. Samples for surface water quality analysis were collected during the
spring and fall, following the standard semi-annual sampling timeline.
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3.0 Anuran Survey Results

3.1 Melancthon Pit #2

A total of 5 anuran species were recorded within Melancthon Pit #2 across all 2021 site visits:
e American Toad (Bufo americanus),

Northern Leopard Frog (Lithobates pipiens),

Wood Frog (Lithobates sylvatica),

Spring Peeper (Pseudacris crucifer crucifer), and

Green Frog (Rana clamitans melanota).

Spring Peeper has been recorded at Melancthon Pit #2 every year since 2013, while Wood Frog
and American Toad have been recorded every year since 2013, with the exception of one year,
2018 and 2019, respectively. Gray Treefrog was recorded every year from 2013 to 2020, but
was not recorded in 2021. Green Frog has been recorded every year since 2013, with the
exception of two years, 2016 and 2018, while 2021 represents the fifth year that Northern
Leopard Frog was recorded (along with 2016-2018 and 2020). Western Chorus Frog
(Pseudacris triseriata) (Great Lakes-St. Lawrence/Canadian Shield population), is designated
as Threatened under the federal Species at Risk Act and is considered a Species of
Conservation Concern (SCC) in Ontario. This species was recorded by NRSI biologists within
the subject property during 2009 surveys, but has not been recorded during annual amphibian
call surveys completed since 2013.

Table 1 presents a summary of anuran survey results across all 2021 site visits. See Appendix
Il for detailed survey results by site visit. Appendix 11l presents the resuits of weather and
temperature conditions recorded during each survey.

Among species, Spring Peeper was observed to be most abundant across monitoring stations
during the 2021 survey period, followed by Wood Frog. Spring Peeper was recorded at full
chorus at 4 stations across all visits (ANR-001, 003, 004, and 005), and was also recorded at
station ANR-007b with a maximum of 2 individuals. Wood Frog was recorded at full chorus at
ANR-003 and 004 and was also recorded at stations ANR-001, 005 and 007b, with a maximum
of 5, 3 and 4 individuals detected, respectively. These results for Wood Frog are similar to
results in 2017, and an increase from 2018-2020 results

During the 2021 survey period, American Toad, Green Frog and Northern Leopard Frog were
observed to occur in low abundances on the subject property, with each species detected at
one, one and two stations, respectively, with a maximum of three, two and one individual(s)
detected, respectively. For American Toad and Northern Leopard Frog, this is a slight increase
from 2019 results when these species were not detected, and is similar to 2020 results. For
Green Frog, this result is similar to results in both 2019 and 2020.

Gray Treefrog was not recorded during surveys in 2021, after having been recorded every year
since 2013. These results therefore represent a decrease in abundance of Gray Treefrog
compared to all previous years of monitoring since 2013.

The station with the highest species richness in 2021 was ANR-001, which had 4 anuran
species heard across visits. This represents an increase from 3 species recorded at station
ANR-001 in 2020. This station was followed by ANR-005, which had 3 anuran species across
visits, and 3 stations (ANR-003, 004 and 007b) which each had 2 anuran species across visits.
These results represent an increase from 2 species recorded at station ANR-005 and 1 species
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Table 1: Summary of maximum calling codes and maximum abundance estimates by species during 2021 site visits for

Melancthon Pit #2 and the Bonnefield property wetland (ANR-009).

Species Detected b

/ Monitoring Station

SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME
ANR- ANR- ANR- ANR- ANR- ANR- ANR- ANR- ANR- ANR-
001 002 003 004 005 006 007a 007b 008a 009
o | 2 o | & 0| 2] @ clo| | | o | & o ([ g|lo| |9 c
T = v = T - -] 3 T - T = T 5 T = v = -} s
HEIBEIRIEIEIE IR E IR EIRIE I E IR AL
Bufo americanus American Toad 2 3
Lithobates pipiens :;'fo’;hem Leopard | 4 | 4 1
Lithobates sylvatica Wood Frog 2 5 3 3 1 3 2 | 4 3
Pseudacris crucifer crucifer | Spring Peeper 3 3 3 1 2 3
Rana clamitans melanota Green Frog
6
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recorded at stations ANR-003 and 007b in 2020, and a decrease from 3 species recorded at
ANR-004 in 2020. Stations ANR-002, 006, 007a and 008a had the lowest species richness with
no species heard across visits, which represents a decrease from 3 species recorded at station
ANR-008a and 1 species recorded at stations ANR-002 and 007a in 2020, and represents no
change for ANR-006.

Anuran abundances were highest at stations ANR-001, 003, 004, and 005, each having 1 or 2
occurrences of call code 3. This was followed by station ANR-007b, which had 2 species
detected at calling code 1 and 2, with 2 to 4 individuals of each species, respectively. Stations
ANR-002, 006, 007a and 008a had no individuals detected.

3.2 Bonnefield Property (ANR-009)

A total of 2 anuran species were recorded within the Bonnefield property across all 2021 site
visits:

¢ Wood Frog, and

e Spring Peeper.

Spring Peeper and Wood Frog have been detected in all 5 survey years since baseline
monitoring began in 2016. In 2021, both species were detected at a call code of 3 (full chorus).
Gray Treefrog was not detected in 2021, after having been detected in 2016 and 2020. The
SCC Western Chorus Frog was also not detected in 2021 after having been detected in 2018 (2
individuals at ANR-009), but not in 2019 or 2020.

No anuran calling activity was incidentally recorded in 2021 within a small vernal pool that is
located approximately 60m south of ANR-009 within the Bonnefield property woodland. This
vernal pool had been surveyed for anuran calling activity as part of 2016 Natural Environment
Assessment field surveys. However, due to lack of anuran breeding evidence within this
feature, it was recommended that surveys cease at this location unless anuran calling activity is
incidentally recorded within this feature in the future.

Field data collected in 2021 at the Bonnefield Property will be combined with field data collected
there in 2016, and 2018-2020, to represent baseline (pre-extraction) conditions. The 2 anuran
species detected in 2021 is similar to results from 2019 and represents a slight decrease from 3
species detected in 2018 and 2020 and from 5 species detected in 2016. Spring Peeper, Wood
Frog, and Gray Treefrog have been the most abundant species across all years, with Spring
Peeper and Wood Frog being detected at full chorus in 4 of 5 years, while Gray Treefrog was
detected at full chorus in 2016. American Toad and Green Frog were detected in small
numbers in 2016, but were not detected during surveys in 2018-2021. Two Western Chorus
Frog individuals were detected during 2018 surveys; this species was not detected in 2016 or
2019-2021.

3.3 Melancthon Pit #2 — Trends in Anuran Species Occurrence, Richness and
Abundance Across Monitoring Years

Field data collected during the 2009 and 2013 monitoring seasons were combined to represent
baseline (pre-extraction) conditions against which to compare operational-phase anuran survey
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results (2014-2021 data). The data collected to date was used to provide an assessment of
trends in species occurrence, richness and abundance at the station level across years.

3.3.1 Species Occurrence

Figure 1 below presents a comparison of Spring Peeper occurrence across stations by year
during the operational period, as compared to pre-extraction results. As shown, the number of
stations where Spring Peeper was detected remained relatively consistent from year to year,
ranging from 7 to 9 stations, with the exception of 2021 when this species was detected at only
5 stations. This decrease in 2021 is likely a result of the unseasonably dry conditions that
occurred in the spring of 2021, which resulted in several of the ponds being dry during the
monitoring period. The number of stations at which Spring Peeper was detected at a calling
code of 3 (full chorus) was also relatively consistent across years, ranging from 3 to 5 stations,
with the exception of 2018 when a full chorus was detected at 7 stations.

=== Spring Peeper
] Detected

exsn Spring Peeper
Detected at Call
Code 3

# of Stations
O = N W hHh OO N O O O

N R\ T R S\ I I S A
B A
Year

Figure 1: Spring Peeper Occurrence Across Stations by Year

Figure 2 below presents a comparison of Gray Treefrog occurrence across stations by year
during the operational period, as compared to pre-extraction results. As shown, the number of
stations at which Gray Treefrog was detected remained fairly consistent from year to year
(ranging from 3 to 6 stations), with the exception of 2020 and 2021, when this species was
recorded at only 2 stations and 0 stations, respectively. In 2020, although calling individuals
were only detected at 2 stations (ANR-007b and 008a), tadpoles of this species were also
incidentally noted at a third station (ANR-003). The decrease to 0 stations in 2021 is likely a
result of unseasonably dry conditions that occurred in the spring of 2021, which resulted in 7 of
the 9 ponds being dry by June (when Gray Treefrog is most likely to be detected). During the
June site visits in 2020 and 2021, it was also noted that Gray Treefrog were detected calling
from some of the temporary aggregate pit ponds on site that are located to the west of the
monitoring stations (see Map 2). An overall decreasing trend in abundance can be seen across
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years when looking at the number of stations at which a full chorus was detected. It can aiso be
seen, however, that abundance has remained fairly consistent during the operational period.

e Gray Treefrog
Detected

e Gray Treefrog
Detected at Call
Code 3

# of Stations

Figure 2: Gray Treefrog Occurrence Across Stations by Year

Figure 3 below presents a comparison of Wood Frog occurrence across stations by year during
the operational period, as compared to pre-extraction results. As shown, the number of stations
at which Wood Frog was detected remained fairly consistent from year to year (ranging from 4
to 8 stations), with the exception of 2018 and 2020. The lack of Wood Frog observations in
2018 was likely a result of a late spring that delayed Wood Frog breeding (resulting in calls not
being heard during the April survey when they are usually detected). In 2020, although calling
individuals were only detected at 3 stations (ANR-001, 004, and 008a), tadpoles of this species
were also incidentally noted at a fourth station (ANR-003). An overall decreasing trend in
abundance can be inferred across all years when looking at the number of stations at which a
full chorus of Wood Frogs was detected, however a slight increasing trend can also be seen
over the last 3 years.
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Figure 3: Wood Frog Occurrence Across Stations by Year

Figure 4 below presents a comparison of American Toad occurrence by year during the
operational period, as compared to pre-extraction results. As shown, the number of stations at
which American Toad was detected decreased consistently across years, from 6 stations during
pre-extraction surveys to 0 stations in 2019 and 1 station in 2020 and 2021. An exception to
this trend occurred in 2018, when individuals were detected at 4 stations. During both
monitoring periods, most stations contained only 1-3 calling individuals.
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Figure 4: American Toad Occurrence Across Stations by Year
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Figure 5 below presents a comparison of Green Frog occurrence by year during the operational
period, as compared to pre-extraction results. As shown, the number of stations at which Green
Frog was detected varied from year to year with no distinct trend, ranging from 0 to 3 stations.

A maximum of 1-2 calling individuals was detected at these stations in a given year. The 2018
results may have been influenced by cooler-than-normal conditions during that period.
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Figure 5: Green Frog Occurrence Across Stations by Year

Figure 6 below presents a comparison of Northern Leopard Frog occurrence by year during the
operational period, as compared to pre-extraction results. As shown, the number of stations at
which Northern Leopard Frog was detected varied from year to year with no distinct trend,
ranging from 0 to 5 stations. A maximum of 1-2 calling individuals was detected at these

stations in a given year.
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Figure 6: Northern Leopard Frog Occurrence Across Stations by Year

3.3.2 Species Richness

A comparison of species richness by year during the operational period (compared to pre-
extraction results) can be seen in Figure 7 below for each monitoring station. A decreasing
overall trend in species richness can be seen for stations ANR-002 and 007a. Stations ANR-
001, 003, 004, 005, 006, 007b and 008a showed some variation in species richness from year
to year, but with no apparent overall trend.
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Figure 7: Species Richness by Year for Each Station
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3.3.3 Species Abundance

A comparison of species abundance by year during the operational period (compared to pre-
extraction results) can be seen in Figure 8 below for each monitoring station. An overall
decreasing trend in species abundance can be seen for stations ANR-001, 002 and 007a, which
is consistent with the overall decreasing trend in abundance for Wood Frog and Gray Treefrog
(see Figures 2 and 3 above). Stations ANR-003, 004, 005, 006, 007b and 008a showed some
variation in species abundance from year to year, but with no apparent overall trend.
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Figure 8: Species Abundance by Year for Each Station
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4.0 Hydrological, Hydrogeological and Water Quality Data
41 Surface Water Levels

The results of the 2021 surface water monitoring program, as collected by Whitewater
Hydrogeology, are illustrated in Figure 6 of the 2021 Surface and Groundwater Monitoring
Report (Whitewater Hydrogeology 2022). Surface water levels were consistently higher in the
South Pond than the North Pond (by at least approximately 0.3m) throughout the 2021
hydrological monitoring period. This is consistent with water level observations collected in
2016 to 2020, but contrasts with 2015 observations, when surface water levels were similar in
both ponds before declining more rapidly in the North Pond by early August. The rate of surface
water level reduction was gradual and generally consistent in both ponds in 2021, which is
similar to observations collected in 2017 to 2019, but differs slightly from 2020 observations
when reductions in surface water levels were gradual but somewhat inconsistent during the
monitoring period. Both ponds retained surface water throughout the entire 2021 season prior
to freezing, which is consistent with 2017-2020 observations. Historically these ponds have
dried up during periods of drought (Whitewater Hydrogeology 2022).

In 2021, the monitoring devices installed in the Vernal Pool and Shallow Marsh Wetland at the
Bonnefield property were vandalized, and surface water levels were therefore not collected. It
has been recommended that the site be secured to prevent trespassing, and that alternative
ways to install equipment and monitor these features be completed prior to the 2022 monitoring
season (Whitewater Hydrogeology 2022).

Surface water level data was somewhat limited during the April-June amphibian monitoring
period for the North and South pponds, during which water level data was only collected in the
second half of May and June. Water levels declined slightly in the South Pond during the late
May to June monitoring period, declining from approximately 494.0masl in mid-May to
493.7masl by the end of June. Water levels in the North Pond also gradually declined during
the late May to June period, from approximately 493.7masl to 493.5masl. Both declines were
part of the larger gradual decline seen in these ponds throughout most of the monitoring period.
June surface water levels in the South Pond were generally consistent with 2019 and 2020
levels, but were notably lower than 2017 and 2018, when levels fluctuated around 494.5masl|
and 494masl, respectively. By contrast, surface water levels in the North Pond were slightly
higher than 2019 and 2018 levels, which ranged between 492.6-493.0masl and 492.6-

492 9masl, respectively, and were similar to 2017 and 2020 levels, which ranged between
492.8-493.2masl and 492.9-493.2masl, respectively. See the 2021 Surface and Groundwater
Monitoring Report (Whitewater Hydrogeology 2022) for further details of water level results.

Standing water was present at the majority of anuran monitoring stations during the early
portion of the 2021 amphibian monitoring period, with only 3 of 9 stations having no standing
water during each of April and May. By June, however, 7 of the 9 monitoring stations were
completely dry. This is similar to the 2015 monitoring season when 5 of 9 stations were dry by
June, and contrasts with observations in 2017-2022, when only 1 to 3 stations were observed to
contain no water in each year.

4.2 Groundwater Levels

The shallow groundwater level near ANR-006/ANR-007a and the wash pond (well OWBA)
showed a less pronounced increase during the 2021 spring period (roughly March to June) as
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compared to the five previous spring periods (2016-2020) and showed similar results to the
2015 spring period. in 2021, the shallow groundwater level at this well peaked at 492.31 on
April 21, 2021, as compared to peak levels of 492.57 in 2015 and peak levels ranging from
493.03 to 493.58 during 2016 to 2020 spring monitoring (Whitewater Hydrogeology 2018, 2019,
2020, 2021, 2022). The timing of the 2021 spring-based groundwater elevation fluctuation at
OWBA was similar to that at other monitored wells. During the 2021 amphibian monitoring
period, overburden groundwater elevation was 492.23masl on April 10, but increased slightly to
492.31masl on April 21 before declining again to 491.51masl on June 24 (Whitewater
Hydrogeology 2022). Groundwater elevation at well OWBA on April 10, 2021 was 0.10m lower
than on April 10, 2015, and 0.70m lower than on April 10, 2020. Overall, the 2021 monitoring
results suggest that operation of the wash pond, which commenced during fall 2017, had no
observable effects on groundwater levels and fluctuation patterns compared to the previous
years.

Shallow groundwater levels on the Bonnefield property, monitored at well OW18A, were
relatively consistent between springs in 2017-2021. The timing of spring-based groundwater
elevation fluctuations at this well was similar to that at other monitored wells.

4.3 Pond Surface Water Quality

As reported in the 2021 Groundwater and Surface Water Monitoring Report (Whitewater
Hydrogeology 2022), measured water quality parameters within the North and South Ponds
were consistent with quality levels that are typical of fresh surface water, and did not yield
evidence of contamination derived from the on-site activities.

4.4 Hydrological/Hydrogeological and Water Quality Summary

Based on these analyses, operation of the pit is not having any measurabie impacts on surface
or groundwater levels, or water quality within the pond features. The North and South ponds
were observed to maintain water levels throughout the 2021 monitoring period, similar to 2016-
2020 results (Whitewater Hydrogeology 2022). The presence of suitable water depth and the
relatively stable surface and groundwater levels at the monitored locations suggest that the
hydrological regime is sufficient to support the amphibian breeding function observed at the
North and South Pond sites, and that water quantity and quality was not a limiting factor at
these ponds during the breeding period. The hydrological regime observed at well OW6A (near
the wash pond) is understood to be consistent with pre-extraction conditions at that location,
which indicates that the wash pond is not having a localized effect on shallow groundwater.
This result is also consistent with 2021 anuran monitoring data collected at stations ANR-006
and ANR-007a/b, which had species abundances that were generally consistent with previous
years.
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5.0 Summary and Recommendations

In 2021, NRSI biologists completed the 9" year of an annual program to monitor the ecological
condition of subject property wetlands as a means of identifying any potential impacts caused
by aggregate extraction activities at Melancthon Pit #2. As recommended in the Level 2 NEA
report for the subject property (NRSI 2010), studies were initiated to track long-term wetland
characteristics based on annual anuran breeding activity in conjunction with associated surface
water and groundwater measurements within the subject property collected by Whitewater
Hydrogeology Ltd. Regular surface water monitoring was initiated in 2014. The biological and
hydrological/hydrogeological monitoring plan for Melancthon Pit #2 was incorporated into an
Integrated Monitoring Plan (Appendix |) for Melancthon Pits #1, #2, and the future Bonnefield
property pit expansion beginning with 2018 field survey activities.

Data collected in 2013 at Melancthon Pit #2 was compiled with NRSI data collected in 2009 to
represent baseline (pre-extraction) conditions. Data collected from 2014 to 2021 represent the
operational-phase monitoring period on the property, including facility construction and
aggregate extraction.

The results of comparative analysis between and within pre-extraction and operational-stage
monitoring periods at Melancthon Pit #2 should be interpreted with caution as natural population
fluctuations, caused by potential confounding factors (e.g., precipitation levels and/or
temperatures within a particular monitoring season), are to be expected in the monitoring results
and can result in background “noise” in the data when looking at station-level and species-level
data across years. Therefore, observed differences in species presence and relative
abundance, within and among stations, from year to year, as compared to pre-extraction results
may not be directly caused by facility operational effects within the property. The data collected
to date provide an assessment of current trends in species occurrence, richness and
abundance; the power of the monitoring program will be to continue to identify the consistent
trends across years and to clarify long-term trends as more years of data are collected and
analyzed and to further assess any potential impacts caused by the facility operations.

In total, 7 anuran species were recorded within the Melancthon Pit wetlands across all years,
including the provincial SCC Western Chorus Frog. To date, Western Chorus Frog was only
observed in 2009, at 1 station, within the Melancthon Pit #2 site. Spring Peeper was recorded
as the most abundant and widespread species, and showed a relatively consistent trend in
occurrence when data was compared on a year-by-year basis (see Figure 1). Gray Treefrog
was also recorded at relatively high abundances across monitoring periods, but showed a
decreasing trend in full chorus detection when operational data was compared to baseline data
on a year-by-year basis (see Figure 2). It was also noted in 2020 and 2021 that Gray Treefrog
was detected calling (full chorus in 2020 and 4 individuals in 2021) from some of the temporary
aggregate pit ponds on site (west of the amphibian monitoring stations; see Map 2), which
suggests that this species is still actively breeding in high numbers within the Melancthon Pit #2
site. Wood Frog occurrence was consistently widespread among monitored stations during
both monitoring periods. A year-by-year comparison of operational data compared to pre-
extraction data showed an overall decline in abundance for this species; however, a slight
increasing trend in abundance is also apparent over the past 3 years (see Figure 3).

American Toad, Green Frog and Northern Leopard Frog occurred in relatively low abundances
during both monitoring periods. American Toad showed a decreasing trend, while Green Frog
and Northern Leopard Frog did not show any discernable trend when comparing operational
data to baseline data on a year-to-year basis (see Figures 4, 5 and 6, respectively).
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A comparison of species richness for each station by year during the operational period
(compared to pre-extraction results) (Figure 7) showed an overall decreasing trend in species
richness for stations ANR-002 and 007a. Stations ANR-001, 003, 004, 005, 006 007b and 008a
showed some variation in species richness from year to year, but with no apparent overall trend.

A comparison of species abundance for each station by year during the operational period
(compared to pre-extraction results) (Figure 8) showed an overall decreasing trend in species
abundance for stations ANR-001, 002 and 007a, which is consistent with the overall decreasing
trend in abundance for Wood Frog and Gray Treefrog (see Figures 2 and 3). Stations ANR-
003, 004, 005, 006, 007b and 008a showed some variation in species abundance from year to
year, but with no apparent overall trend.

Overall, these results suggest that the small, isolated wetlands located in the north end of the
Melancthon Pit including the Reed Canary Grass swale (as surveyed by stations ANR-001 to
005) provide good quality habitat for the majority of the species that breed within the subject
property. Wet pockets within the meadow marsh associated with the western edge of the large
swamp feature were observed to also provide suitable breeding habitat for amphibians at
stations ANR-007a and 008a, particularly for Spring Peepers. The White Cedar-Hardwood
Mineral Mixed Swamp, where it occurs on or adjacent to the subject property, supports a
healthy population of Spring Peepers in some years but does not represent important breeding
habitat for other anuran species.

Overall, breeding anuran abundance at the Melancthon Pit was observed to be relatively
consistent between the pre-extraction and operational periods to date, particularly among the
wetland features located immediately adjacent to the active aggregate extraction areas.
Species occurrence and abundance have remained consistent across periods with the
exception of Wood Frogs and Gray Treefrogs, which have declined in abundance since the pre-
extraction period. At this time there is no evidence to indicate the change in observed Wood
Frog or Gray Treefrog abundance is not a natural fluctuation in the local population, or if not,
whether it can be attributed to the on-site activities or is part of a broader species population
trend. Additional years of operational-stage monitoring data will provide stronger evidence for
whether on-site activities may be impacting anuran breeding activities and/or the health of
wetland breeding habitats. However, based on surface water level and quality data, and
groundwater level data collected by Whitewater Hydrogeology, operation of the pit is not
observed to be causing any measurable impacts to the existing hydrological regime on the
property. Additionally, no other visible signs of habitat disturbance or degradation caused by
the aggregate pit activities was observed at these wetlands. The continued persistence of a
healthy population of breeding anurans, relative to observed pre-extraction conditions, further
suggests that the anuran habitat functions of the on-site wetlands are being maintained.

Annual monitoring at the Bonnefield Pit was recommended in NRSI's NEA report for the Prince
and Bonnefield properties (NRSI 2017), which documented the presence of breeding
amphibians within the Bonnefield property wetland during 2016 surveys. 2021 monitoring at the
Bonnefield property documented additional baseline data on breeding amphibian species
presence and relative abundance prior to aggregate extraction. The 2021 data collected at the
Bonnefield property will be combined with 2016 and 2018-2020 data to represent baseline (pre-
extraction) conditions against which to compare future operational-phase anuran survey results.
A total of 6 anuran species were detected at the Bonnefield Pit between 2016 and 2021,
including the provincial SCC Western Chorus Frog. The presence of Western Chorus Frog
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within this wetland further reinforces the significance of this wetland as anuran breeding habitat,
which was identified in the 2017 NEA report. Species occurrence at this wetland showed a

slight decrease across pre-extraction years, while species abundance was relatively consistent
across years.

It is recommended that the amphibian monitoring program continue at both Melancthon Pit #2
and at the Bonnefield property wetland, concurrent with ongoing hydrological/hydrogeological
monitoring, to further investigate trends in amphibian breeding diversity and abundance against
these abiotic factors in accordance with the NEA studies recommendations. Natural population-
level fluctuations are to be expected in the amphibian monitoring resuits, and additional years of
monitoring will continue to refine the presence of any long-term trends and provide further
inference as to whether any potential impacts are occurring due to pit operation.
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Strada Aggregates Melancthon Pits - Integrated Monitoring Plan
February 2018

Background
The Strada Melancthon Pits consist of:

e Pit #1 (Licence # 129167) located at West Half of Lot 13, Concession 3 O.S, licenced in 2004;

e Pit #2 (Licence # 625155) located at West Half of Part Lot 11 and 12, Concession 3 O.S,, licenced
in 2012; and .

e The proposed Bonnefield and Prince extension lands located at Part of West Half of Lots 12
and 14, Concession 3 O.S.

The proposed Prince and Bonnefield extensions will be fully integrated with existing aggregate operations
at Melancthon Pits #1 and #2. The existing operations require monitoring and annual reporting with
respect to the water table, water quality and the natural environment. Hydrogeological and natural
environment investigations for the proposed extension have recommended expansion of the monitoring
programs to include the additional lands. The Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF) has
requested an Integrated Monitoring Plan to consolidate the existing and proposed monitoring
requirements.

Natural Environment
Amphibian Monitoring

Annual monitoring of the wetlands for the presence of breeding amphibians was originally recommended
in the Level 2 Natural Environment Assessment (NEA) report for Melancthon Pit #2, as well as surface and
groundwater monitoring to assess water level fluctuations (NRSI 2010). The implementation of an
amphibian monitoring program was further requested by the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority
(NVCA) and Michalski Nielson in their review of the Level 2 NEA report.

NRSI has undertaken annual amphibian monitoring at the wetlands located adjacent to Melancthon Pit #2
since 2013. Initial amphibian call surveys were undertaken in 2009.

Of the two proposed pit areas, only the Bonnefield Pit property contains wetland habitat (outside the
extraction area). Surveys completed in 2016 recorded the presence of breeding amphibians. To ensure
that the proposed pit does not negatively impact the wetland and its amphibian breeding habitat
function it was recommended that the existing amphibian monitoring program for Melancthon Pit #2 be
expanded to include the Bonnefield Pit to maximize efficiencies, and achieve consistency in methodology
and data comparability.

Annual amphibian call surveys that were initiated at Melancthon Pit #2 will continue for the duration of the
lifespan of the pit, as was originally proposed. Beginning in 2018, NRSI will initiate annual monitoring of
the Bonnefield property wetland which will also be undertaken for the lifespan of that pit. Annual
monitoring of the Bonnefield Pit wetland will build on NRSI's 2016 amphibian call surveys on the property



to inform the NEA report. See Map 1 for the location of the existing monitoring stations at Melancthon Pit
#2 in addition to the single monitoring station at the Bonnefield Pit wetland. Since no amphibian calling
activity was documented within the Bonnefield property vernal pool during 2016 surveys, despite the
presence of standing water, additional long-term monitoring of the vernal pool is not included in this plan.
However, if amphibian calling activity is heard within the vernal pool during future monitoring years, an
additional monitoring station will be established at this location and will be monitored annually.

Proposed monitoring at the Bonnefield Pit wetland will document additional baseline data on breeding
amphibian species presence and relative abundance prior to aggregate extraction, followed by multiple
years of operational-stage monitoring. As has been completed for Melancthon Pit #2, long-term data will
be collected to identify trends or other indicators that will be used to assess any negative occurrences to
amphibian breeding activity that may be the result of pit activities. The amphibian survey data collected at
the Bonnefield and Melancthon Pit #2 sites will also be compared to look for spatial trends, or any
similarities or differences in survey results over time that may indicate presence of localized or widespread
pit operation effects.

In accordance with survey methodology completed to date, the monitoring program will utilize the Marsh
Monitoring Program methodology (BSC 2009), which records amphibian call activity during 3-minute call
counts. Counts will be conducted once per month during each of April, May and June in conjunction with
appropriate night time air temperatures and wind speeds. If the provincial Species of Conservation
Concern Western Chorus Frog (Pseudacris triseriata) is detected during any monitoring event, additional
monitoring events may be added to fully document the abundance and distribution of this species within
the surveyed wetlands.

A brief summary report, combining the results collected from the Melancthon Pit #2 site with the
Bonnefield Pit site, will be prepared each year which outlines the findings of the annual monitoring. This
will include an assessment of the surface water and groundwater monitoring data to be collected by
Whitewater Hydrogeology within both properties (Whitewater Hydrogeology 2017) as it relates to
amphibian breeding conditions. Each annual report will be provided to Strada for their review, and then to
the NVCA and the Township of Melancthon.

Woodland Buffer

The deciduous woodland communities within the Bonnefield and Prince extension lands will be retained
outside the proposed limit of extraction. 10 metre woodland buffers have been recommended to protect
these features and mitigate impacts from adjacent extraction activities. The woodland buffers will be
allowed to re-naturalize and will be supplemented with targeted native species plantings.

The woodland buffers will be inspected during pit operations to ensure disturbances are not occurring.
The health and survival of buffer planting will also be inspected.

Hydrogeology

Compliance groundwater and surface water monitoring has been occurring at both Melancthon Pit #1
and #2 since 2001 and 2007, respectively. In addition, baseline groundwater monitoring commenced in



2017 at the Bonnefield and Prince properties. In total, there are currently 28 groundwater well nests that
monitor 52 discrete aquifer intervals in the overburden and bedrock aquifers. The Melancthon Pit #1 and
#2 groundwater monitoring programs were developed to characterize the local groundwater conditions
at each individual property and were based on two operating pits (two scale houses, two fuel storage
areas, and multiple crushing and processing operations). The proposed licensing of the Bonnefield and
Prince properties provides an opportunity to not only streamline operations by eliminating the need to
operate as individual pits but to develop a revised groundwater monitoring program. The revision would
remove redundancies in the monitoring network and reporting allowing for an opportunity to complete
an accumulative impact assessment from the Strada properties.

The revised groundwater monitoring program is shown on Map 2. The revised program consists of 22
groundwater well nests that monitor 36 discrete aquifer intervals in the overburden and bedrock aquifers.

The proposed program focuses on the ongoing monitoring of background conditions (up gradient
locations) in both the overburden and bedrock aquifers and the monitoring of potential influences from
the aggregate operation on down gradient locations. The proposed groundwater monitoring program is
provided in Table 1. Selected up gradient and down gradient wells will be sampled for water quality. The
water quality parameters for the semi annual (spring and fall) and annual (spring) sampling programs are
provided in Table 2.

Surface water elevation monitoring has been on-going at the North and South Ponds (Map 2), since 2007.
Two additional surface water monitoring stations to monitor the hydro-period in the wetland and vernal
pool (Map 2) will commence in 2018. This monitoring will consist of the collection of continuous water
level data during non-frozen conditions. Data will be assessed in conjunction with the groundwater
monitoring data as part of the annual reporting requirement.

Table 1 - Proposed Groundwater Monitoring Network

Water [ evels Water Quality Well 12 Witter Leveh Water Quplity

Muonthly Manual Water SemicAnnual - Annual Monthly Manual Water Semi-Annual Annugl
OW2-A X X OW13-A X X
ow2-8 X X Ow13-8 X X
OwW3-B X X ow1i4-8 X X X
OW4-A X X OwW15-8 X
OW4-B X X ow16-8 x X X
OWS5-A X X X OW17-A X
ows-8 X X Oow1i7-8 X
OW6-A X X X OW18-A X X X
OW7-A X X ow18-8 X X
ow7-8 X X OW19-A X
OWs-A X X X OwW19-8B X X
0Ow9-A X X X 0ow20-8 X X X
OW10-A X X X ow21-8 X X X
OW11-A X X X 0ow22-8 X X
OwW11-8 X X 0ow23-8 X X
OwW1i2-A X X X

Note: the collection of continuous water levels at sefected groundwater monitoring locations is recommended.



Table 2 - Proposed Water Quality Parameters

Semi-Annual Groundwater Quality Parameters Annual Groundwater Quality Parameters
General Water Quality Parameters: pH, Conductivity, Alkalinity, | Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (F1-F4)
Blcarbonate, Chloride, Calcium, Magneslum, Potassium, | BTEX, Total Oil and Grease
Sodium, Sulphate, Nitrate, Nitrite, Phosphorous, and Metals
| (dissolved).

It is recommended that a single annual groundwater monitoring report for the Melancthon Pits #1 and 2,
as well as the proposed Bonnefield and Prince Pits be prepared and submitted to the MNRF, Township of
Melancthon and NVCA prior to March 31* of each year and include the monitoring data for the 12 month
period ending December 31* of the previous year. The report shall include, but not be limited to, the
following:

Monitoring data collected as per Table 1 and Table 2;

2. Datain tabulated and graphical formats;

3. Interpretation of the collected data including discussions of any observed trends in groundwater
levels and groundwater quality (analytical) results;

4. Recommendations on and justification for the need for make changes to monitoring locations,
monitoring frequency, type of monitoring, pumping patterns and/or the need for mitigation, and

5. Summary and documentation of any water well complaint(s) and their resolution(s).
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2021 Calling Amphibian Survey Results
Visit 1

8-Apr-21

NRSI Species Detected by Monitoring Station

(Maximum Calling Code, Total Number of

ISCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME Individuals)
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Bufo americanus American Toad
Hyla versicolor Gray Treefrog
Lithobates pipiens Northern Leopard Frog 1.1
Lithobates sylvatica Wood Frog 2,5 313113 2,4 3
Pseudacris crucifer crucifer Spring Peeper 2,6 313127 1.2 3
Pseudacris triseriata Western Chorus Frog
Rana clamitans melanota Green Frog
Visit 2 17-May-21
NRSI Species Detected by Monitoring Station
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Pseudacris triseriata Western Chorus Frog
Rana clamitans melanota Green Frog
Visit 3 24-Jun-21
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Rana clamitans melanota Green Frog 1,2
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2021 Calling Amphibian Weather Results

Visit 1 8-Apr-21
Station Name Start time | Wind speed| % Cloud Cover Air temp. Water temp.| Water pH | Precipitation Remarks
ANR-001 21:21 2 10 17 14.0 7.7 None
ANR-002 21:20 1 50 16 - - None No standing water
ANR-003 21:24 1 50 16 - - None 7 adult wood frogs and 6 adult spring peepers around pond
ANR-004 21:03 1 50 16 13.0 - None
ANR-005 21:03 2 10 17 15.1 7.8 None
ANR-006 21:58 1 50 16 - - None No standing water
ANR-007a 20:39 1 0 17 15.5 7.4 None Very little standing water
ANR-007b 20:43 1 0 17 14.6 7.5 None
ANR-008a 21:45 1 50 16 - - None No standing water
ANR-008 22:15 1 50 16 15.8 8.2 None
Visit 2 17-May-21
Station Name Starttime | Wind speed| % Cloud Cover Air temp. Water temp.| Water pH I-’reclpitatlon Remarks
| ANR-001 21:51 2 0 14 15.4 8.0 None
ANR-002 21:57 2 0 14 - - None No standing water
ANR-003 21.03 2 0 14 17.5 8.4 None Wood Frog tadpoles in pond
ANR-004 21:45 1 0 14 12.9 8.2 None Little standing water
ANR-005 21:38 2 0 14 16.1 8.4 None
ANR-006 21.33 2 0 15 - - None No standing water
ANR-007a 21:26 2 0 15 - - None No standing water
ANR-007b 21:26 2 0 15 14.9 8.6 None
ANR-008a 21:18 2 0 15 - - None Very little standing water
ANR-009 22:12 2 0 14 13.8 8.0 None
Visit 3 24-Jun-21
Station Name Start time [ Wind speed] % Cloud Cover Air temp. Water temp. Water pH I-’reclpltatlon Remarks
ANR-001 22:24 1 60 20 18.3 8.0 None
ANR-002 22:32 2 60 20 - - None No standing water
ANR-003 22:39 2 70 20 - - None No standing water
ANR-004 22:18 1 80 21 - - None No standing water
ANR-005 22:09 1 80 21 20.2 8.2 None
ANR-006 22:00 1 80 21 - - None No standing water
ANR-007a 21:49 3 80 21 - - None No standing water
ANR-007b 21:49 3 80 21 - - None No standing water
ANR-008a 21:37 3 100 21 - - None No standing water
ANR-009 22:48 1 30 20 19 7.9 None
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Town of Grand Valley

5 Main Street North

GRAND VALLEY ON L9W 5S6
Tel: (519) 928-5652

Fax: (519) 928-2275
www.townofgrandvalley.ca

NOTICE OF A STATUTORY PUBLIC MEETING
FOR A PROPOSED HOUSEKEEPING ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT
regarding SEA CONTAINERS

The Municipal Council of the Town of Grand Valley will hold a meeting to consider the following
application:

Application Number: | Z05-2022 (Zoning)

Date of Meeting: Tuesday June 28, 2022
Time: 11:00 AM
Meeting Location: IN PERSON - COUNCIL CHAMBERS

Town of Grand Valley Municipal Office
5 Main Street North
GRAND VALLEY ON LSW 5S6

Applicant: Town of Grand Valley Initiated Amendment

Location: All properties within the Town of Grand Valley

Purpose and Effect A proposed Houskeeping Zoning By-law Amendment to permit SEA
of the Amendment: CONTAINERS in the Town of Grand Valley.

A Location Map has not been included with this Notice as it pertains to all properties in the
Town of Grand Valley.

Dated: June 2, 2022
Meghan Townsend, Clerk — Treasurer

TOWN OF GRAND VALL
/m% # é
JUN 16 2022



Town of Grand Valley

5 Main Street North

GRAND VALLEY ON L9W 5S6
Tel: (619) 928-5652

Fax: (619) 928-2275

www.townofgrandvalley.ca

. You or your representative are entitled to attend this meeting to express your views on this
application. If you do not attend and are not represented at this meeting, Council may proceed in
your absence.

. If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting or make written
submissions to The Council of the Corporation of the Town of Grand Valley before the by-law is
passed or decision is rendered, the person or public body is not entitled to appeal the decision of
The Council of the Corporation of the Town of Grand Valley to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal.

. If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting or make written
submissions to the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Grand Valley before the by-law is
passed or decision is rendered, the person or public body may not be added as a party to the
hearing of an appeal before the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal unless, in the opinion of the Board,
there are reasonable grounds to do so.

. Any written comments/objections submitted to the Town of Grand Valley regarding this
application which are being processed under the Planning Act 1990, will form part of the
public record, and will be made public as part of the application process.

. No decision on this application will be made at the Public Meeting.

A further Recommendation Report on these matters will be forwarded to Town Council at a later
date. If you wish to be notified of the meeting date you must indicate your request in writing or
via e-mail to the Town Planner at mkluge@townofgrandvalley.ca, quoting File Z05-2022 — Sea
Container Housekeeping Zoning By-law.

. The Planning Report will be available after 4:30 PM on Friday June 24, 2022, on the Town's
Website at: https://calendar.townofgrandvalley.ca/Council

. For further information or to submit comments please contact the Town Planner, Mark Kluge via

email at mkluge@townofgrandvalley.ca.

Dated: June 2, 2022
Meghan Townsend, Clerk — Treasurer
TOWN OF GRAND VALLEY
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MAYOR DARREN WHITE
157101 HWY. 10, RR#6
MELANCTHON ON L9V 2E6

Ottawa, June 2022

Dear MAYOR DARREN WHITE and Council,

The economic contributions from rural communities are integral to Canada’s success. Rural areas are home to many key
industries such as manufacturing, forestry, agriculture, and energy.

Yet, municipalities under 20,000 residents receive less support from the federal government in comparison to their much

larger counterparts. Red tape duplications and certain application requirements disproportionately burden small rural
communities with very few staff.

This is unfair, unjust, and needs to be addressed urgently. As such, Conservative Shadow Minister for Rural Economic
Development and Rural Broadband Strategy, M.P. Shannon Stubbs, Deputy Shadow Ministers M.P. Damien Kurek and
M.P. Jacques Gourde, are seeking to convene a townhall with you to address federal funding for rural communities.

Rural Canadians must band together for fairer and more robust funding for communities all over rural Canada.

It is integral to our economy that the federal government works for everyone no matter where they live. The voices of
rural Canadians need to be heard. We kindly ask you to express the three most important issues impacting your economic
development as a rural community. We will use this feedback to ensure our work for rural Canada is as productive as

possible and will determine the agenda for our proposed townhall. This is an opportunity to network, share your priorities,
and solutions to the challenges we face.

We value hearing from you and should you wish to attend our forum, please email M.P. Stubbs at
shannon.stubbs@parl.gc.ca, M.P. Kurek at damien.kurek@parl.gc.ca, or M.P. Gourde at jacques.gourde(@parl.gc.ca.

Thank you for your time.

Sowasu. b
Shannon Stubbs, M.P.
Shadow Minister for Rural Economic Development

and Rural Broadband Strategy

Lakeland M
B T / <

. Jacques Gourde, M.P.
Damien C. Kurek, M.P il .
2 ) D Shadow Minister for Rural E
Deputy Shadow Minister for Rural Economic SRRty IS IAgOW I SICh (Or Uh Ra=ECOnOIC

Devel t and Rural Broadband Strate
Development and Rural Broadband Strategy Lgx\/,iesﬂ)&igi:igre niemracon =4
Battle River—Crowfoot
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MAYOR DARREN WHITE
157101 HWY. 10, RR#6
MELANCTHON ON L9V 2E6

Ottawa, Juin 2022

Madame. Monsieur, MAYOR DARREN WHITE et Conseil,

La contribution économique des collectivités rurales est indissociable de la réussite du Canada. Les régions rurales
comptent de nombreuses industries clés comme la fabrication, la foresterie, 1’agriculture et I’énergie.

Or, les municipalités comptant moins de 20 000 résidents regoivent moins de soutien du gouvernement fédéral que les
municipalités plus grandes. Les déboulements administratifs et certaines exigences en matiére de présentation de
demandes ont une incidence disproportionnée sur les petites collectivités, méme si elles comptent peu d’employés.

C’est une situation injuste qu’il faut régler de toute urgence. Ainsi, la ministre conservatrice du Cabinet fantdme
responsable du développement économique rural et de la stratégie sur la large bande rurale, la députée Shannon Stubbs, de
méme que deux autres ministres du Cabinet fantéme, les députes Damien Kurek et Jacques Gourde, souhaitent tenir une
séance de discussion avec vous afin d’aborder la question du financement fédéral des collectivités rurales.

Les Canadiens des régions rurales doivent faire front commun, de sorte que I’ensemble des collectivités rurales du Canada
bénéficient d’un financement plus juste et plus robuste.

1l est primordial, pour favoriser notre économie, que le gouvernement fédéral soit au service de tous, peu importe ot ils
vivent. Il faut faire entendre la voix des Canadiens des régions rurales. Nous vous prions de nous faire part des trois
enjeux les plus importants ayant une incidence sur votre développement économique en tant que collectivité rurale. Nous
utiliserons ces commentaires pour veiller a ce que notre travail pour les régions rurales du Canada soit le plus efficace
possible. Vos commentaires nous aideront également a établir I’ordre du jour de la séance de discussion que nous
proposons. C’est une excellente occasion de faire du réseautage, de faire connaitre vos priorités et de trouver des solutions
aux défis que nous devons relever.

Nous attendons de vos nouvelles. Si vous souhaitez participer & notre forum, veuillez envoyer un courriel a la députée
Shannon Stubbs a shannon.stubbs@parl.gc.ca, au député Damien Kurek a damien.kurek@pal.gc.ca ou au député Jacques
Gourde a jacques.gourde@parl.gc.ca.

Nous vous remercions de votre collaboration.
Sincéres salutations,

Q&@M&M&m

Shannon Stubbs, députée de Lakeland Ministre du Cabinet fantdme responsable du développement économique rural et de
la stratégie sur la large bande rurale

U miid ol e A

Damien C. Kurek, députe de Battle River—Crowfoot Jacques Gourde, députe de Lévis—Lotbiniére



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF SHELBURNE

NOTICE OF DECISION

S A People Place, A Change of Pooe

YHELBURNE

Date of Decision: May 30, 2022

Last Day for Appeals: June 20, 2022

File No.: A22/05 — 246 Irwin Street, Town of Shelburne
Applicant: Valiuddin Mohammed

Enclosed is a copy of the Resolution of the Committee of Adjustment for the Town of Shelburne
in respect of the above-noted application.

No written or oral submissions were received from members of the public by the Committee of
Adjustment prior to the decision.

Any person or agency may appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal in respect of the decision or any
condition imposed by filing with the Clerk of the Corporation of the Town of Shelburne, not later
than the last day for appeals noted above, a notice of appeal setting out the reasons for the appeal
accompanied by the prescribed fee required by the Ontario Land Tribunal in the amount of $300
payable to the “Minister of Finance”.

Only individuals, corporations, and public bodies may appeal decisions in respect of applications
for minor variance to the Ontario Land Tribunal. A notice of appeal may not be filed by an
unincorporated association or group. However, a notice of appeal may be filed in the name of an
individual who is a member of the association or group on its behalf.

Dated at the Town of Shelburne this 3 day of June, 2022.

Jennifer Willoughby
Secretary-Treasurer
Committee of Adjustment

Town of Shelburne

203 Main Street East
Shelburne, Ontario, L9V 3K7
Phone: 519-925-2600

Fax: 519-925-6134

Info# g
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File # A22/05

=\ SHELBURNE [

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF SHELBURNE

IN THE MATTER OF Subsection 45(5) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, C.P.13, as amended; and

IN THE MATTER OF Zoning By-law 38-2007, as amended; and,

IN THE MATTER OF application for minor variance by Valiuddin Mohammed dated April 26, 2022.

Valiuddin Mohammed on behalf of the owners of the property located at 246 Irwin Street, has submitted an application for
a Minor Variance to request relief from Sections 3.4.1(ii) and 5.68 of Zoning By-law 38-2007 in order to construct a converted
dwelling with a second dwelling unit in the cellar of the existing single detached dwelling. The application is seeking relief
from the regulation which states that a dwelling unit shall not be located in the cellar of a dwelling. All other minimum
requirements for the Zoning By-law shall be met.

Moved by: Member Walter Benotto Seconded by: _Member Shane Hall

After considering the application the Committee is satisfied that the request is minor in nature, desirable for the appropriate
and continued use of the subject property and maintains the general intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law and Official
Plan.

Accordingly, the Committee resolves to grant the request. The minor variance is granted in accordance with the sketch plan
provided to the Committee and attached hereto, only to allow the existing single detached dwelling at 246 {rwin Street to be
used as a converted dwelling with a maximum of two (2) dwelling units no more than one (1) of which may be located within
the lowest floor level of the existing dwelling in an appropriately designed and finished, habitable space that meets building,
fire and electrical safety code requirements, and subject to the following two (2) conditions:

1) That the owner shall obtain confirmation of sufficient reserve servicing capacity by the Town Engineer for the Stage
1 area and allocation of servicing for the additional residential unit prior to Municipal Approval of a building permit;
and,

2) That the owner shall obtain a building permit for the additional residential unit within one (1) year of satisfying
condition 1, failing which the servicing allocation shall be revoked and this Minor Variance shall lapse unless the
Committee grants an extension prior to expiry.

Application APPROVED on conditions as stated.
Dated at the Town of Shelburne on the 30th day of May, 2022.
THE DECISION IS SUBJECT TO APPEAL TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL BY FILING WITH THE SECRETARY-

TREASURER OF THE COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT A WRITTEN NOTIFICATION, GIVING REASONS FOR THE
APPEAL, ACCOMPANIED WITH THE PRESCRIBED FEE ON OR BEFORE: JUNE 20, 2022,

Wade Mills Steve Undersan

W. Mills, Chairman S. Anderson, Vice-Chairman

Walter Benatto Lynda Buffett JHyle Fegan

W. Benotto, Member L. Buffett, Member K. Fegan, Member
Shane Ftall Lindsay Wegner

S. Hall, Member L. Wegener, Member

| certify this to be a true copy of the Committee’s decision given on May 30 , 2022.

Jennifer Wittoughby

J. Willoughby, Secretary-Treasurer

Date of mailing is June 3%, 2022



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF SHELBURNE

NOTICE OF DECISION

S A Poaple Plice, A Chamge of Pace

HELBURNE

auTARIG,

Date of Decision: May 30, 2022

Date of Mailing Decision: June 3, 2022

Last Day for Appeals: June 23, 2022

Condition Date: June 3, 2023

File No.: B22/01 - 250 Main Street East
Applicant/Owner: Owen Bennington and Sarah Thompson

Enclosed is a copy of the Resolution of the Committee of Adjustment for the Town of Shelburne
in respect of the above-noted application.

A submission was received from a member of the public and read to the Committee of Adjustment
prior to the decision. The objection was addressed via written response from the Town prior to
the Committee of Adjustment meeting. The submission did not affect the Committee's decision.

Any person or agency may appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal in respect of the decision or any
condition imposed by filing with the Clerk of the Corporation of the Town of Shelburne, not later
than the last day for appeals noted above, a notice of appeal setting out the reasons for the appeal
accompanied by the prescribed fee required by the Ontario Land Tribunal in the amount of $300
payable to the “Minister of Finance”.

Only individuals, corporations, and public bodies may appeal decisions in respect of applications
for consent to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal. A notice of appeal may not be filed by an
unincorporated association or group. However, a notice of appeal may be filed in the name of an
individual who is a member of the association or group on its behalf.

You will be entitled to receive notice of any changes to the conditions of the provisional consent
if you have made a written request to the Town Clerk to be notified of changes to the conditions
of the provisional consent.

Dated at the Town of Shelburne this 3 day of June 2022.

Jennifer Willoughby, Secretary Treasurer
Committee of Adjustment

Town of Shelburne

203 Main Street East
Shelburne, Ontario, L9V 3K7
Phone: 519-925-2600



File # B22/01

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF SHELBURNE

IN THE MATTER OF Section 53 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, C.P.13, as amended; and

IN THE MATTER OF an application for consent by Owen Bennington and Sarah Thompson dated April 28, 2022.

Owen Bennington and Sarah Thompson are the owners of land municipally known as 250 Main Street East and described
as All of Lot 10, Block 10, Plan BA, in the Town of Shelburne. The Owners have applied to create a new residential lot. The
proposed severed parcel is 303.25 square metres in area and will have approximately 20.11 metres of frontage onto James
Street North. The retained parcel will have a remaining land area of 379.26 square metres and will retain 15.08 metres of
frontage onto Main Street East. The subject land currently contains a two-storey converted dwelling and attached garage.

Moved by: Member Kyle Fegan Seconded by: _ Member Shane Hall

After considering the application the Committee is satisfied with allowing this consent for the purpose of severing 303.25
square metres of land from the original 682 square metres of lot area. The Committee, having regard to those matters under
subsection 51(24) of the Planning Act R.S.0. 1990, c.P.13., as amended, resolves to grant provisional consent subject to
the following conditions being fulfilled:

1. That the Secretary-Treasurer's Certificate under subsection 53(42) of the Planning Act R.S.0. 1990, c.P.13, as
amended, shall be issued and the Secretary-Treasurer’s fee be paid;

The payment of cash-in-lieu of parkland at the rate of 5% of the value of the newly created lot;
That the Owner enter into an agreement with the Town addressing the following matters:

a) site servicing and drainage requirements and the details of all servicing connections, modifications and
improvements to existing services including sanitary sewers, water supply, storm sewers, roads, sidewalks,
hydrants, utilities, and any required easements deemed necessary by the Town in accordance with Town standards
and to the satisfaction of the Town’s Director of Development and Operations and the Town's Engineer;

b) the requirement to remove the existing attached garage and to construct a new driveway and required parking
spaces on the retained lot and on the severed lot;

¢) the requirement to provide drawings indicating the location and details of the driveway(s}) including the requirement
for replacement of any trees requiring removal, to the satisfaction of the Town;

d) design guidelines for the new dwelling to be constructed on the proposed severed lot with input from the Heritage
Committee;

e) the dedication of an easement to the satisfaction of Bell Canada; and,
f) the payment of required fees;

4. That the Owner obtain approval of a Zoning By-law Amendment for the two (2) resultant lots to a zone that will
accommodate the proposed lot areas, yards and setbacks;

5. That approval of the draft reference plan, as applicable, shall be obtained at the Committee of Adjustment office (Town
of Shelburne) and the required number of prints (3) of the resultant deposited reference plan shall be received; and

6. That the conditions are to be fulfilled and the consent is to be finalized on or before two (2) years from the date of the
issuance of the Committee's notice of decision.

Stipulated Consent — subject to Subsections 50(3) and (5) of the Planning Act. Yes [ ] or No [X].

Application APPROVED on conditions as stated.

Dated at the Town of Shelburne on the 30th day of May, 2022.

THE DECISION IS SUBJECT TO APPEAL TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL BY FILING WITH THE SECRETARY-
TREASURER OF THE COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT A WRITTEN NOTIFICATION, GIVING REASONS FOR THE
APPEAL, ACCOMPANIED WITH THE PRESCRIBED FEE ON OR BEFORE: JUNE 23, 2022,

Wade Mills Steve ndersan

W. Mills, Chairman S. Anderson, Vice-Chairman

Walter Benatta Lynda Buffett Hyle Fegan
W. Benotto, Member L. Buffett, Member K. Fegan, Member
Shane Fall Lindsay Wegener

S. Hall, Member L. Wegener, Member

| certify this to be a true copy of the Committee's decision given on May 30%, 2022.

J. Willoughby, Secretary-Treasurer

Notes: The decision to give provisional consent shall be deemed to be refused if the conditions of provisional consent
have not been fulfilled on or before one year from decision mailing.




NOTICE OF PASSING OF BY-LAW 28-2021

BY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF SHELBURNE

S A Breple Hace o} Chargs of Poue

HELBURNE UNDER SECTION 34 OF THE PLANNING ACT

QHTALIO, CaNabA

TAKE NOTICE that the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Shelburne passed By-Law 27-2022 on May 30™, 2022,
under Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.0., 1990, C.P. 13, as amended.

The purpose and effect of By-law 27-2022 (File No. Z22/01) is to amend Zoning By-law 38-2007 by changing the zoning
of the property described legally as All of Lot 10, Block 10, Registered Plan 6A, and known as 250 Main Street East, in the
Town of Shelburne, County of Dufferin, from Mixed Use Commercial (C2) Zone to Mixed Use Commercial Exception Eight
(C2-8) Zone and Mixed Use Commercial Exception Nine (C2-9) Zone.

The amendment relates to a consent application, file number B22/01, which severs the property into 2 residential lots from
one existing residential lot containing an existing converted dwelling. The re-zoning of the land to C2-8 (retained land) and
C2-9 (severed land) applies appropriate zone standards to recognize the existing dwelling on the retained land and for the
proposed development of a single detached dwelling on the new lot to be severed.

The accompanying map illustrates the location of the land subject to the Zoning By-law Amendment. The Zoning By-law
amendment is in keeping with the Town of Sheiburne Official Plan.

AND TAKE NOTICE that any person or agency may appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal in respect of By-law 27-2022 by
filing with the Clerk of the Corporation of the Town of Shelburne, not later than the 23" day of June 2022 a notice of
appeal setting out the objection to the By-law and the reasons in support of the objection accompanied by the prescribed
fee required by the Ontario Land Tribunal in the amount of $300.00, payable to the Minister of Finance. Only individuals,
corporations and public bodies may appeal a by-law to the Ontario Land Tribunal. A notice of appeal may not be filed by
an unincorporated association or group. However, a notice of appeal may be filed in the name of an individual who is a
member of the association or group on its behalf. No person or public body shall be added as a party to the hearing of the
appeal unless, before the by-law is passed, the person or public body made oral submissions at a public meeting or
written submissions to the Council or, in the opinion of the Tribunal, there are reasonable grounds to add the person or
public body as a party.

A copy of the complete By-law 27-2022 is available to the public for inspection at the Municipal Offices during business
hours, and on the Town of Shelburne website at www.shelburne.ca
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF SHELBURNE
BY-LAW NO. 27-2022
BEING A BY-LAW TO AMEND BY-LAW 38-2007, AS AMENDED.

WHEREAS an Official Plan has been approved for the Town of Shelburne.

AND WHEREAS authority is granted under Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, C.P.13 and
amendments thereto, to enact this By-law.

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Shelburne enacts as follows:

1.

That Schedule “A” of By-law 38-2007, as amended, be further amended by rezoning the
land known municipally as 250 Main Street East and described legally as All of Lot 10,
Block 10, Plan 6A, in the Town of Shelburne, County of Dufferin, from Mixed Use
Commercial (C2) Zone to Mixed Use Commercial Exception Eight (C2-8) Zone and Mixed
Use Commercial Exception Nine (C2-9) Zone as shown on Schedule “A1” to this By-law.

That subsection 4.7.3 of By-law 38-2007, as amended, be further amended by inserting
two exception zones after subsection 4.7.3.7, as follows:

“4.7.3.8 Mixed Use Commercial Exception Eight (C2-8) Zone

Notwithstanding the regulations in subsection 4.7.2 (and 4.6.2), on the lands zoned C2-8
the following special provisions shall apply for Single Detached and Converted Dwellings:

1)  Minimum Lot Area: 379m?

ii) Minimum Lot Frontage: 15.0m for the existing comer lot

i) Minimum Front Yard: 5.0m for the existing dwelling

iv) Minimum Exterior Side Yard: 3.2m for the existing dwelling

v) Minimum Interior Side Yard: 0.9m (west side) for the existing dwelling
vi) Minimum Rear Yard: 5.3m for the existing dwaelling

4.7.3.9 Mixed Use Commercial Exception Nine (C2-9) Zone

Notwithstanding the regulations in subsection 4.7.2 (and 4.6.2), on the lands zoned C2-9
the following special provisions shall apply for Single Detached and Converted Dwellings:

i) Minimum Lot Area: 300m?

ii) Minimum Front Yard: 3.8m

iii) Minimum Interior Side Yards: 1.5m (south) and 6m (north)
iv) Minimum Rear Yard: 3.8m"

That except as amended by this By-law, the subject lands as shown on Schedule “A1" to
this By-law shall be subject to all other applicable regulations of By-law 38-2007, as
amended.

Schedule “A1" attached hereto forms part of this By-law.
This By-law shall take effect from its date of passage by Council and shall come into force

either upon approval by the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal or upon compliance with
Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, C.P. 13.

BY-LAW READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME THIS 30TH DAY OF MAY, 2022,

BY-LAW READ A THIRD TIME AND ENACTED THIS 30TH DAY OF MAY, 2022,

MAYOR




SCHEDULE A1 TO BY-LAW NO, 27-2022
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

The purpose and effect of this amendment to Zoning By-law 38-2007 is to change the zoning of
the property known municipally as 250 Main Street East and described legally as All of Lot 10,
Block 10, Registered Plan 6A, in the Town of Shelbume, County of Dufferin, from Mixed Use
Commercial (C2) Zone to Mixed Use Commercial Exception Eight (C2-8) and Mixed Use
Commercial Exception Nine (C2-9) Zone as shown on Schedule “A1" to this By-law.

The amendment relates to a Consent application, File Number B22/01, which proposes to sever
the property into 2 residential lots from one existing residential lot containing an existing dwelling.
The re-zoning of the land to C2-8 (retained land) and C2-9 (severed land) applies appropriate
zone standards to recognize the existing dwelling on the retained lot and for the proposed
development of a single detached dwelling on the severed lot.



Denise Holmes

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Good Afternoon Tricia,

Magee, Julie (NDMNRF) <julie.magee@ontario.ca>

Monday, June 6, 2022 4:23 PM

Tricia Cook

Denise Holmes; clerk@dufferincounty.ca; Minor, Allison (NDMNRF)

3726 Site Plan Amendment Approval

3726_mSPA_Letter_jun.3.22.pdf; 3726_L_30f4_2022_06_03.pdf; 3726_L_40f4_2022_06_
03.pdf

The site plan amendment to allow for excess soils to be brought on site for the purpose of
rehabilitation for licence 3726, held by Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd., has been approved. Attached is
the approval letter as well as the revised site plan pages 3 of 4 and 4 of 4.

Please give me a call if you have any questions or concerns regarding the amendment process or

revised site plan.

Thanks,

Juwlie Magee
Aggregate Specialist

Integrated Aggregate Operations Section

Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry

807-889-0832

1 (o9

JUN 16 72027



Ministry of Northern Development, Ministére du Développement du Nord, des Mines,

Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry des Richesses naturelles et des Foréts @
0 a

Integrated Aggregate Operations Section  Section de la gestion intégrée des agrégats nta rlo

Regional Operations Division Division des opérations régionales

300 Water Street 300, rue Water

Peterborough, ON K9) 3C7 Peterborough (ON) K9J 3C7

E: ARAApprovals@ontario.ca E : ARAApprovals@ontario.ca

June 3, 2022

Tricia Cook

Delivery via Email — tcook@dhlgravel.com

Dear Tricia Cook:

Subject: Licence #3726 under the Aggregate Resources Act - Site Plan
Amendment
E PT Lot 13, Concession 4 OS, 437137 4t Line, Geographic Township of
Melancthon, Township of Melancthon, Dufferin County

Further to your site plan amendment request of January 31, 2022, please be advised
that the Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry
(NDMNRF) grants consent under Sec. 13 (3.1) of the Aggregate Resources Act to
proceed with the following amendments to the site plan:

Allow for excess soil to be brought on site for the purpose of rehabilitation subject to the
following conditions:

1) Excess soil, as defined in Ontario Regulation 406/19 under the Environmental
Protection Act, may be imported to this site to facilitate the following rehabilitation:
I.  Creation of 3:1 and 8:1 slopes
. Top dressing to establish vegetation

2) The quality of excess soil imported to the site for final placement must not exceed the
applicable excess soil quality standards in accordance with O. Reg 406/19 as amended
from time to time and must be consistent with the site conditions and the end use
identified in the approved rehabilitation plan.

3) Excess soil imported to facilitate rehabilitation as described shall be undertaken in
accordance with the “Rules for Soil Management and Excess Soil Quality Standards”
published by the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks

under O.Reg. 406/19, as amended from time to time.

4) The maximum total amount of excess soil that may be imported to this site for
rehabilitation purpose
s is 316,963.87m?.



Attached is the revised site plan (pages 3 of 4 and 4 of 4) approved by the NDMNRF on
June 3, 2022. The NDMNRF will forward a copy of this site plan to the agencies copied
below. Please replace the previous version of the site plan with the attached.

Should you have any questions regarding this amendment please contact Julie Magee,
Aggregate Specialist, at julie. magee@ontario.ca.

Sincerely,

Gl

Katie O'Connell

Aggregate Resources Manager

Integrated Aggregate Operations Section

Ministry Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry

Attachment — Licence # 3726 site plan (3 of 4 and 4 of 4 pages)
C.
Township of Melancthon

Dufferin County
NDMNREF District - Midhurst



(1) Excess soil, as defined in Ontario Regulation 406/19 under the Environmental Protection Act,
may be imported to this site to facilitate the following rehabilitation:

1. Creation of 3:1 slopes and 8:1 slopes

11, Top dressing to establish vegetation
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]OWNSH P Ol" 758070 27 Line E
,, ] H Mulmur, Ontario
Q‘X}l ._M LOV 0G8

tocal (705) 466-3341
Toll Free from 519 enly (866) 472-0417
fox (705) 466-2922

June 7,2022

RE: ONTARIO CLIMATE CAUCUS

At the meeting held on June 1, 2022, Council of the Township of Mulmur passed the
following resolution regarding the Ontario Climate Caucus.

Moved by Boxem and Seconded by Clark

WHEREAS Mulmur has officially joined the Ontario Climate Caucus to gain best
practices and access to case studies;

AND WHERAS Mulmur acknowledges that climate awareness is important to all
citizens;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT MOVED that Mulmur encourage all municipalities in
Dufferin to consider joining the Ontario Climate Caucus.

AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to all municipalities in
Dufferin County.

CARRIED.

Sincerely,

Tracey Atkinsow

‘Iracey Atkinson, CAO/Clerk/Planner
Township of Mulmur

Info# (O
JUN 16 2022



Denise Holmes

From: Nicole Hill <nhill@sdfd.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 12:30 PM
To: agordon@amaranth.ca; Alice Byl; Denise Holmes; fred.simpson@townofmono.com;

jwilloughby@shelburne.ca; nmartin@amaranth.ca; Roseann Knechtel; Sarah Culshaw;
tatkinson@mulmur.ca

Subject: SDFB Resolution
Attachments: 9.4 L2022-09 Revised Land Acknowledgement.pdf
Hello,

The following resolution was passed at the SDFB meeting on June 7

Moved by: S. Hall
Seconded by: E. Hawkins

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Shelburne & District Fire Board of Management receives the Town of Shelburne’s Revised Land Acknowledgement
and forwards on to all Councils for direction.
Carried

Nicole Hill
Secretary/Treasurer
Tel: (519) 925-5111

Shelburne & District Fire Board
114 O'Flynn Street
Shelburne, ON L9V 2W9 | nhill@sdfd.ca

1 ot [

JUN 16 722
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A Peaple Place, A Change of Pace
ol .
SHELBURNE

NTARIO, CANADLA

g

Meeting Date: Monday, May 30, 2022

To: Members of Council

From: Jennifer Willoughby, Director of Legislative
Services/Clerk

Report: LS2022-09

Subject: Revised Land Acknowledgement

Recommendation

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council receives report #1.52022-09 from the Director
of Legislative Services/Clerk for information;

AND THAT Council adopts the revised Land Acknowledgement;

AND requests that the revised Land Acknowledgement be forwarded to local
boards - Police, Fire and CDRC for their consideration.

Background

At the May 9, 2022, Council requested the Land Acknowledgement be
amended.

Analysis
Staff have worked closely with the Dufferin County Cultural Resource Circle

to amend the Land Acknowledgement to try and capture the request of
Council.

Report Clerks LS2022-09 Page 1 of 3



The following is being brought forward for consideration by Council:

We would like to begin by respectfully acknowledging that the Town of
Shelburne resides within the traditional territory and ancestral lands of the
Anishinaabe, including the Ojibway, Potawatomi, Chippewa and the People of
the Three Fires Confederacy.

These traditional territories upon which we live, work, play and learn are
steeped in rich Indigenous history and traditions. It is with this statement
that we declare to honour and respect the past and present connection of
Indigenous peoples with this land, its waterways and resources.

We encourage residents to review the call-to-action information by visiting
the following website to further research and educate oneself:

https://www.dccrc.ca/educational-links

This will become the Land Acknowledgement statement to be read during
Council and Committee meetings.

The Land Acknowledgement will also be read at all town sanctioned events,
the new information will also be added to our website.

Staff are recommending that the Land Acknowledgement be forwarded to
local Boards - Police, Fire and CDRC for their consideration.

Policies and Implications

Not applicable

Financial Impact

Not applicable

Consultation and Communications
Senior Management Team.

Council Strategic Priorities

Council’s Strategic Priorities have three Goals - Sustainable, Engaged and
Livable. There are a total of 12 targets with the three Goals.

This report aligns with the sustainable goals within the targets:
Target T6 — promote more open communication

Report Clerks LS2022-09 Page 2 of 3



Target T7 - promote partnerships and collaboration
Supporting Documentation

Not applicable

Respectfully Submitted and Prepared By:

Jennifer Willoughby, Director of Legislative Services/Clerk

Reviewed By:

Denyse Morrissey, CAO

Report Clerks LS2022-09 Page 3 of 3



Denise Holmes

From: Nicole Hill <nhill@sdfd.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 12:12 PM
To: agordon@amaranth.ca; Alice Byl; Denise Holmes; fred.simpson@townofmono.com;

jwilloughby@shelburne.ca; nmartin@amaranth.ca; Roseann Knechtel; Sarah Culshaw;,

tatkinson@mulmur.ca

Cc: Ralph Snyder

Subject: SDFB Resolution
Attachments: 9.1 2021 Annual Report.pdf
Hello,

The SDFB passed the following motion at the meeting held June 7

Moved by: G. Little
Seconded by: H. Foster

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
The Shelburne & District Fire Board of Management receives the Fire Chief's 2021 Annual Report;

AND THAT the Secretary-Treasurer send a copy of the report to the municipalities.
Carried

*please note that the Chief would like to attend each of your Council meetings to present the report.*

Nicole Hill
Secretary/Treasurer
Tel: (519) 925-5111

Shelburne & District Fire Board
114 O'Flynn Street
Shelburne, ON L9V 2W9 | nhill@sdfd.ca
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Shelburne & District Fire
Department

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Fire Chief Ralph Snyder| June 7, 2022



SHELBURNE & DISTRICT

Fire Chief

Deputy Chief
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Training Officer
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SHELBURNE & DISTRICT FIRE DEPARTMENT

OFFICE OF THE FIRE CHIEF: OFFICE OF THE SEC/TREAS:
Ralph Snyder

114 O’Flynn Street

Shelburne, Ontario. L9V 2W9
Telephone: 519-925-5111

Nicole Hill
114 O’Flynn Street
Shelburne, Ontario. L9V 2W9

Cell: 519-938-1609 = o Telephone: 519-925-5111
rsnyder{@sdfd.ca nhill@sdfd.ca

“SERVING THE MUNICIPALITIES OF AMARANTH, MELANCTHON, MONO, MULMUR AND SHELBURNE”

A MESSAGE FROM THE FIRE CHIEF

| am pleased to present our 2021 Annual Report.

2021 continued with a lowered demand for our services due to pandemic
restrictions and we finished the year with 236 calls for service.

We spent 289 actual hours responding to those incidents for a total of 3063
individual staff hours and 2290 individual responses by our members to answer
calls for service.

With a modified training schedule our firefighters attended 136 training sessions
in 2021 for a time commitment of 2241.5 hours.

Firefighters were able to complete 6 Public Education opportunities with different
groups. This included an invite to 4 elementary schools in our coverage area to
participate in an escape plan contest. All but one participated.

Our members continue to show strong commitment to the community, and | am
proud to lead this dedicated team.

Respectfully Submitted,

Chief Ralph Snyder



Municipality # of Calls

Amaranth 29
Melancthon 29
Mono 34
Mulmur 19
Shelburne 124
Other

(Southgate) 1

2021 Calls for Service by Municipality




Municipality % Levy $ Levy

Shelburne 54.69%| S 442,975.33
Melancthon 15.03%] $ 121,739.24
Amaranth 13.05%| $ 105,701.74
Mono 9.75%} $ 78,972.56
Mulmur 7.48%| S 60,586.13
Total Levy $ 809,975.00

$442,975.33

SHELBURNE

2021 SDFD COST SHARE PER MUNICIPALITY

$121,739.24

MELANCTHON

$105,701.74

AMARANTH
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SHELBURNE & DISTRICT FIRE DEPARTMENT
(&)

“SERVING THE MUNICIPALITIES OF AMARANTH, MELANCTHON, MONO, MULMUR AND SHELBURNE”

2021 Firefighter Training

Our dedicated Firefighters attended a total of 136 training sessions in 2021 for a total of
2241 man-hours.

In September we initiated monthly officer meetings at which we discuss training topics
and lead instructors for each topic.

With the appointment of FF Jason Duck as Training Officer we have made some
modifications to our training. We now generally divide into two training topics on a weekly
basis and trainees switch topics each week. T.O. Duck ensures a schedule is set at least
1 month in advance and a written lesson plan is prepared and approved by Chief
Officers.

With the return to our weekly in-house training, we managed to cover a wide range of
disciplines, techniques, and personal safety topics.

Outside of the scheduled internal training we had external training opportunities, but
these were limited by Covid restrictions.

The training library continues to be well utilized by the members. Materials including
texts, videos, and workbooks were signed out regularly. We are progressing with a

blended training program using Fire Learning Management System software, where
firefighters can do theory training online, and complete practical skills at live training.

We have a good percentage of our firefighters certified to the NFPA Firefighter Il
standard or higher, with the remainder actively working to achieve certification.



Additionally, we have members NFPA certified as Fire Officer, Fire & Life Safety
Educator, Fire Inspector, Fire Investigator, and Fire Instructor. We have 4 members

involved in NFPA Fire Officer level 1 training. All training records continue to be
maintained electronically on our FirePro2 software.



JAN 2021

FEB 2021

MAR 2021
APR 2021
MAY 2021
JUN 2021
JUL 2021

AUG 2021
SEP 2021
OCT 2021
NOV 2021
DEC 2021

Total:

Shelburne and District Fire Department
Fire Chief :Ralph Snyder
114 O'Flynn Street Shelburne ON
Shelburne ON L9V 2W9
PH : 519-925-5111

inspections by Month
From Jan 1 21 to Dec 31 21
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Your data was received and has been processed. 08-Apr-22
Please review the reports below, and contact OFM with any questions or revisions.

Monthly Ca" Summary This data is currently under review, and subject to revision.

FDID: 2221 00 Shelburne&District Fire Department

Total Injuries reported Estimated

Calls FF Civilian loss
2021 236 0 0 $6.073,003
January - 19 0 0 9675000
Fire 3 0 0 $675,000
Outdoor, no loss fire 1 0 $0
Non fire call 15 0 $0
February 15 0 $0
Non fire call 15 0 $0
March o 24 0 0  $5500
Fire 1 0 0 $5,500
Outdoor, no loss fire 5 0 $0
Non fire call 18 0 $0
April 14 0 $0
Outdoor, no loss fire 4 0 $0
Non fire call 10 0 $0
May 1% 0 0 $85500
Fire 2 0 0 $85,500
Outdoor, no loss fire 3 0 $0
Non fire call 11 0 $0
June 6 0 0 $70,003
Fire 3 0 0 $70,003
Non fire call 23 0 $0
uy 22 0o $0
Outdoor, no loss fire 1 0 $0
Non fire call 19 0 $0
August B 14 0. 0 $140,000
Fire 3 0 0 $140,000
Outdoor, no loss fire 1 0 $0
Non fire call 10 0 $0
September 22 0 $0

Page 1 of 7



October

November

December

Non fire call

Fire

Non fire call

Non fire call

Fire

Non fire call

22

25

24

15

13

%6

0 $0

0 0 95060000
0 0 $5,060,000
0 $0

0 0 $32,000

25
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All Call Summary This data is currently under review, and subject to revision.

FDID: 2221 00 Shelburne&District Fire Department

Total Injuries reported Estimated
Calls

2021

| Fire

Property fires_le_xplosions

| Outdoor, no loss fire
Property fires/explosions

NO LOSS OUTDOOR fire (see exclusions)

 Non fire call |
Burning (controlled)
Open air burning/unauthorized controlled burning (no
uncontrolled fire)
COFalsecalls .
CO false alarm - equipment malfunction (no CO
present)

CO false alarm - perceived emergency (no CO present)

False fire calls

Alarm System Equipment - Accidental activation (exc.
code 35)

Alarm System Equipment - Malfunction

Human - Accidental (alarm accidentally activated by
person)

Human - Malicious intent, prank

Human - Perceived Emergency

Medicalresuscitatorcall . ...
Asphyxia, Respiratory Condition
CPR administered
Medical Aid Not Required on Arrival
Medical/resuscitator call no action required
Other Medical/Resuscitator Call
Oxygen administered
Seizure
Vital signs absent, DOA

Other response

Assistance not required by other agency

FF Civilian
236 0 0
16 0 0
16 0 0
16 0 0

49

30

(o]

[N
: O

B a  aa NN ANy -

35

o O O O O O o o o

o

loss
$6,073,003

$6,073,003
$6.073,003

$6,073,003

$0

$0
$0

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
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Assistance to Other Agencies (exc 921 and 922)
Assistance to Police (exc 921 and 922)
Assisting Other FD: Mutual Aid

Call cancelled on route

Incident not found

Other Public Service

Pre fire conditions/no fire
Other Cooking/toasting/smoke/steam (no fire)
Other pre fire conditions (no fire)

Overheat (no fire, e.g. engines, mechanical devices)

Pubfic Hazard B
CO incident, CO present (exc false alarms)

Gas Leak - Natural Gas

Gas Leak - Propane

Power Lines Down, Arcing

Public Hazard call false alarm

Rescue

Low angle rescue (non fire)
Other Rescue

Rescue no action required
Vehicle Collision

Vehicle Extrication

16

W = hHh

23

60

- o =2 N O

©o 0o 0o o0 © © o o o ©o o o o o o

o O O O o o

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
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Call Summary by Location/Municipality Attended

*NEW report created May-2019: This data is currently under review, and subject to revision.

FDID: 2221 00 Shelburne&District Fire Department

Total Calls Attended

in Location
2021 236
Amaraniﬁ 29
Melancthon 29
Mono 34
Mulmur 19
Shelburne 124
Southgate 1

Page 5 of 7



Fire losses: Estimated losses of < $4 or $500,000+

Please confirm with a check or revise the estimate and email to OFMstatistics@ontario.ca.
Note: $0 for fires is accepted, but a confirmation is required.

FDID:2221 00 FDName: Shelburne&District Fire Department
Fire dep incident # Date:

Estimated loss, address, property type, possible cause reported Est loss confirmed

21-190 25-Oct-21 $5,060,000 TOWN OF MONO ]

Large Truck (Excluding Truck Trailer) Electrical Failure

Page 6 of 7
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SHELBURNE & DISTRICT FIRE DEPARTMENT

e

<
1

“SERVING THE MUNICIPALITIES OF AMARANTH, MELANCTHON, MONO, MULMUR AND SHELBURNE”

Chairman and Members of the Shelburne and District Fire Board of Management.
| thank the fire board again for giving me the opportunity to lead this fire department.

2021 was another challenging year for the Shelburne & District Fire Department. Our
firefighters continued to show their professionalism with commitment to supporting our
communities through training and response.

The past year saw some significant changes in the fire service with the closing of the Ontario
Fire College and a transition towards full NFPA certifications. Provincial legislation has been
introduced and will likely be passed in July of 2022. All firefighters will be required to achieve
NFPA certification for the roles they perform under our Establishing and Regulating bylaws
under this new mandate.

The update to our apparatus fleet with the purchase of Pump 27 and a review of the long-term
replacements has left us in a good position to evaluate options for maintaining a viable
emergency response fleet. Unfortunately, we are seeing an increase of upwards of 30% in the
cost of new fire apparatus in the last year. The firehall could benefit greatly from the installation
of a SCBA cylinder filling station as we currently rely on neighbouring departments for our
breathing air. We are investigating funding sources to help offset this capital purchase in 2023.

We are facing some major challenges with the training of our Firefighters and Officers. The
closing of the Ontario Fire College (OFC) campus has forced us to investigate new ways to
achieve training goals. We have discussed learning contracts with the OFC Academic
Manager and will pursue this alternative to continue education and training at a relatively low
cost. We have some very qualified personnel to lead in-house courses. Training on live fire,
search, rescue, and firefighter survival in a realistic environment may be a more expensive
endeavor at regional centers. The OFMEM has just introduced an online testing platform which
should make it easier to get post-training testing completed.

Although SDFD call volume was down by approximately 11% over 2020’s call volume,
probably due to restrictions imposed by the pandemic, we anticipate the needs of residents in
our catchment area to continue to result in higher call volumes. We should continually address
potential growth of department resources and service delivery model changes to meet future
challenges with the professional service that our residents have come to expect.

Ralph Snyder
Fire Chief
Shelburne & District Fire Department
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Acknowledging on whose land we sit

We would like to begin by respectfully acknowledging ﬁ_ﬁgﬁ“ |
that Dufferin County resides within the traditional LA il

territory and ancestral lands of the Tionontati (Petun),
Attawandaron (Neutral), Haudenosaunee (Six Nations),
and Anishinaabe peoples.

Land Acknowledgement Decoded § o STIRRANT | S

GIIWEDINONG
NORTH

THE MORTHEAN DIRECTION §s the period of rest
= and reflection. The Earth iests during the
winter, It is 2 place of wisdom and whaere the
Elders are honoured, Elders bring teachings of

A primer on the history and the reconciliation goals
behind the statements read out before municipal, arts
and sports events.

wisdom and spirituality. The new day gets ready
to be bom. The sacred plant that represents the
north is sweetgrass, known for Its beautifully
sweet, aromatic scent, Sweetgrass will turn white
when left outside.

https://www.inthehills.ca/2022/03/land-acknowledgments-
decoded/



Dufferin Climate Action Plan




Dufferin is Getting...

WARMER WETTER WILDER
Warming across all seasons Increasing annual Increasing severe weather
and more extreme heat days precipitation, especially in events, especially freezing rain

winter, spring, and fall



Climate Action in Dufferin [J%@ pﬁ%‘gN

in Dufferin

Who We Are

The County of Dufferin’s official climate action initiative.

Our Role
To carry out the actions in the Dufferin Climate Action DUFFER|N CUMATE :

m Dufferin ,CLIMATE

county /{C"ON y




Where We Are Now...

Agriculture, Forestry,
. . and Land Use, 16%
Residential,
In 2016, 438,264 tonnes 229

of CO2e were emitted in
Dufferin County

Solid Waste,
2%

Commercial, 5%

Industrial, 2%

Other, 5%
Transportation,

49%



Where We'’re Going: Our Vision

TO CREATE A NET-ZERO AND RESILIENT
COMMUNITY FOR CURRENT AND FUTURE
GENERATIONS IN DUFFERIN COUNTY, WHILE:

ENHANCING THE BUILDING PRESERVING AND FOSTERING A
HEALTH AND EQUITABLE ENHANCING LOCAL = PROSPEROUS AND
WELL-BEING OF AND VIBRANT BIODIVERSITY AND  INNOVATIVE LOCAL
COMMUNITY NEIGHBOURHOODS = NATURAL SYSTEMS ECONOMY

MEMBERS




A Targeted Approach

2030 2040 50

It is expected that future
technical advances will help to
measure the ability of the soil to

capture carbon locally.

10% below 2016 levels 40% below 2016 levels Net-Zero




How We’'re Getting There

On the Move In Our Buildings For Our Land

Planning Our Empowering Our
Community Community




Our Progress

Climate Action Report Card




The First Year of Progress

The Dufferin Climate Action Plan has 99 actions. The statuses of the actions are as follows:

Complete In Progress Ongoing Early Stages Behind Delayed Future Action




Our Progress

Installed the Charge Up in
Dufferin network of 24 public
electric vehicle charging stations.

Composted 3,200 tonnes
of organics through Dufferin
Waste's Green Bin program.

Launched the Climate Hub
and Climate Stories of Dufferin
project.

Completed a feasibility study for
a community deep energy retrofit
financing program.

Activated the Experimental Acres . . .
Farm pilot in partnership with Join the Climate Conversation!

Wellington County. Visit linktr.ee/climateactionindufferin to
connect with Climate Action in Dufferin.




Stay Connected With Us

@climateactionindufferin
dufferincounty.ca/climatechange

climate@dufferincounty.ca




Thank You!

Sara MacRae
Manager of Climate & Energy
smacrae@dufferincounty.ca







Denise Holmes

From: Franz Hartmann <franz@earthroots.org>

Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 10:34 AM

To: Lori McLean; Peter Shuttleworth

Cc: Rebecca Kolarich

Subject: “"Save the Date" for Ontario's first Pollinator Highways Meeting

Dear Friends,

Earthroots, in partnership with the Lake Simcoe Region Conservation Authority, want to invite you to the first-
ever Pollinator Highways Meeting on September 15, 2022.

What: A meeting to discuss a new project to build 6 Pollinator Highways along iconic road
routes in Southern Ontario (see concept here).

Why you're invited: Because one (or more) of the proposed Pollinator Highways goes through
your jurisdiction. As an important stakeholder, we want your involvement from the outset.

Who Else is Invited: Stakeholders from government, conservation authorities, the private
sector, and community groups who care about restoring pollinator habitat in southern Ontario
and who live in town/cities/jurisdictions along the proposed Pollinator Highways.

When: Thursday, September 15th, all day.

Pre-register here and we'll send you more detailed information as it becomes available.

To learn more, please contact Rebecca Kolarich at rebecca@earthroots.org.

All the best,

The Earthroots Team

conservation authority




CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
BY-LAW NO. -2022

Being a By-law to authorize a boundary road agreement between the Corporation of the
Township of Southgate and the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon

WHEREAS Section 8 of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended provides that
a municipality has the authority to govern its affairs as it considers appropriate an
enables the municipality to respond to municipal issues; and

WHEREAS Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended provides
that a municipal power, including a municipality’s capacity, rights, powers and privileges
under section 9, shall be exercised by By-law unless the municipality is specifically
authorized to do otherwise; and

WHEREAS Section 27 of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended provides
that a municipality may pass By-laws in respect of a highway only if it has jurisdiction
over the highway; and

WHEREAS Section 728(1) of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended sets
out the highways over which a municipality has jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS Section 29.1(1) of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.D. 2001, as amended
provides that municipalities having joint jurisdiction over a boundary line highway may
enter into an agreement to keep any part of the highway in repair for its whole width
and to indemnify the other municipality form any loss or damage arising from the lack
or repair for that part; and

WHEREAS it is deemed necessary and desirable that the Council of the Corporation of
the Township of Melancthon enact a By-law authorizing the Corporation to enter into a
Boundary Road Agreement with the Corporation of the Township of Southgate,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the
Township of Melancthon enacts as follows:

1. THAT the Agreement between the Corporation of the Township of Southgate
and the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon attached hereto as Schedule
A (the “Agreement”), is hereby ratified and confirmed; and

2. THAT the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to sign the
Agreement, in substantially the same form as the Agreement attached hereto as
Schedule “A”, on behalf of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon and
all other documents as may be necessary to give effect thereto; and

3. THAT this By-law shall come into force and effect on the date of its passing.

By-law read a first and second time this 16% day of June, 2022.

By-law read a third time and finally passed this 16t day of June, 2022.

MAYOR CLERK

aB# [6-[./
JUN 16 7022



The Corporation of the Township of Southgate

By-law No. 2022-077

being a by-law to authorize a boundary road agreement between The
Corporation of the Township of Melancthon and The Corporation of the Township
of Southgate

Whereas Section 8 of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended
provides that a municipality has the authority to govern its affairs as it considers
appropriate and enables the municipality to respond to municipal issues; and

Whereas Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended
provides that a municipal power, including a municipality’s capacity, rights,
powers and privileges under section 9, shall be exercised by by-law unless the
municipality is specifically authorized to do otherwise; and

Whereas Section 27 of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended
provides that a municipality may pass by-laws in respect of a highway only if it
has jurisdiction over the highway; and

Whereas Section 28(1) of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended
sets out the highways over which a municipality has jurisdiction; and

Whereas Section 29.1(1) of the Municipal Act 2001, R.S.0. 2001, as amended
provides that municipalities having joint jurisdiction over a boundary line
highway may enter into an agreement to keep any part of the highway in repair
for its whole width and to indemnify the other municipality from any loss or
damage arising from the lack or repair for that part; and

Whereas it is deemed necessary and desirable that the Council of the
Corporation of the Township of Southgate enact a by-law authorizing the
Corporation to enter into a Boundary Road Agreement with the Corporation of
the Township of Melancthon,

Now therefore be it resolved that the Council of the Corporation of the
Township of Southgate hereby enacts as follows:

1. That the agreement between The Corporation of the Township of
Melancthon and The Corporation of the Township of Southgate attached
hereto as Schedule "A" (the “Agreement”), is hereby ratified and
confirmed; and

2. That the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to sign the
Agreement, in substantially the same form as the agreement attached
hereto as Schedule “A”, on behalf of the Corporation of the Township of
Southgate and all other documents as may be necessary to give effect
thereto; and

3. That this by-law shall come into force and effect on the date of its
passing.

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 1 day of
June, 2022,

U John Woodbury - Mayor

Lo

'Lindsey Green - ?érk




Schedule “A” to By-law 2022-077

Boundary Road Agreement
This agreement made in duplicate this | day of _Jwwne. , 2022

Between:

The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon
Hereinafter referred to as “Melancthon”
And

The Corporation of the Township of Southgate
Hereinafter referred to as “Southgate”

Whereas Sections 20, 29, 29.1 and 52 of the Municipal Act, 2001 (The “Act’) make
provisions for agreements between adjoining municipalities for the maintenance and
repair of any highway or bridge forming the boundary between such municipalities,
including the bridges thereon (hereinafter a “Boundary Road”); and

Whereas Boundary Roads exist between the jurisdictions of the Township of Southgate
and the Township of Melancthon as set out in Schedule ‘A’; and

Whereas it is deemed expedient and necessary for each municipality to be responsible
for the year-round oversight, maintenance and repair of particular portions of existing
Boundary Roads;

Now Therefore in consideration of the mutual covenants set out below with other good
and valuable consideration (the receipt of which is acknowledged), the parties hereto
agree each with the other as follows:

1. Definitions

Bridge: means a public bridge forming part of a highway on, over or across which a
highway passes.

Capital Improvements: All work to be performed that is above and beyond that work
required by Routine Maintenance standards or Winter Maintenance standards, including
but not limited to items such as road construction, hot mix asphalt, resurfacing and
shoulder gravelling associated with this resurfacing, bridge repairs or replacements, and
any bridge surface treatment.

Highway: means a common or public highway, any part of which is intended for or

1|Page



used by the public for the passage of vehicles and pedestrians and includes the areas
between the lateral property lines thereof.

Level of Service: means the level of service as adopted by the council of the
municipality for repair of a highway, as reflected in Schedule B attached hereto, as it
may be amended from time to time.

Minimum Maintenance Standards: Shall mean those standards stipulated by Ontario
Regulation 239/02 for the maintenance standards of repair for highways under municipal
jurisdiction, as they may be amended from time to time.

No Winter Maintenance: means Township roads which are not opened and
therefore are not maintained or serviced during the time period of November 1stto
April 30w by the Municipality. Any travel upon these roads during this time period is
at the individual’s own risk,

Roadway: means that part of the highway that is improved, designed or ordinarily used
for vehicular traffic, but does not include the shoulder.

Routine Maintenance: means those activities completed in the ongoing maintenance
and repair of a highway or bridge and as described as follows:

e Hardtop surface maintenance includes frost heave repair, base repair, utility cut
repair, hot and cold mix patching, shoulder maintenance, surface maintenance
including crack sealing, slurry sealing and spray patching, surface sweeping, surface
flushing and routine patrolling.

e Roadside maintenance includes vegetation management including roadside mowing,
weed control, tree planting and removal, tree trimming, sidewalk maintenance, debris
collection including debris and leaves, curb and gutter, guiderail and fence
maintenance.

o Stormwater management maintenance includes roadside ditching, entrance culvert
maintenance, maintenance of storm sewers and catch basins and inspections.

e Structures includes washing and component repairs for concrete and steel culverts,
bridges of all types and pedestrian bridges.

e Traffic operations include pavement markings, illumination, signals and signs and
safety devices.

Shoulder: means the area adjacent to a roadway, where there is no curb that may be
paved or unpaved.

Winter Maintenance: includes snowplowing, combination plowing/ice control, ice
control, de-icing, sanding, winging back, snow fencing, snow removal, standby, winter
patrol, spring clean-up, sidewalk plowing and de-icing.

Winter Maintenance Season: means the continuous period of time between the
second Monday of November and the second Friday of April annually. Each Party
agrees that it shall also attend to winter events that occur prior to November the second
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Monday in November and after the second Friday in April until winter events have
subsided at the end of each season. Both Parties acknowledge that the Level of
Service stipulated by the parties to be provided during periods falling outside the Winter
Maintenance Season will be a lower standard than that which is required by the parties
during the Winter Maintenance Season, but that any Leve! of Service shall always meet
the Common Law test of reasonableness.

Non-Winter Maintenance Season: means the continuous period of time between after
the second Friday in April to the second Monday in November annually.

2. Term

The parties agree to provide Winter Maintenance and Routine Maintenance services on
those sections of the Boundary Road that they are individually responsible for, as set
out in Schedule ‘A’ for a period of five (5) years commencing on the date this agreement
is signed by both parties (the “Term”).

The parties agree that this agreement shall automatically renew immediately prior to the
expiration of the Term or any extension of the Term for a further one-year period on the
same terms and conditions unless either Party provides 180 days’ notice in writing of its
intention to terminate the agreement at the expiration of the then current Term.

3. Insurance

3.1 Each Party shall at its own expense, obtain and keep in force during the Term of
this agreement, insurance satisfactory to the other Party including the following
terms and minimum coverage, which limits may be achieved by way of primary
and/or umbrella or excess policies, and underwritten by an insurer licensed to do
business in the Province of Ontario. Such policies shall include, but not be limited
to:

a) Municipal General Liability Insurance on an occurrence basis for an amount
of not less than Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00) including:

i) Shall include but not limited to bodily injury, property damage and
contractual liability;

j)  The other Party shall be added as an Additional Insured with respect to
the operations of the named insured,;

i)  Contain a Cross liability and severability of Interest clauses;

i)  Policies shall not be invalidated as respect to the interests of the
Additional Insured by reason of any breach or violation on any
warranties, representations, declarations or conditions;

iv) Non-owned automobile coverage with a limit of no less than Ten Million
Dollars ($10,000,000.00);

v)  Products and completed operations coverage with a limit of not less
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than Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00);
vi) A thirty-day written notice of cancellation or termination.

b) Standard OAP 1 Automobile Liability Insurance for an amount not less than
Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00) on forms meeting statutory requirements
covering all licensed vehicles used in any manner in connection with the
performance of the terms of this Agreement.

c) Environmental Liability Insurance subject to limits of not less than Five
Million ($5,000,000) inclusive per claim and shall include coverage for but not
limited to, bodily injury including death, property damage and remediation costs
which are reasonable and necessary to investigate, neutralize, remove,
remediate (including associated monitoring) or dispose of soil, surface water,
groundwater or other contamination.

32 Prior to execution of this agreement and upon the placement, renewal,
amendment, or extension of all or any part of the insurance, each party shall
provide the other party with confirmation of the insurance coverage required by
this agreement. Insurance shall apply to the sub-contractor in the same manner as
it would to each party to this agreement. Further, it is each party’s obligation to
ensure that the sub-contractor is aware of these obligations. Each party shall
provide to the other party confirmation of the sub-contractor's insurance.

3.3 Both parties agree to immediately notify the other Party of any occurrence, incident
or event which may reasonably be expected to expose either Party to material
liability of any kind in relation to the Boundary Roads.

3.4 Each Party agrees that if either fails to take out or keep in force any such
insurance referred to in this section, or should any such insurance not be approved
by either Party, and should either Party not commence and proceed to diligently
rectify the situation within forty-eight (48) hours after written notice by either Party,
either Party has the right without assuming any obligation in connection therewith,
to affect such insurance at the sole cost of either Party. Either Party shall be
reimbursed as set out under the terms of this Agreement.

4. Indemnity

Each Party agrees to defend, indemnify and save and hold harmless the other Party
from all claims, lawsuits, losses, expenses and costs, or any other liability imposed by
statute or common law in any way connected to or in any way arising out of any actual
or alleged breach, default or neglect of duty in respect of the winter maintenance and
routine maintenance of the road sections for which they are responsible for, as referred
to in this agreement.

5. Notice of Claim

in the event that either party receives a Statement of Claim, notice of claim or other
information regarding a pending or possible claim by a third party with respect to liability
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for failure to keep the Road in repair or for damages or injuries sustained relating
thereto such party shall immediately notify and provide to the other party such claim or
notice of claim.

6. Maintenance and Repair of Highways — Scope of Work

6.1 The Municipalities hereby covenant and agree one to the other, to:

a)

b)

d)

e)

a)

h)

i)

Undertake all Winter Maintenance activities during each Winer Maintenance
Season throughout the Term of the Agreement.

in addition to the requirements set out in section 6.1a), attend to winter
events that occur prior to November 15" and After April 1t until winter events
have subsided at the end of each season throughout the Term of the
Agreement. Both parties acknowledge that the level of service provided
outside of the Winter Maintenance Season may be at a lower level than
during the Winter Maintenance Season, but that it shall meet the minimum
maintenance standards set forth in regulations made by the Minister of
Transportation as contemplated in Section 44(4) of the Act (the “Minimum
Maintenance Standards for Municipal Highways”) where such standards
apply and in the event there is no applicable Maintenance Standard, it shall
meet the standard of what is reasonable in the circumstances.

To maintain and keep in good repair, any required Routine Maintenance
during winter operations those highways listed in Schedule ‘A’ by meeting or
exceeding the “Minimum Maintenance Standards for Municipal Roads’ for the
whole width of those highways listed.

To be responsible for all removal of snow beyond the width of the road and
shoulders if required.

To be responsible to provide snow blowing services requirement within the
right of way, if deemed necessary by one of the parties.

To be responsible for drainage maintenance, including the clearing of
ditches, curbs and gutters, catch basins and storm drains.

To be responsible for the surface maintenance, including the repair of
potholes, cracks and depressions and shoulder gravelling.

To be responsible for all routine patrolling and maintenance activities
throughout the entire Term of this Agreement. Routine maintenance shall be
provided at service levels compliant with the Minimum Maintenance
Standards set forth in Ontario Regulation 239/02 of the Act.

To be responsible for any and all traffic signal devices at the intersections.

6.2 Location and Work to be Completed by each Party — The map attached hereto as
Schedule ‘A’ indicates the location of the Boundary Road. Both parties
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acknowledge their road section responsibilities as per Schedule ‘A’.
7. Capital Costs

7.1 Subject to the further terms set out in this section, each municipality shall be
responsible for one-half of any and all Capital Improvements on the Boundary
Roads.

7.2 Prior to either Party completing any capital improvements each Party will identify
the proposed Capital Improvement work to the other Party.

7.3 No new construction or major maintenance work (as distinguished from routine
maintenance) of any kind on highways and bridges shall commence or be charged
by one Party to this agreement to the other unless such construction or major
maintenance work has first been approved by the Councils of both municipalities
and included in their respective capital budgets for the year that the work is to
commence.

7.4 If both parties agree that capital work is required, they will mutually agree upon
how the work will be completed and the timing of such work to be completed.

7.5 Except in the case of emergencies, each Party shall notify the other Party at least
two years in advance of any such capital improvement work proposed and the
extent and cost of the capital improvement work shall be mutually agreed upon
prior to proceeding with the work.

7.6 The Party who administers the work as determined in Section 7.4 shall invoice the
other Party for one half of the capital cost no later than the 31%t day of December in
the year in which the work was completed. Payment of the invoice shall be made
no later than thirty (30) days from receipt of the invoice.

8. Maintenance and Repair of Bridges

Both Parties hereby mutually acknowledge and agree that at the time of this agreement
that there are two (2) bridges on the Melancthon-Southgate Townline. Grey County has
jurisdiction of the closed bridge commonly known as the “Red Bridge” between Highway
89 and Southgate Road 04. The Towline bridge between Melancthon Sideroad 270 and
Southgate Road 04 has also been closed to public travel.

9. Annual Review and Planning

Each year throughout the Term of the Agreement, after April 15" and not later than
June 30", the parties will meet to discuss any issues arising from this Agreement,
including but not limited to the previous year's work and will identify and plan works for
the upcoming year(s) as the case may be.
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10.Payment

10.1 Melancthon and Southgate shall share equally all capital expenses connected with
any new construction or major maintenance work (as distinguished from routine
maintenance) carried out for all highways listed in Schedule ‘A’.

10.2 Each Party will invoice the other as necessary for its share of the expenditures
related to new construction or major maintenance work carried out for all highways
listed in Schedule ‘A’ and as determined in accordance with paragraph 3 below of
this agreement and the Party being invoiced shall pay the amount invoiced within
thirty (30) days of receipt of such invoice.

11. Entrance Permits

Entrance Permits on Boundary Roads shall be processed by the municipality in which
the land requiring the permit is located in consultation with the other municipality as to
road safety conditions.

12. Notice

Any notice to be given under this Agreement shall be sufficiently given if delivered or if
sent by prepaid first-class mail and addressed to:

The Clerk’s Office

The Corporation of the Township of Southgate
185667 Grey Road 9

Dundalk, ON NOC 1B0

And to:

The Clerk’s Office

The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon
157101 Highway 10

Melancthon, ON L9V 2E6

Receipt of notice shall be deemed on the earlier of the date of deliver or five (5) days
following the date of mailing of the notice.

13. Arbitration

13.1 In the event of any dispute arising between the parties hereto relating to any
matter which is the subject of this Agreement and cannot be settled within ninety
(90) days, then the dispute will be submitted to arbitration by notice given by either
Party to the other.

13.2 Upon such notice being given, the dispute shall be determined by the award of
three arbitrators or a majority of them, one to be named by each Party within thirty
(30) days of such giving notice and the third to be selected by these two arbitrators
within seven (7) days after both have been nominated.
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13.3 If either Party neglects or refused to name its arbitrator within the time specified or
to proceed with the arbitration, the arbitrator named by the other Party shall
proceed with the arbitration.

13.4 The arbitrators shall have all the powers given by the Arbitration Act of Ontario and
may at any time proceed in such manner as they may see fit on such notice as
them deem reasonable in the absence of either Party if such Party fails to attend.

13.5 Each Party shall pay its own costs and shall share equally in the costs of the
arbitration.

13.6 The cost of the arbitrators is not limited to those set forth under the Arbitration Act
of Ontario and the arbitrators shall be able to charge their usual professional
charges.

14. General

Notwithstanding anything in this agreement, neither Party shall be in default with
respect to the performance of any of the terms of this agreement if any non-
performance is due to any force majeure, strike, lock-out, labour dispute, civil
commotion, act of God, government regulations or controls, inability to obtain any
material or service or any cause beyond the reasonable control of the Party.

The rights and liabilities of the parties shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon
the parties and their respective successors and approved assigns. If any provision,
clause or part of this agreement or the application of this agreement under certain
circumstances, is held by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the
remainder of the agreement, or the application of that provision, clause or part under
other circumstances shall not be affected.
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In Witness Whereof the Corporate Seals of each of the parties hereto have been
affixed duly attested by the respective officers authorized in that behalf.

The Corporation of the Township of Southgate

S

Per S
May:{y
Per . Lud%q/
~ Clerk /

The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon

Per

Mayor

Per

Clerk
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Schedule ‘A’ to the Boundary Road Agreement

Part ‘A’ Southgate Responsibilities

The Township of Southgate agrees to operate, maintain, renew, insure and administer

for routine and winter maintenance only:

Road Section Maint. Southgate | Melancthon
Class Road ID Road ID

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from 6 429 1257

Southgate Road 12 to Melancthon 7% Line

Southwest for a distance of 0.8 kms

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from 4 522 1247

Southgate Road 10 to Melancthon Sideroad

260 for a distance of 0.65 kms

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from 4 524 1218

Melancthon 8% Line southwest to Southgate

Road 08 for a distance of 0.4 kms

Covering a total distance of 1.85 kms.

The Township of Southgate agrees to operate, maintain, renew, insure and administer

for summer maintenance only:

Road 04 to Highway 89 for a distance of 2.4
kms.

Road Section Maint. | Southgate | Melancthon
Class Road ID Road ID

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Southgate 6 429 1257; 1444

Road 12 to Melancthon Sideroad 260 for a

distance of 0.8 kms

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Southgate 4 522 1247;: 1420

Road 10 to Melancthon 8" Line southwest for a

distance of 0.4 kms.

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Melancthon 6 111 1271

Sideroad 270 to Southgate Road 04 for a

distance of 0.5 kms;

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Southgate 6 112 1196

Covering a total distance of 4.1 kms.
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No Winter Maintenance

Road Section Maint. | Southgate | Melancthon
Class Road ID Road ID

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Melancthon 6 111 1271

Sideroad 270 to Southgate Road 04 for a distance

of 0.5 kms;

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Southgate 6 112 1196

Road 04 to Highway 89 for a distance of 2.4 kms.

Covering a total distance of 2.9 kms.

Part ‘B’ Melancthon Responsibilities

The Township of Melancthon agrees to operate, maintain, renew, insure and administer

for summer maintenance only:

Road Section Maint. Southgate | Melancthon

Class Road ID Road ID
Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Melancthon 486 523, 111 1420; 1218,
Sideroad 260 to Melancthon Sideroad 270 for a 1197
distance of 2.35 kms

The Township of Melancthon agrees to operate, maintain, renew, insure and administer

for winter maintenance only:

Road Section Maint. | Southgate | Melancthon
Class Road ID Road ID

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Melancthon 6 524 1420

Sideroad 260 to Melancthon 8™ Line southwest for

a distance of 0.85 kms

No Winter Maintenance

Road Section Maint. | Southgate | Melancthon
Class Road ID Road ID

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Melancthon 6 111 1271

Sideroad 270 to Southgate Road 04 for a distance

of 0.5 kms;

Southgate-Melancthon Townline from Southgate 6 112 1196

Road 04 to Highway 89 for a distance of 2.4 kms.

Covering a total distance of 2.9 kms.
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Schedule ‘B’ to the Boundary Road Agreement
Winter Level of Service

Part ‘A’ Township of Southgate

Winter Operations Planning Document for Township of Southgate

This winter operations plan sets out a policy and procedural framework for ensuring
that the “The Township of Southgate” continuously improves on the safe and
sustainable delivery of winter maintenance services and the effective and efficient use
of road salt in their winter maintenance operations. This plan supersedes all previous
plans for the “The Township of Southgate”.
The plan is meant to be dynamic, to allow the municipality to evaluate and phase-in
any changes, new approaches and technologies in winter maintenance activities in a
fiscally sound manner. At the same time, any modifications to municipal winter
maintenance activities must ensure that roadway safety is not compromised.
This Winter Operations Plan for the “The Township of Southgate” was endorsed by “The
Township of Southgate Council" on December 1, 2021.

1. Level of Service

The Township of Southgate provides the following level of service during the winter
maintenance season, as set out in section 4.3 of the Winter Operations Planning
Document for the Township of Southgate, in response to a winter event.

The minimum standard for clearing snow accumulation is:
1.1. Snow Accumulation and lce Formation Policy
1.1.1. The standard for addressing snow accumulation is:

a) After becoming aware of the fact that the snow accumulation on a
roadway is greater than the depth set out in the Table to this section, to
deploy resources as soon as practicable to address the snow
accumulation; and

b) after the snow accumulation has ended, to address the snow
accumulation so as to reduce the snow to a depth less than or equal to the
depth set out in the Table within the time set out in the Table,

i. to provide a minimum lane width of the lesser of three metres for
each lane or the actual lane width, or

ii. on a Class 4 or Class 5 highway with two lanes, to provide a total
width of at least five metres. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 4.

1.1.2. If the depth of snow accumulation on a roadway is less than or equal to the

depth set out in the Table to this section, the roadway is deemed to be in a
state of repair with respect to snow accumulation. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 4
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1.1.3. For the purposes of this section, the depth of snow accumulation on a
roadway and, if applicable, lane width under subsection (1)(b), may be
determined in accordance with subsection (4) by a municipal employee, agent
or contractor, whose duties or responsibilities include one or more of the
following:

a) Patrolling highways.
b) Performing highway maintenance activities.

c) Supervising staff who perform activities described in paragraph 1 or 2. O.
Reg. 47/13, s. 4.

1.1.4. The depth of snow accumulation on a roadway and lane width may be
determined by,

a) performing an actual measurement;
b) monitoring the weather; or
c) performing a visual estimate. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 4,

1.1.5. For the purposes of this section, addressing snow accumulation on a roadway
includes, but is not limited to,

a) plowing the roadway;
b) salting the roadway;

i. the application of other chemical or organic agents to the roadway;
c) applying abrasive materials to the roadway; or

d) any combination of the methods described in clauses (a), (b), (b.1) and
(c). O. Reg. 47/13, s. 4.

1.1.6. This section does not apply to that portion of the roadway designated for
parking. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 4.

1.1.7. If at any time a municipality declares a weather emergency, then all roadways
within the municipality are deemed to be in a state of repair in respect of any
snow accumulation present, until the applicable time under the Table to this
section expires following the end of the declared weather emergency.

1.2. lce Formation:

1.2.1. The standard for attempting the prevention of ice formation on roadways is
doing the following in the 24-hour period preceding an alleged formation of ice
on a roadway:

a) Monitor the weather in accordance with section 3.1.
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b) Patrol in accordance with section 3.

c) If the municipality determines, as a result of its activities under
paragraph 1 or 2, that there is a substantial probability of ice forming
on a roadway, treat the roadway to attempt to prevent ice formation
within the time set out in the Table to this section, starting from the
time that the municipality determines is the appropriate time to deploy

resources for that purpose. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 5.

1.2.2. If the municipality meets the standard set out in subsection (1) and, despite
such compliance, ice forms on a roadway, the roadway is deemed to be in a

state of repair until the earlier of,

a) the time that the municipality becomes aware of the fact that the roadway

is icy; or

b) the applicable time set out in the Table to this section for treating the

roadway to prevent ice formation expires. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 5.

1.2.3. The standard for treating icy roadways after the municipality becomes aware
of the fact that a roadway is icy is to treat the icy roadway within the time set
out in the Table to this section, and an icy roadway is deemed to be in a
state of repair until the applicable time set out in the Table for treating the icy
roadway expires. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 5.

1.2.4. For the purposes of this section, treating a roadway means applying material
to the roadway, including but not limited to, salt, sand or any combination of

salt and sand. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 5.

1.2.5. If at any time a municipality declares a weather emergency, then all
roadways within the municipality are deemed to be in a state of repair in
respect of any ice present, until the applicable time under the Table to this
section expires following the end of the declared weather emergency.

Table: Snow Accumulation

Class of Highway Depth Time

1 2.5cm 4 Hours
2 5cm 6 Hours
3 8cm 12 Hours
4 8cm 16 Hours
5 10cm 24 Hours
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Table: Ice Formation prevention and Icy Roadways

Class of Highway Time

1 3 Hours
2 4 Hours
3 8 Hours
4 12 Hours
5 16 Hours

4.5. Winter Patrol

The Township of Southgate performs carries out winter patrols. Appendix 1 shows the
route of representative roads to be patroiled in winter.

4.6.10. Weather Monitoring

In order to determine an effective winter event response and allocate the appropriate
resources the Township of Southgate supplements their general observations with
weather information from various sources which includes:

1 Infrared Thermometers

Observations from municipal staff, communication with staff of adjacent municipalities;

Customized weather forecasts which are updated 4 times/day from a Value-Added
Meteorological Service the Winter Web App Team at Ontario Good Roads Association

Part ‘B’ Township of Melancthon
Minimum Maintenance Standards

Township of Melancthon By-law Number 49-2002 outlines the Level of Service.

Winter Operations Planning Document for Township of Melancthon

This winter operations plan sets out a policy and procedural framework for ensuring that
the Township of Melancthon continuously improves on the safe and sustainable delivery
of winter maintenance services and the effective and efficient use of road salt in their
winter maintenance operations. This plan supersedes all previous plans for the
Township of Melancthon.

The plan is meant to be dynamic, to allow the municipality to evaluate and phase-in any
changes, new approaches and technologies in winter maintenance activities in a fiscally
sound manner. At the same time, any modifications to municipal winter maintenance
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activities must ensure that roadway safety is not compromised. This Winter Operations
Plan for the Township of Melancthon was endorsed by “The Council of the Corporation
of the Township of Melancthon” on the 3rd of February 2022.

1. Level of Service

The Township of Melancthon provides the following level of service during the
winter maintenance season, as set out in 4.3, in response to a winter event.

The minimum standard for clearing snow accumulation is:

1.1. Snow Accumulation and lce Formation Policy
1.1.1 The standard for addressing snow accumulation is:

a) after becoming aware of the fact that the snow accumulation on a
roadway is greater than the depth set out in the Table to this section, to
deploy resources as soon as practicable to address the snow
accumulation; and

b) after the snow accumulation has ended, to address the snow
accumulation so as to reduce the snow to a depth less than or equal to the
depth set out in the Table within the time set out in the Table,

i) to provide a minimum lane width of the lesser of three metres for
each lane or the actual lane width, or

). on a Class 4 or Class 5 highway with two lanes, to provide a total
width of at least five metres. O. Reg.47/13, s. 4.

1.1.2. If the depth of snow accumulation on a roadway is less than or equal to the depth
set out in the Table to this section, the roadway is deemed to be in a state of repair with
respect to snow accumulation. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 4.
1.1.3. For the purposes of this section, the depth of snow accumulation on a roadway
and, if applicable, lane width under subsection (1)(b), may be determined in accordance
with subsection (4) by a municipal employee, agent or contractor, whose duties or
responsibilities include one or more of the following:

a) Patrolling highways.

b) Performing highway maintenance activities.

c) Supervising staff who perform activities described in paragraph 1 or 2. O. Reg.
47/13, s. 4.

1.1.4. The depth of snow accumulation on a roadway and lane width may be
determined by,
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a) performing an actual measurement.
b) monitoring the weather; or
c) performing a visual estimate. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 4.

1.1.5. For the purposes of this section, addressing snow accumulation on a roadway
includes, but is not limited to,

a) plowing the roadway.
b) salting the roadway;

i) the application of other chemical or organic agents to the roadway;
c) applying abrasive materials to the roadway; or

d) any combination of the methods described in clauses (a), (b), (b.1) and (c). O.
Reg. 47/13, s. 4.

1.1.6. This section does not apply to that portion of the roadway designated for parking.
O. Reg. 47/13, s. 4.

1.1.7. If at any time a municipality declares a weather emergency, then all roadways
within the municipality are deemed to be in a state of repair in respect of any snow
accumulation present, until the applicable time under the Table to this section expires
following the end of the declared weather emergency.

1.2 ICE FORMATION:

1.2.1. The standard for attempting the prevention of ice formation on roadways is doing
the following in the 24-hour period preceding an alleged formation of ice on a roadway:

a) Monitor the weather in accordance with section 3.1.
b) Patrol in accordance with section 3.

c) If the municipality determines, as a result of its activities under paragraph 1 or
2 that there is a substantial probability of ice forming on a roadway, treat the
roadway to attempt to prevent ice formation within the time set out in the Table to
this section, starting from the time that the municipality determines is the
appropriate time to deploy resources for that purpose. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 5.

1.2.2. If the municipality meets the standard set out in subsection (1) and, despite such
compliance, ice forms on a roadway, the roadway is deemed to be in a state of repair
until the earlier of,

a) the time that the municipality becomes aware of the fact that the roadway is
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icy; or

b) the applicable time set out in the Table to this section for treating the roadway

to prevent ice formation expires. O. Reg. 47/13, s. 5.

1.2.3. The standard for treating icy roadways after the municipality becomes aware of
the fact that a roadway is icy is to treat the icy roadway within the time set out in the
Table to this section, and an icy roadway is deemed to be in a state of repair until the
applicable time set out in the Table for treating the icy roadway expires. O. Reg. 47/13,

s. 5.

1.2.4. For the purposes of this section, treating a roadway means applying material to
the roadway, including but not limited to, salt, sand or any combination of salt and sand.

O. Reg. 47/13, 5. 5.

1.2.5. If at any time a municipality declares a weather emergency, then all roadways
within the municipality are deemed to be in a state of repair in respect of any ice

present, until the applicable time under the Table to this section expires following the
end of the declared weather emergency.

Table: Snow Accumulation

Class of Highway Depth Time

1 2.5cm 4 Hours
2 5cm 6 Hours
3 8cm 12 Hours
4 8cm 16 Hours
5 10cm 24 Hours

Table: Ice Formation prevention and Icy Roadways

Class of Highway

Time

3 Hours

4 Hours

8 Hours

12 Hours

oA IN |~

16 Hours

4.5. Winter Patrol

During the winter maintenance season, 4.3,the Township of Melancthon carries out a
winter patrol on a route of representative roads twice daily, 7 days a week. Between
winter events a patrol of representative roads will occur during daylight hours and a
second night patrol will also be scheduled. The purpose of the patrol is to monitor and
record weather and road conditions and mobilize winter maintenance operators and
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equipment should a winter event be observed and a winter event response is required.
On the approach of a winter event or during a winter event the route of representative
roads may be modified, insofar as20 reasonably practicable, depending on the type and
severity of winter event or the direction from which the storm approaches. The patrol
person will be familiar with local conditions in their patrol area, and prepare a condition
log of road and weather conditions as well as any actions taken during the shift. The
winter patrol schedule parallels the designated winter season.

4.6.10. Weather Monitoring

In order to determine an effective winter event response and allocate the appropriate
resources the Township of Melancthon supplements their general observations with
weather information from various sources which includes:

- Meteorological Services: Weather Network - www.theweathernetwork.com

- Observations from municipal staff, communication with staff of adjacent
municipalities;

- Customized weather forecasts which are updated 5 times/day from a Value-
Added Meteorological Service Dufferin County - Wood Weather Net

20|Page



Denise Holmes

From: Peters, Kim (NDMNRF) <Kim.Peters@ontario.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, May 24, 2022 11:32 AM

To: Denise Holmes

Cc: ‘janet@whitfieldfarms.com’; Dungavell, John (NDMNRF)
Subject: RE: 140 and 142 Mill Lane

Hi Denise,

Debbie has retired, and John Dungavell (cc’ed) is the NEC's Acting Director. | have yet to brief him on
the Mill Lane situation. However, | can provide you with an update.

e The NEC has not received any new complaints about Mill Lane.

e The landowner of 140 Mill Lane eventually upheld the restoration order. The NEC is taking no
further action at this time.

e The landowner of 142 Mill Lane was asked to submit a development permit application in order
that NEC staff could review the unauthorized development on that property. The NEC has not
received a development permit application.

e Given that the unauthorized development at 142 Mill Lane also requires building permits, NEC
staff had previously reached out to Greg McNaughton, CBO of County of Dufferin, to
coordinate a response. Given that Greg is no longer with the County, | reached out to Becky
Montyro (new CBO) and left her a voicemail on March 31, 2022. | have not heard back from
her.

Sincerely,

Kim Peters, MCIP, RPP (she/her)

Manager

Niagara Escarpment Commission

232 Guelph Street | Georgetown, ON | L7G 4B1

Tel: 647-539-8788 (NEW)! Website: www.escarpment.org

In order to ensure a safe and secure environment for staff and clients and in response to recommendations by health
professionals, the NEC offices are closed to the public until further notice. The NEC is continuing to provide services via email and
telephone. Updates can be found on our website: https://www.escarpment.org/Commission/COVID19

Please let me know if you require communication supports or alternate formats.

From: Denise Holmes <dholmes@melancthontownship.ca>

Sent: May 24, 2022 10:57 AM

To: Ramsay, Debbie (NDMNRF) <debbie.ramsay@ontario.ca>; Peters, Kim (NDMNRF) <Kim.Peters@ontario.ca>
Cc: 'janet@whitfieldfarms.com' <janet@whitfieldfarms.com>

Subject: RE: 140 and 142 Mill Lane
1 ap# o 2 |
JUN 1B nn



CAUTION -- EXTERNAL E-MAIL - Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender.
Hi Debbie and Kim,

At the meeting of Council held on May 19, 2022, Council directed that I contact you for an update on
this matter as there have been more concerns raised by residents on Mill Lane.

Thank you.

Denise B. Holmes, AMCT
CAO/Clerk, Township of Melancthon
519-925-5525 Ext, 101

From: Denise Holmes

Sent: Friday, March 4, 2022 3:56 PM

To: Ramsay, Debbie (MNRF) <debbie.ramsay@ontario.ca>; Peters, Kim (MNRF) <Kim.Peters@ontario.ca>
Cc: janet@whitfieldfarms.com

Subject: 140 and 142 Mill Lane

Good afternoon,

At the meeting of Council held on March 3, 2022, Council reviewed correspondence from Janet
Horner regarding questions posed by Councillor Margaret Mercer at the meeting she attended on
December 9, 2021.

Council is requesting Staff at NEC provide the Township with bi-monthly status updates pertaining to
the above noted properties, so that Council can keep on top of what is happening there and if there
are any questions from residents, Council can inform them of what we know. There were concerns
raised, once again, that no one from Council or Staff knew anything about the NEC no longer
pursuing the matter before the courts regarding 140 Mill Lane.

Should you have any questions, please don't hesitate to contact me.
Thank you.

Regards,
Denise Holmes

Rezz®A  Denise B. Holmes, AMCT | Chief Administrative Officer/Clerk | Township of Melancthon |
dholmes@melancthontownship.ca| PH: 519-925-5525 ext 101 | FX: 519-925-1110 |

www.melancthontownship.ca |
Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail This message (including attachments, if

any) is intended to be confidential and solely for the addressee. If you received this e-mail in error, please
delete it and advise me immediately. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free and
the sender does not accept liability for errors or omissions.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
BY-LAW NO. 2! -2022

BEING A BY-LAW TO PRESCRIBE LOWER RATES OF SPEED

WHEREAS Section 128(2) of the Highway Traffic Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter H.8 provides
that the Council of a Municipality may, for motor vehicles driven on a highway or portion
of a highway under its jurisdiction, by by-law prescribe a rate of speed different from the
rate set out in subsection 128(1) of the Highway Traffic Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter H.8.

AND WHEREAS it is deemed expedient that the speed of motor vehicles on certain
highways in the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon be reduced;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon enacts
as follows:

1. When any highway or portion of highway set out below is marked in
compliance with the regulation of the Highway Traffic Act, the maximum rate
of speed thereon shall be the rate of speed set out opposite thereto in
Column 2.

Column 1 Column 2

4™ Line NE from 5% Line OS to Dufferin
County Road 9 60 kilometres per hour

2. The penalties provided in the Highway Traffic Act shall apply to offences
against this By-law.

3. That this By-law comes into force and takes effect upon the final passing
thereof and upon the erection of appropriate signing in compliance with
the regulations under the Highway Traffic Act.

oA
BY-LAW READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME THIS 2 DAY OF JJund 2022

BY-LAW READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS = DAY OF 2022.

MAYOR CLERK

GB# 6. 3. |
JUN 16 2022



Denise Holmes

From: Sarah Culshaw
Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 2:49 PM
To: Denise Holmes
Subject: FW: melancthon road speeds

trom: kristine pecicon SRR

Sent: Friday, June 10, 2022 2:46 PM
To: Sarah Culshaw <sculshaw@melancthontownship.ca>
Subject: melancthon road speeds

Good morning Council,

I am confused after listening to the recording of the June 2nd meeting. | thought that after the community meeting
input with regard to the speed on the 4/5th line in Melancthon that it had pretty well been decided that the speed
would be reduced and that a bylaw would be passed at the next meeting. 1 am unsure as to why it went back for
debate?

| understand that you feel that without some kind of enforcement that it is a waste of money. | totally disagree with
this. | feel that you will definitely have some results and some are better than none. | travel the 3rd line in Melancthon
regularly and | definitely see a reduction in how fast vehicles are travelling since the speed was reduced and | have seen
the OPP on that road periodically.

Is there a reason that the opp cannot do some drives up the 4/5th line just to have their presence shown. It is in their
territory and would definitely send a message.

| for one am definitely in favour of reducing it to 60 KM/hr.

On another note, | appreciate that the meetings are now being recorded as | had to log off the last one as my audio was
not working and it was nice to be able to go back and listen.

Thank you,

Kristine Pedicone
Resident

t 6.3 A
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TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
DELEGATION REQUEST FORM
Request for Delegation, any written submissions and background information for consideration

by Council must be submitted to the Clerk’s Office by 12:00 noon on the Thursday, prior to the
requested meeting.

REQUEST DATE: MP“{ Counmare MNeeking

NAME: k EQvk Q\ Camar N PHONE:_

ADDRESS:

Purpose of Delegation Request (state position taken on issue, if applicable).

—

QSO\u)r\.ud ’hp e,x_ia;.wo Verviee ot Capnann Pk

W Rovoe Commun ties

REMINDER - DELEGATIONS ARE ALLOWED 10 MINUTES TO SPEAK

Personal information contained on this form is collected under the authority of The Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection
of Privacy Act. This sheet and any additional information provided will be placed on the Council Agenda. The Agenda is a public
document and forms part of the permanent public record. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Clerk at 519-925-
5525.

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON

157101 HIOHWAY 10

MELANCTHON, ONTARIO

L9V 2E6

§19-925-5525 Fax - 519-925-1110 Email info@melancthontownship.ca M :\MyFiles\Forms\Delegstion Request Form.wpd

Do (# |

JUN 16 7022
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every community.

Dear municipal leaders,

4
—_ o iyl

iy e S

For many months, nine dedicated postal workers, located across the country, have worked
tirelessly as campaign coordinators for Delivering Community Power — our plan to fight climate
change and deliver new services to all communities. We've built a community of supporters
and allies who are calling on Canada Post to reimagine itself and become the post office of the
future.

Our Efforts are Paying off, but the Fight isn’t Over

Despite COVID-19 restrictions, which have changed the way we lobby and talk to people,
we've achieved much. We’ve met with federal deputies and elected officials at every level,
municipalities who want the services we are advocating for, and new allies who join our cause
every day. Now, we have new evidence that the public, too, believe Canada Post must
reinvent itself.

Public Onside

New data from Public Square polling finds that there is strong public support for greener
public infrastructure and expanded services at Canada Post. The polling confirms what we
knew all along: Nearly nine in ten respondents say they care or care strongly about
corporations needing to adapt and reduce their carbon footprint, and about other important
issues like elder care, affordable internet, affordable food/food delivery, and services that
drive thriving local economies — and they’re looking to the public sector to address these
issues. See the full polling results @.

w2
DeliveringCommunityPower.ca cupwesttp
© facebook.com/DeCoPo.CollectivitesDurables ) @DeliverComPower Lo Lrien S Prem et



Some progress has been made on many of the initiatives in the vision, but the situation -
especially the climate crisis — becomes ever more urgent. We will push harder to make sure
Canada Post meets or exceeds its mandate and adopts our vision for the future.

Your Part to Play

Workers have provided the solution; the Corporation must now act. Delivering Community
Power must continue the momentum built over the last year.

We ask you for the opportunity to present the campaign to an upcoming meeting/municipality
council and table our resolution for expanded services from Canada Post. Please reply to this
email to set up a time with one of our campaign coordinators.

We look forward to meeting you soon!

Your friends at Delivering Community Power

//dn cope 225 - KM/Ig cope 225

DeliveringCommunityPower.ca cupwesttp
€) facebook.com/DeCoPo.CollectivitesDurables @ @DeliverComPower e
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POSTAL WORKERS

CAN DELIVER
EVEN MORE

“What’s beautiful about
Delivering Community
Power is how it
takes on economic,
environmental
and social issues
at the same time.”

NAOMI KLEIN

To make a reimagined Canada
Post a reality, we need people
across the country to let the
government know it’s time to act.

Here’s what you can do:

1.

Join us online and stay connected
to the campaign

Visit
www.DeliveringCommunityPower.ca
and sign up to keep up with the latest

Bring the campaign to your
community

Write an Op-Ed in your local
publication in favour of the Delivering
Community Power plan

Collect petition signatures & show
your MP that it's what voters want

Support your postal workers in
their negotiations with Canada
Post —they’ve put these proposals
on the bargaining table!

“ . DELIVERING
. COMMUNITY
POWER

Reimagining Canada Post with
services to support every community.

Canadian Union oi Posial \workers
377 BANK STREET NA, O« K2P Y3

©13-236-7253

cuw-stt

Canadian Union of Postal VWorkers

www.DeliveringCommunityPower.ca

4 ) uUPESCFPI979

www.DeliveringCommunityPower.ca



While Amazon chases record profits, big
banks abandon rural communities, and cell
and internet companies charge sky-high
fees, postal workers have a plan that leaves
no one behind.

Imagine a climate-friendly postal service
that helps elders live in their homes longer,
delivers local food to your door, and brings
high-speed internet to every corner of the
country.

Imagine post offices with solar panels on the
roofs, electric charging stations outside, and
a union-made zero-emissions fleet on the
roads.

A fruly sustainable model that not only
delivers green solutions but pays for itself by
providing low-fee banking services to cities,
towns and Indigenous communities,

no matter how small or remote.

It’'s win-win-win.

And postal workers have
a plan to deliver it.

OUR PLAN

New services to support every community

We're reimagining Canada Post with expanded
services for all, including:

Y

#1 Postal banking

#! Elder check-ins
High-speed internet
Affordable food delivery
Electric vehicle charging

Community hubs

?I I@’I

HOW WE’LL FIGHT CLIMATE CHANGE

Green the Canada Post fleet with union-
made electric vehicles, creating green jobs in
Canada and significantly reducing our carbon
output.

Retrofit Canada Post buildings with solar
panels for cost savings and to help fight
climate change.

A Expand the use of Canada Post as the
consolidated last mile delivery to ease
congestion and pollution in our cities caused in
part by too many delivery trucks that aren’t full
to capacity.

As Canada’s largest public infrastructure, Canada
Post nof only has a large footprint, but it can also
have substantial influence and lead the way for
other Canadian companies to become more
sustainable.

Why Canada Post?

For over 150 years, you've trusted us to deliver a
high-guality service through all kinds of weather.

Today we're stepping up with a plan that delivers
a better quality of life for everyone, while also
bringing solutions to our most complex and urgent
needs as a society.

Canada Post isn't just a humble mail service, it's
our country’s largest logistics, transportation and
retail network.

All around the world, postal services are
successfully reinventing themselves to better meet
the needs of their citizens in the 21st century. The
UK, France, Brazil, Germany, japan, ltaly and
many others have expanded services to better
serve seniors, address social inequalities and
provide low-fee financial services.

With an unparalleled presence in communities big
and small, postal workers are already set up to
serve every corner of the country.

We can harness the vast
network of people who
serve you every day to
deliver more. And why
not expect that from
our country’s largest ERE TS

ublic institution? ,
P polion S
A

v
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SUPPORT DELIVERING COMMUNITY POWER

Whereas there is an urgent need for banking services among the unbanked or
underbanked, given that thousands of villages and rural municipalities do not have a
bank branch and more than 900 municipalities have expressed their support for postal
banking;

Whereas thousands of Canadians do not have access to affordable high-speed Internet,
and the federal government has long promised to bridge the rural broadband gap;

Whereas urgent action is needed to establish a robust network of electric vehicle
charging stations;

Whereas to achieve carbon-neutral targets by 2050, Canada Post must greatly
accelerate the electrification of its fleet;

Whereas the extensive network of post offices in our communities can provide a wide
range of services as community hubs;

Whereas Canada Post's letter carriers and RSMCs can check-in on vulnerable residents
to help keep us in our homes longer as we age;

Whereas Canada Post must play its part for a more equitable post-pandemic recovery;

Whereas “The Way Forward for Canada Post,” the report of the 2016 federal public
review of the postal service, recommended that Canada Post expand services and adapt
its services to the changing needs of the public;

Whereas the Canadian Union of Postal Workers has advanced Delivering Community
Power, a vision of the post-carbon digital-age postal service that address the above
needs and more;

Be it resofved that endorse Delivering
Community Power, and write to the Honourable Filomena Tassi, Minister for
Public Services and Procurement, with its rationale and a copy of this resolution.



MAILING INFORMATION

Please send your resolution to: Filomena Tassi, Minister of Public Services and
Procurement, Rm 18A1, 11 Laurier Street Phase lll, Place du Portage, Gatineau, QC,
K1A 0S5

Please send copies of your resolution to:

Jan Simpson, President, Canadian Union of Postal Workers, 377 Bank Street, Ottawa,
Ontario, K2P 1Y3

Your Member of Parliament. You can get your MP’s name, phone number and
address by calling 1-800 463-6868 (at no charge) or going to the Parliament of
Canada website: https://www.ourcommons.ca/Members/en

Please save this document using the name of your organization or municipality in the
document's name.

//dn cope 225
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June 16, 2022

The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon
157101 Highway 10

Shelburne, Ontario

L9V 2E6

Dear Council of The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the The Corporation of the
Township of Melancthon for the year ended December 31, 2021. As part of our work, we
reviewed the accounting procedures and systems of internal control in the principal areas of
financial activity within the corporation. We report to you that, within the scope of our
examinations, the systems of internal control are adequate to support the fairness of
presentation and that we did not come across any material weaknesses.

However, we do stress that this observation is not the result of a specific examination of the
corporation's system of internal control and, therefore, must be taken in the context that it is
meant, namely review of internal control systems to allow us to voice our opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

During the course of our audit of the corporation for the year ended December 31, 2021, we
may have identified matters which might have been of interest to management but tended to
be minor or more of a housekeeping nature. During the audit, we would have met with Sarah
Culshaw (Treasurer/Deputy Clerk) and communicated these minor items, if applicable. The
comments that follow are those that we believe should be addressed formally and brought to
the attention of the council.

This communication is prepared solely for the information of management and is not intended
for any other party and, as such, we accept no responsibility to a third party who uses this
communication.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank you and your staff for the excellent co-

operation and assistance we received throughout the course of our work and, in particular, the
assistance and co-operation received from Sarah Culshaw.

GUELPH OFFICE 103-197 HANLON CREEK BLVD, GUELPH, ON « TEL: 519-822-9933 « FAX: 519-822-9212 » RLB.CA
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We will certainly be pleased to discuss the matters set out in the accompanying memo with
you further, at your convenience.

Yours truly,
M. D. P. Short, MBA, CPA, CA, C. Dir, is responsible for the engagement and its performance,

and for the report that is issued on behalf of RLB LLP, and who, where required, has the
appropriate authority, from a professional, legal or regulatory body.



Page 3

1. Bank reconciliations for general account

Observation:

During our fieldwork, it was noted that the November and December 2021 bank
reconciliations for the general account were not completed until March 2022, and
required entries to be posted after the trial balance was received.

Implication:
If the financial information is not recorded and reconciled on a timely basis, Council is
relying on inaccurate data to make decisions.

Recommendation:

Bank reconciliations should be prepared monthly, ideally within the first two weeks of
the subsequent month. These bank reconciliations should be provided to the CAO after
each month for review.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of: The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Township of
Melancthon, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and the
consolidated statements of operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon as at December 31, 2021 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described'in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We arewindependent of The Corporation of the Township of
Melancthon in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled~our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence,/ weshave obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparationyand fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the corporation's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the corporation or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the corporation's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements, as a
whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Page 3
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the corporation’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including=any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Guelph, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants
June 16, 2022 Licensed Public Accountants
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and portfolio investments (note 2) $ 5,359,555 $ 5,072,690
Taxes receivable 653,058 698,468
Accounts receivable 227,187 313,610
Long term receivables (note 3) 61,165 98.671
6,300,965 6,183,439
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 727,565 755,000
Landfill closure and post-closure liabilities (note 5) 268,855 256,663
Long term debt (note 6) 297,812 412,674
Deferred revenue - obligatory reserve funds (note 7) 1,065,857 1,011,484
Deferred revenue - other 10,000 75,326
2,370,089 2,511,147
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 3,930,876 3,672,292
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets (schedule 2) 11,602,259 11,023,490
Inventory 40,483 40,483
Prepaid expenses 81,606 70,112
11,724,348 11,134,085
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (schedule 3) $_15,655,224 $_14,806,377

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2021 2020
Budget Actual Actual
(note 8)
REVENUES
Taxation $ 2,776,502 $ 2,833,485 $ 2,780,602
User charges 32,670 125,482 143,404
Grants (note 10) 485,728 492,048 453,350
Other income (note 11) 749,295 796,743 790,416
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 0 (26,465) 0
Obligatory reserve fund revenue recognized (note 7) 239,000 264,194 136,617
4,283,195 4,485,487 4,304,389
EXPENSES (schedule 1)
General government 828,332 662,189 677,375
Protection to persons and property 794,647 692,179 630,874
Transportation services 2,185,120 1,824,671 1,876,848
Environmental services 34,240 31,795 37,250
Recreation and cultural services 207,207 320,160 260,469
Planning and development 118.880 105,646 153,745
4,168:426 3,636,640 3,636,561
ANNUAL SURPLUS $_ 114769 $_ 848,847 $_ 667,828
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS at beginning of year $14,806,377 $14,138,549
Annual surplus 848,847 667,828
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS at end of year $15,655,224 $14,806,377

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2021
Budget Actual
(note 8)

2020
Actual

ANNUAL SURPLUS

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets
Consolidated boards opening changes (schedule 2)

Use of (additions to) inventories
Use of (additions to) prepaid expenses

CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS at beginning of year

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS at end of year

$ 114769 $ 848,847 $_ 667,828

(1,190,669) (1,394,793) (1,321,956)
741,206 784,409 741,206

0 26,465 0

0 0 37,681

0 5,150 1,445
(449.463) (578.,769) (541.624)

0 0 4,317
0 (11,494) (17.856)
0 (11,494) (13.539)

$_ (834.694) 258,584 112,665
3,672,292 3,559,627

$.3.930.876 $_3.672,292

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual surplus $ 848,847 $ 667.828
Items not requiring an outlay of cash
Amortization 784,409 741,206
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 26,465 0
Change in landfill closure and post-closure liabilities 12,192 11,639
823,066 752,845
Net changes in non-cash working capital
Taxes receivable 45,410 (33,428)
Accounts receivable 86,423 (108,808)
Prepaid expenses (11,494) (17,856)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (27,435) 176,627
Inventory 0 4,317
Deferred revenue (10,953) 178,869
81,951 199,721
1,753,864 1,620,394
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,394,793) (1,321,956)
Consolidated boards opening change in amortization (schedule 2) 5,150 1,445
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 0 37,681
(1,389,643) (1,282,830)
CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in long term debt (114,862) (85,045)
CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net change in long term receivables 37,506 10,052
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS 286,865 262,571
CASH AND PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS, beginning of year 5,072,690 4,810,119
CASH AND PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS, end of year $_5359,555 $_ 5,072,690

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon are the
representation of management prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles for governments as established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of
CPA Canada. Significant accounting policies adopted by The Corporation of the Township of
Melancthon are as follows:

(a)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The management of The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon acknowledges its
responsibility for the creation and compilation of the consolidated financial statements
and the following significant accounting policy decisions and related policy notes.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses of all municipal organizations, commitiees and boards which are owned or
controlled by Council.

All interfund assets, liabilities, revenues /and expenses have been eliminated on
consolidation.

The following boards and municipal ‘enterprises owned or controlled by Council have
been consolidated:

Horning's Mills Cemetery Board
St. Paul's Cemetery Board

Horning's Mills Community Park
Horning's Mills Community, Hall

A government partnership ‘exists where the municipality has shared control over the
board or entity. The ‘municipality's pro-rata share of the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses are reflected in the financial statements using the proportionate consolidation
method. The municipality's proportionate interest of the following government
partnerships are reflected in the consolidated financial statements:

Shelburne and District Fire Department 15.03% (2020 - 14.71%)

Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire Department 24.38% operating, 50.00% capital
(2020 - 22.09%, 50.00% capital)

North Dufferin Community Centre 50.00% operating (2020 - 50.00%
operating)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

(i) Sources of financing and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. The interest charges are not accrued for the periods from the dates
of the latest instalment payments to the end of the financial year.

(i) The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available
and measurable. Expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and
measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal
obligation to pay.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. By their nature, these
estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and actual results could differ from
management's best estimates as additional information becomes available in the future.
Significant areas requiring management's estimates include amortization of tangible
capital assets and landfill closure and post-closure liabilities.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
The municipality is exposed to credit risk on the taxes receivable from its ratepayers.

The municipality does not have a significant exposure to any individual customer or
counterpart.

TRUST FUNDS
Funds held in trust by the municipality, and their related operations, are not included in
these financial statements. The financial activity and position of the trust funds are

reported separately on the trust funds’/statement of continuity and statement of financial
position.

PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

Portfolio investments are recorded at amortized cost unless there has been a decline in
the market value/which is other’than temporary in nature, in which case the investments
are written down to market.

INVENTORY

Inventory held for consumption is recorded at the lower of cost and replacement cost.
REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenues are recognized as follows:

Taxation revenue is recognized in the period in which the tax is levied.

User charges are recognized when the related service is provided.

Grants and obligatory reserve fund revenues are recognized based on the terms of the
grant or in the year that the related expenses occur.

Other income is recognized when receivable and collection is reasonably assured.
COUNTY AND SCHOOL BOARDS

The municipality collects taxation revenue on behalf of the school boards and the County
of Dufferin. The taxation, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to

the operations of the school boards and the County of Dufferin are not reflected in these
financial statements. See note 9 for details.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use
in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year
and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-
financial assets during the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses,
provides the change in net financial assets for the year.

(i) Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are
directly attributed to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the
asset. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital asset is amortized on
a straight-line basis over their estimated/useful life as follows:

Land improvements 10 to 50 years
Facilities 15 to 100 years
Vehicles 5 to 50 years
Equipment 5to 75 years
Infrastructure - Environmental 3 to 75 years
Infrastructure - Transportation 3 to 75 years

Assets under construction are not,amortized until the asset is available for
productive use.

(i) Contributions of tangible capital’assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value
at the date ofreceipt and also are recorded as revenue.

(iii) Leases
Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer
substantially all,of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are
accounted for as capital leases. All other leases are accounted for as operating
leases and the related lease payments are charged to expenses as incurred.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The municipality classifies all of its financial instruments at amortized cost. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of the financial instruments. These
financial instruments include cash and portfolio investments, accounts receivable, long
term receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and long term debt. They are
initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method, less any impairment losses on financial assets.

Transaction costs related to financial instruments in the amortized cost category are
added to the carrying value of the instrument. Writedowns of financial assets in the
amortized cost category are recognized when the amount of a loss is known with
sufficient precision, and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets are
then written down to net realizable value with the writedown being recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2, CASH AND PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS
2021 2020
Unrestricted cash $ 4,263,852 $ 4,031,360
Unrestricted portfolio investments 50,846 50,846
4,314,698 4,082,206
Restricted cash 1,044,857 990,484

$_5,359,555 $_5.072,690

Unrestricted cash includes $2,394,849 (2020 - $2,306,696) held in one account at a chartered
bank. Interest is earned on this account at a rate of prime less 2.05% (2020 - prime less 2%).

Portfolio investments consist of various GICs with interest rates ranging from 0.10% to 0.85%
(2020 - 0.60% to 2.05%) maturing between June 2022 and September 2025 (2020 - June 2021
to September 2025).

3. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

The responsibility for payment of principal and interest charges of the tile drainage loans has
been assumed by individuals.

2021 2020
Two loans (2020 - three) are charged interest at
a rate of 6% and become due in 2027 - 2028 $__ 61,165 $__ 98,671
Principal payments for the next five years are as follows:
2022 $ 8,096
2023 8,582
2024 9,097
2025 9,643
2026 10,221
Thereafter 15,526
$__ 61,165

4, OPERATING LOANS
The operating loans are due on demand and bear interest at the bank's prime rate, calculated

and payable monthly. At December 31, 2021, the municipality had undrawn credit capacity of
$500,000 (2020 - $500,000).
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE LIABILITIES

Landfill closure and post-closure care requirements have been defined in accordance with
industry standards and include final covering and landscaping of the landfill, removal of ground
water and leachates, and ongoing environmental monitoring, site inspection and maintenance.

Effective June 1, 2013, the County of Dufferin assumed the landfill from the municipality and the
landfill site ceased active operations and stopped accepting solid waste from ratepayers. No
estimate of the existing liability based on the landfill capacity used up until the assumption date
is available. Therefore, the estimates in the report dated 2008 will be used until an updated
report is available. The liability for the landfill site is recorded at $268,855 (2020 - $256,663) and
represents the present value of closure and post-closure costs for 62% of the current site's
opened cells, using an average long term borrowing rate of 4.75%. The liability is recorded
based on the capacity of the landfill used to date. The total estimated future expenses for closure
and post-closure care are $416,949 leaving an amount to be recognized in future periods of
$148,094. The estimated remaining capacity of the site's\.opened cells is approximately 140,700
tonnes, which was expected to be filled in 6 years. Past-closure care is estimated to continue for
a period of 25 years.

The municipality has established a reserve fund to assist in financing the future costs of closure
and post-closure liabilities. At December 31, 2021, there was $138,674 available in the reserve
fund.

LONG TERM DEBT

The balance of long term liabilities4eported onithe consolidated statement of financial position is
made up of the following:

2021 2020

Loan payable, 3.18%, repayable in-monthly

instalments of $3,409 principal and interest, due

December 2025 $ 153,350 $ 188,767
Tile drainage loans, 6%, annual payments of principal

and interest ranging from $4,973 - $6,793, due

between 2027 - 2028 61,165 98,671
Loan payable, 2.862%, repayable in monthly

instalments of $2,720 principal and interest, due

January 2022 3,225 35,283
Loan payable, 3.63%, repayable in semi-annual

instalments of $6,528 principal and interest, due

December 2028 80,072 89,953

$_ 297812 $_ 412,674

Principal payments required on the loans payable for the next five years are as follows:

2022 $ 58,124
2023 56,940
2024 59,061
2025 61,142
2026 22.048
257,315

Thereafter 40,497
$ 297,812
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

7. DEFERRED REVENUE
2021 Contributions Investment Revenue 2021
Opening Received Income Recognized Ending
Obligatory Reserve Funds
Development charges $ 790,831 $ 126,862 $ 3,527 $ (45,251) $ 875,969
Recreational land 46,017 0 160 (18,943) 27,234
Subdivider - park levies 21,000 0 0 0 21,000
Federal Gas Tax 153,636 187,109 909 (200,000) _141.654

$1.011484 $ 313971 $_ 4,596 $_(264,194) $1,065.857

8. BUDGET AMOUNTS

The budget figures are presented for comparison purposes as prepared and approved by council,
reclassified to conform to the current financial statement presentation. The budgeted figures are
prepared on the cash basis of accounting and have beenrestated to conform to the accrual basis
of accounting on which the actual figures are reported. The following chart reconciles the
approved budget with the budget figures as presented in these consolidated financial statements:

Revenue
Approved budget $.4,283,195

Expenses
Approved budget 4,705,087
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,190,669)
Debt principal repayments (87,198)
Amortization 741,206
Total expenses 4,168,426

ANNUAL SURPLUS $_ 114,769

9. OPERATIONS OF THE SCHOOL BOARDS AND THE COUNTY OF DUFFERIN

During the year, the following taxation revenue was raised and remitted to the school boards and
the County of Dufferin:

2021 2020
School boards $ 1,210,010 $ 1,254,013
County of Dufferin 2,131,278 2,051,601

$.3.341.288  $_3.305.614
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

10.

1.

12

13.

GRANTS
2021 2021 2020
Budget Actual Actual
(note 8)
Operating
Province of Ontario
Ontario Municipal Partnership
Fund (OMPF) $ 174900 $ 174900 $ 173,500
Conditional - roads 100,000 90,832 122,993
Conditional - other 205,428 143,581 124,242
480,328 409,313 420,735
Other municipalities - recreation 0 26,674 27,205
Other municipalities - roads 5400 5,648 5410
103,170 32,322 32,615

$._ 583498 $_ 441635 $__ 453,350

OTHER INCOME

2021 2021 2020

Budget Actual Actual

(note 8)
Penalties and interest on taxation $ 95000 $ 97,041 $ 105,841
Other fines and penalties 11,500 3,384 9,649
Investment income 15,000 19,363 36,803
Licenses, permits and rents 20,695 36,905 26,688
Donations and fundraising 100 2,510 0
Plateau community contributions 33,000 32,964 33,439
Dufferin Wind community contributions 265,000 274,376 268,996
CHD community contributions 309,000 330,200 309,000

$_ 749295 §_ 796,743 $_ 790.416

TRUST FUNDS

The trust funds administered by the municipality amounting to $42,816 (2020 - $41,118) have
not been included in the consolidated statement of financial position, nor have the operations
been included in the consolidated statement of operations.

PENSION AGREEMENTS

The municipality joined Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Systems (OMERS), which is a
multi-employer plan, in 2016. The plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of
the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the length of service and rates
of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2021 was $63,701 (2020 - $62,578) on behalf of 9
members (2020 - 9 members) of its staff. Amounts paid for current service have been included
as an expenditure on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

There are no past service contribution obligations.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

14.

15.

16.

DEVELOPER AGREEMENTS

As part of various developer agreements, the municipality has received Letters of Credit to cover
developers' responsibilities in completing the projects as well as covering unpaid municipal
levies. Letters of Credit held by the municipality at December 31, 2021 amount to $4,287,783.

COMMITMENTS

The municipality entered into a contribution agreement with a company that provides commercial
generation of electricity in the Township of Melancthon.

i) Phase | of the project consists of 45 wind turbine generators. The company will pay the
sum of $45,000 to the Township of Melancthon on or before March 31 for each year from
2007 through and including 2026.

i) Phase Il of the project consists of 66 wind turbine generators. The company will pay the
sum of $264,000 to the Township of Melancthon on or before November for each year
from 2009 through and including 2028.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit Risk

The municipality is exposed to credit risk through the possibility of non-collection of accounts
receivable. The majority of its receivables ‘are from ratepayers and government entities. For
accounts receivable, the municipality measures impairment based on how long the amounts
have been outstanding.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the municipality will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The municipality undertakes a planning and budgeting process to help determine
the funds required to support.the municipality's normal operating requirements on an ongoing
basis. The municipality ensures’ that there are sufficient funds to meet its short term
requirements, taking into account its anticipated cash flows from operations and its holdings of
cash and portfolio investments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The municipality is exposed to interest
rate risk arising from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the variable rate of
certain long term liabilities.

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or
policies, procedures and methods used to measure risks.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

17.

18.

19.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon is a diversified municipal government institution
that provides a wide range of services to its ratepayers such as police, fire, sewer, water, waste
collection, disposal and recycling, recreational, library and planning. Distinguishable functional
segments have been separately disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the
segments and the activities they encompass are as follows:

General Government
This item relates to the revenues and expenses that relate to the governance and operations of
the municipality itself and cannot be directly attributed to a specific segment.

Protection to Persons and Property

Protection is comprised of police services, fire protection, conservation authority, emergency
measures, animal control and building and structural inspection. The police services ensure the
safety and protection of the ratepayers and their property. The fire department is responsible to
provide fire suppression service, fire prevention programs, training and education. The members
of the fire department consist of volunteers. The building department provides a number of
services including maintenance and enforcement of building'and construction codes and review
of all property development plans through its application process.

Transportation
Transportation is responsible for construction,and maintenance of the municipality's roadways,

bridges, parking areas and streetlights.

Environmental
Environmental services consist/of. providing'waste collection, disposal and recycling to its
ratepayers.

Health
Health services includes contributions to the operations of local cemeteries.

Recreation and Cultural Services

This service area provides services meant to improve the health and development of the
municipality's residents. The municipality operates and maintains parks and arenas. The
municipality also provides library services and recreational programs.

Planning and Development

This department is responsible for planning and zoning, including the Official Plan. This service
area also includes tourist information and promotion, business improvement area, weed control
and drainage.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In the normal course of its operations, the municipality is subject to various litigations and claims.
The ultimate outcome of these claims cannot be determined at this time. However, the
municipality’s management believes that the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on its financial position.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY DUE TO NOVEL CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19)

During the year and subsequent to year end, the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) significantly
impacted the economy in Canada and globally. Although the disruption from the virus is
expected to be temporary, given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the duration of
business disruption and the related financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
This may impact the timing and amounts realized on the municipality's assets and its future
ability to deliver all services.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF SEGMENTED DISCLOSURE Schedule 1
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Transpor- Environ- Planning
General Protection tation mental Recreation and
Government Services Services Services Services Development 2021 2020
EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits $ 480,763 $ 73,238 $ 488430 $ 0 $ 38755 % 0 $1,081,186 $1,016,654
Materials 127,710 71,755 589,279 0 78,523 12,944 880,211 1,037,153
Contracted services 34,101 417,593 29,396 27,848 0 87,168 596,106 589,726
Rents and financial expenses 1,057 0 1,534 0 0 0 2,591 4,933
Interest on long term debt 3,176 0 6,080 0 0 5,534 14,790 16,783
Amortization 12,882 55,875 709,952 3,947 1,753 0 784,409 741,206
Transfers 2,500 73,718 0 0 201,129 0 277,347 230,106

$_662189 $_692,179  $1.824671 '$ 381,795 ) $_320,160 $_105646 $3.636.640 $3.636.561

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS Schedule 2
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Land Infrastructure:  Infrastructure:
Land Improvements Facilities Vehicles Equipment  Transportation Environmental 2021 2020
COST
Balance, beginning of year $ 441857 % 69,033 $ 916,407 $ 2,580,709 $ 521,003 $17,518,026 $ 117,426 $22,164,461 $21,175,083
Additions during the year 0 39,326 0 153,556 92,762 1,109,149 0 1,394,793 1,321,956
Consolidated boards opening
changes 0 0 0 0 (5,150) 0 0 (5,150) (1,445)
Disposals during the year 0 0 0 0 (4,551) (460,741) 0 (465,292) (331,133)
Balance, end of year 441,857 108,359 916,407 2,734,265 604,064 18,166,434 117,426 23,088,812 22,164,461
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Balance, beginning of year 0 28,696 374,657 1,747,512 305,113 8,657,317 27,676 11,140,971 10,693,217
Amortization 0 1,395 14,351 66,211 65,266 635,547 1,639 784,409 741,206
Accumulated amortization on
disposals 0 0 0 0 (3.641) (435,186) 0 (438,827) (293.452)
Balance, end of year 0 30,091 389,008 1,813,723 366,738 8,857,678 29,315 11,486,553 11,140,971
NET BOOK VALUE OF TANGIBLE
CAPITAL ASSETS $_ 441857 % 78,268 $__ 527,3994.% 920542 $__ 237326 $_9,308756 $ 88,111 $11,602,259 $11,023,490

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF ACCUMULATED SURPLUS Schedule 3
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021
2021 2020
SURPLUSES
Invested in tangible capital assets $ 11,365,612 $ 10,709,487
General surplus 1,149,153 1,149,152
Unfunded solid waste closure and post-closure costs (268,855) (256,663)
Recreation, community centres and arenas 100,915 121,422
Cemeteries 86,245 84,674
Fire boards 27,122 29,325
Other 966 966
12,461,158 11,838,363
RESERVE FUNDS
Capital purposes 232,157 221,189
Quarry 116,658 116,169
Working funds 327,099 347,502
Replacement of equipment 663,177 560,582
Landfill closure 138,674 128,118
Shelburne & district fire board 135,194 100,775
Mulmur-Melancthon volunteer fire board 97,770 50,413
Insurance, sick leave, WSIB 21,726 21,629
Special emergency relief 25,503 20,409
1,757,958 1,566,786
RESERVES
Working funds 1,241,099 1,206,293
NDCC operating 20,000 20,000
NDCC facility development 2,537 2,463
Capital purposes 172,472 172,472
1,436,108 1,401,228
$_15,655,224 $_14,806,377

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON

SCHEDULE OF HORNING'S MILLS CEMETERY BOARD Schedule 4
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
2021 2020
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASSETS
Cash $ 22415  $ 20,966
Due from Cemetery Care and Maintenance Fund 9,096 9,204
Portfolio investments 6,933 6,933
Accrued interest receivable 195 175
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS $ 38,639 $ 37,278
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
REVENUE
Sale of plots and markers $ 875 $ 725
Interest 313 165
HST refund 173 0
1,361 890
EXPENSES
Maintenance 0 1,958
ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 1,361 (1,068)
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, beginnhing of year 37,278 38,346
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, end of .year $ 38,639 $ 37,278

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
SCHEDULE OF ST. PAUL'S CEMETERY BOARD Schedule 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Cash $ 3,397 $ 3,344

Accrued interest receivable 295 97

Portfolio investments 43,914 43,914
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS $ 47,606 $ 47,355

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

REVENUE

Interest $ 260 $ 542
EXPENSES

Administration 9 9
ANNUAL SURPLUS 251 533
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, beginning of year 47,355 46,822
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, end of year $ 47,606 $ 47,355

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
SCHEDULE OF HORNING'S MILLS COMMUNITY PARK Schedule 6
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASSETS
Cash $ 5,742 $ 11,369
Receivables 171 2,801
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 5913 14,170
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets 32,664 13,610
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS $ 38,577 $ 27,780
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
REVENUE
Grant - Township of Melancthon $ 2,500 $ 2,500
Interest 44 28
Other income 10,298 0
12,842 2,528
EXPENSES
Administration 1,709 897
Hydro 336 344
2,045 1,241
ANNUAL SURPLUS 10,797 1,287
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, beginning of year 27,780 26,493
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, end of year $ 38,577 $ 27,780

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
SCHEDULE OF HORNING'S MILLS COMMUNITY HALL Schedule 7
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash $ 43,928 $ 43,498
Accounts receivable 0 373
43,928 43,871
LIABILITIES
Deferred revenue 565 200
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 43,363 43,671
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets 41,637 48,500
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS $ 85,000 $ 92,171
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
REVENUE
Grant - Township of Melancthon $ 2,208 $ 6,452
Fundraising and user charges 877 1,705
Interest 192 398
3,277 8,555
EXPENSES
Amortization 6,863 6,863
Supplies and maintenance 1,865 4,909
Hydro and fuel 1,495 2,982
Telephone 225 537
Other 0 328
10,448 15,619
ANNUAL DEFICIT (7,171) (7,064)
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, beginning of year 92,171 99,235
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, end of year $ 85,000 $ 92,171

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Chartered
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of: The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the trust funds of The Corporation of the Township
of Melancthon, which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and the
statements of continuity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
trust funds of The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon as at December 31, 2021 and the results of their
operations for the year then ended in accordance with Canadiafn-public sector accounting standards.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described(in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are_independent of The Corporation of the Township of
Melancthon in accordance with the ethical requirements” that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled .our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the trust funds' ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the trust funds or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the trust funds' financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole, are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the trust funds’ internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the trust funds’ ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the trust funds to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements representithe underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governancesregarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Guelph, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants
June 16, 2022 Licensed Public Accountants
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON - TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND CONTINUITY

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Horning's Mills St. Paul's Subdividers'
Cemetery Cemetery Deposits
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - 2021

Cash $ 9,552 0 $ 0

Investments 30,912 9,447 0

Due from the Township of Melancthon 0 0 2,001

Due to cemetery general funds (9,096) 0 0

FUND BALANCE $__ 31,368 9,447 $ 2,001

STATEMENT OF CONTINUITY - 2021

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $_ 29,786 9,331 $ 2,001
RECEIPTS

Interest earned 732 116 0

Plot sales 850 0 0

1,582 116 0

EXPENDITURES 0 0 0

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 31368 9,447 $ 2,001

STATEMENT/OF FINANCIAL POSITION - 2020

Cash $ 8,730 0 $ 0

Investments 30,260 9,331 0

Due from the Township of Melancthon 0 0 2,001

Due to cemetery general funds (9,204) 0 0

FUND BALANCE $__ 29,786 9,331 $ 2,001

STATEMENT OF CONTINUITY - 2020

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $_ 29,226 10,261 $ 2,001
RECEIPTS

Interest earned 160 118 0

Plot sales 400 0 0

560 118 0

EXPENDITURES 0 1,048 0

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $__ 29,786 9,331 $ 2,001

See notes to the financial statements
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON - TRUST FUNDS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the trust funds of The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon are
the representation of management prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles for governments as established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of
CPA Canada. Significant accounting policies adopted by The Corporation of the Township of
Melancthon are as follows:

(a)  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

(i) Sources of financing and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting.
(i) The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available

and measurable. Expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and
measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal
obligation to pay.
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Samuel E Young Golf - ZBA

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC MEETING
TO INFORM THE PUBLIC OF A PROPOSED
ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

RECEIPT OF COMPLETE APPLICATION

TAKE NOTICE that Township of Melancthon has received a complete application to amend Municipal Zoning By-
law 12-79. The purpose of the rezoning is to amend the Township’s Comprehensive Zoning By-law to modify the
Open Space Recreation (OS1) Zone located in Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 1, O.S, for lands located at 516423
County Road 124.

AND PURSUANT to Section 34 (10) of the Planning Act, the application file is available for review at the Municipal
Office. Please contact the Municipal Clerk to arrange to review this file.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING WITH COUNCIL

TAKE NOTICE that the Council for The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon will be holding a public
meeting (described below) under Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.P. 13 as amended, to allow the public
to comment on the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment.

DATE AND LOCATION OF PUBLIC MEETING

Date and Time: Thursday, June 16", 2022 at 6:15 pm
Location: Virtual Meeting — please see below.

NOTE: This will be a virtual meeting. If you wish to attend the virtual meeting, please call or email the Township
office prior to the day of the public meeting so you can be provided with a link to the meeting. If you do not have the
capability to attend a virtual meeting, please provide written comments and a phone number where you can be reached
to the Township Clerk prior to the public meeting.

DETAILS OF THE ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

The application affects lands known locally as the Shelburne Golf and Country Club and located in Part of Lots 7 and
8, Concession 1, O.S in the Township of Melancthon. A key map has been appended to this Notice. These lands were
recently the subject of a Provisional Consent (File B4-21) and a rezoning is required as a condition of consent to
rectify and update existing zone boundaries applicable to the golf course. On this basis the purpose of the proposed
by-law is to amend the Restricted Area (Zoning) By-Law No. 12-79 to modify the Open Space Recreation (OS1)
Zone on the applicant’s lands.

FURTHER INFORMATION AND MAP OF LAND SUBJECT TO THE APPLICATION

A key map has been appended that identifies the lands that are subject to this amendment. File materials and maps that
were submitted in conjunction with the consent application are also available for review by contacting the Township
office.

The purpose of this meeting is to ensure that sufficient information is made available to enable the public to generally
understand the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment. Any person who attends the meeting shall be afforded an
opportunity to make representations in respect of the proposed amendment.

If you wish to be notified of the decision of the Council for the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon in respect
to the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment, you must submit a written request (with forwarding addresses) to the
Clerk of the Township of Melancthon at 157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 fax (519) 925-1110.

If a person or public body files an appeal of a decision of the Council for the Corporation of the Township of
Melancthon, as the approval authority in respect of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment, but does not make oral
submissions at a public meeting or make written submissions to Council before the proposed amendment is approved
or refused, the Ontario Land Tribunal may dismiss all or part of the appeal.

Further information regarding the proposed amendment is available to the public for inspection at the Township of
Melancthon Municipal Office on Monday to Friday, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

Del + Y
JUN 16 2072
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Mailing Date of this Notice: May 18, 2022
Denise Holmes, CAO

Township of Melancthon

LANDS SUBJECT TO APPLICATION FOR
ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

Rural Farm Parcel Severed from Golf Course

7
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MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor White and Members of Council

Copy: Ms. Denise Holmes, CAO

From: Chris Jones MCIP, RPP

Date: June 13, 2022

Re: Application for ZBA - Part of Lots 7 & 8, Concession 1 O.S. (Shelburne GC)
BACKGROUND

The Township is in receipt of an application for a zoning by-law amendment for lands
located in the Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 1 O.S. The lands are the subject of a
provisional consent which was approved by the Committee of Adjustment on
November 18, 2021. The consent severed an existing golf course from an agricultural
parcel as illustrated in Figure 1.

Figure 1 - Location of Subject Lands

~t

1

m Existing Golf Course
Eza Rural Farm Parcel Severed from Golf Course

As a condition of provisional consent the applicant is required to rezone the golf course
holding, given that the current zoning of the lands was a mix of General Agricultural
(A1), Open Space Park {OS1) and Open Space Conservation (OS2} which created
legal non-conformity and did not accurately reflect the existing golf course as a legal
land use.

* Municipal Planning Services Ltd. *
Barrie, Ontario




OFFICIAL PLAN

The subject lands are designated Rural and also extensively covered by the
Environmental Conservation designation.

A summary of the implications of these land use designations is provided below:
Rural Consent Policies

The severance was approved on the basis of Section 5.3.3 (d) of the Official Plan which
permits the creation of up fo 3 lots from an original Township surveyed lot.

Environmental Conservation

Section 3.4.2 (b) requires the proponent of any development approval for lands
located in the Environmental Conservation designation to prepare an Environmental
Impact Study (EIS) to assess the impact of proposed site alteration and development on
natural features.

The requirement to submit an EIS with this application was not considered necessary on
the basis of comments from the NVCA. On balance, the proposed severance would

not generate any new development or site alteration. It would merely separate two
distinct lands uses.

ZONING BY-LAW

As was indicated on page 1 of this report, the golf course lands are currently a mix of
three different zones which do not accurately reflect the location or extent of the
existing golf course. The proposed zoning amendment would address this discrepancy
and ensure consistent zoning over the entire golf course.

ANALYSIS

The proposed amendment conforms with the Township's Official Plan and is required as
a condition of provisional consent.

RECOMMENDATION

If Council concurs with the findings and analyses of this report | would recommend
approval of the attached zoning by-law amendment.

Respectfully Submitted,

B

Chris Jones MCIP, RPP

. Muwiaf:pal. Planning Services Ltd.
Barrie, Ontario



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
BY-LAW NO.
(Shelburne Golf Club — June 13, 2022)

Being a By-law to amend By-law No. 12-79, as amended, the Zoning By-
law for the Township of Melancthon for lands located in Part of Lots 7 and
8, Concession 1 O.S. in the Township of Melancthon, County of Dufferin.

WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon is empowered
to pass By-laws to regulate the use of land pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act,
1990;

AND WHEREAS the owner of the subject lands has requested a zoning by-law
amendment to fulfill a condition of Provisional Consent;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon deems it
advisable to amend By-Law 12-79, as amended;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon enacts
as follows:

1. Schedule ‘A’ to Zoning By-law No. 12-79 as amended, is further amended by zoning
lands located in Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 1 OS. in the Township of
Melancthon, from the General Agricultural (A1) Zone, the Open Space Park (OS1)
Zone and Open Space Conservation (OS2) Zone to the Open Space Park Exception
(OS1-3) Zone, as shown on Schedule A-1 attached hereto, which forms part of this
By-law.

2. And Furthermore, Section 17.5 to Zoning By-law 12-79 as amended, is further
amended by adding the following new sub-section after sub-section 17.5 b):

<) On lands located in Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 1 O.S. located in the
0S71-3 Zone, the only permitted use shall be a golf course and driving
range together with accessory uses as authorized by By-law 12-79.

3. In all other respects, the provisions of By-law 12-79, as amended shall apply.

This By-law shall come into effect upon the date of passage hereof, subject to the
provisions of Section 34 (30) and (31) of the Planning Act (Ontario).

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME on the 16th day of June 2022.

READ A THIRD TIME and finally passed this 16th day of June 2022.

Mayor Clerk



2577791 Ontario Inc — Ghotra - ZBA

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC MEETING
TO INFORM THE PUBLIC OF A PROPOSED
ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

RECEIPT OF COMPLETE APPLICATION

TAKE NOTICE that Township of Melancthon has received a complete application to amend Municipal Zoning By-
law 12-79. The purpose of the rezoning is to amend the Township’s Comprehensive Zoning By-law to rezone lands
described legally as Parts 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, Plan 7R-6754 located in Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 O.S., together
with other lands located in Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 O.S.

AND PURSUANT to Section 34 (10) of the Planning Act, the application file is available for review at the Municipal
Office. Please contact the Municipal Clerk to arrange to review this file.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING WITH COUNCIL

TAKE NOTICE that the Council for The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon will be holding a public
meeting (described below) under Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.P. 13 as amended, to allow the public
to comment on the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment.

DATE AND LOCATION OF PUBLIC MEETING

Date and Time: Thursday, June 16%, 2022 at 6:20 p.m.
Location: Virtual Meeting — please see below.

NOTE: This will be a virtual meeting. If you wish to attend the virtual meeting, please call or email the Township
office prior to the day of the public meeting so you can be provided with a link to the meeting. If you do not have the
capability to attend a virtual meeting, please provide written comments and a phone number where you can be reached
to the Township Clerk prior to the public meeting.

DETAILS OF THE ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

The application affects lands described legally as Parts 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, Plan 7R-6754 located in Part of Lots 7 and 8,
Concession 2 O.S., together with other lands located in Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 O.S. in the Township of
Melancthon. A key map has been appended to this Notice showing the location of the lands subject to the zoning
amendment. These lands were recently the subject of a Provisional Consent (File B5-21, B6-21, B7-21, B7-22 and
B8-22) and a rezoning is required as a condition of consent to zone the new lots to the Rural Residential (RR) Zone
and to zone the retained land in a manner that protects natural heritage features.

FURTHER INFORMATION AND MAP OF LAND SUBJECT TO THE APPLICATION

A key map has been appended that identifies the lands that are subject to this amendment. File materials and maps that
were submitted in conjunction with the consent applications are also available for review by contacting the Township
office.

The purpose of this meeting is to ensure that sufficient information is made available to enable the public to generally
understand the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment. Any person who attends the meeting shall be afforded an
opportunity to make representations in respect of the proposed amendment.

If you wish to be notified of the decision of the Council for the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon in respect
to the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment, you must submit a written request (with forwarding addresses) to the
Clerk of the Township of Melancthon at 157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 fax (519) 925-1110.

If a person or public body files an appeal of a decision of the Council for the Corporation of the Township of
Melancthon, as the approval authority in respect of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment but does not make oral
submissions at a public meeting or make written submissions to Council before the proposed amendment is approved
or refused, the Ontario Land Tribunal may dismiss all or part of the appeal.

Further information regarding the proposed amendment is available to the public for inspection at the Township of
Melancthon Municipal Office on Monday to Friday, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.

Del # S
JUN 16 2022



Mailing Date of this Notice; May 19, 2022

W@‘

Denise B. Holmes, AMCT,
CAO/Clerk
Township of Melancthon

LANDS SUBJECT TO APPLICATION FOR
ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT
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. Muwioipal, Planning Services Ltd. ©

MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor White and Members of Council

Copy: Ms. Denise Holmes, CAO

From: Chris Jones MCIP, RPP

Date: June 13, 2022

Re: Application for ZBA — West Part of Lots 7 & 8, Concession 2 O.S. (Ghotra)
BACKGROUND

The Township is in receipt of an application for a zoning by-law amendment for lands
located in the West Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 O.S. The location of the subject
lands is shown in Figure 1. The lands are the subject of provisional consents which were
approved by the Committee of Adjustment on November 18, 2021 and April 21, 2022
and resulted in the re-creation of 5 building lots.

Figure 1 - Location of Subject Lands

m Subject Lands

As a condition of provisional consent the applicant is required to rezone each of the 5
re-created parcels to the Rural Residential (RR) Zone. In addition the proposed zoning
amendment would also zone a watercourse on the lands to the Open Space
Conservation (OS2} Zone and would zone the retained lands to a General Agricultural
Exception (A1-145) Zone. An illustration of the approved severance is provided in Figure
2.

. Mu.w'wi‘PaL 'Pl,awwiwg Services Ltd. ¢
Barrie, Ontario




Figure 2 - Approved Severances

OFFICIAL PLAN

The lands are subject to a site-specific Official Plan policy (OPA 3), which was approved
by the Ontario Land Tribunal (OLT) on August 17, 2021.

OPA 3 created an exception for lot creation in the Rural designation and was premised
on the fact that the subject land had, for many years, existed as é separate lots that
had inadvertently merged in title.

The policy established by OPA 3 is noted below:

g) Lands described legally as PCLs 7-12 and located in the West Part of Lots 7 and 8,
Concession 2 O.S, as shown on Schedule A-1, attached hereto and forming part of this
Amendment at one time existed as 6 separate lots that were inadvertently merged in fitle.
Notwithstanding subsections a} through f), these lands may be severed by consent info no
more than 6 lots.

The conditions of consent shall include but not be limited to the proponent of any such
consent obtaining a zoning by-law amendment and entering into a consent agreement to
implement applicable recommendations of the Environmental Impact Study that
supported the re-creation of the lots. Subsequent to re-creation of up to 6 lots, the lands
subject to this policy shall not be eligible for any further lot creation.

* Municipal Planning Services Ltd.*
Barrie, Ontario



Furthermore, as part of a complete application for consent to sever, the Nottawasaga
Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) shall be provided with the following technical
information and shall confirm to the Township that such technical information is satisfactory
prior to approval of a provisional consent:

1. If lot creation is fo occur within the NVCA regulated area associated with the adjacent
watercourse, supporting docymentation and calculations shall be provided to
demonstrate that the uncontrolled Regulatory storm event can be safely conveyed
through the site, taking into account any upstream drainage area.

2. A natural heritage constraint map prepared to the satisfaction of the Township and the
NVCA., which confirms that the proposed lot lines do not encroach upon any natural
heritage features or key natural hydrologic features or their associated buffers, or natural
hazards (as applicable) and their access allowances. And furthermore, where the
constraint map confirms the presence of such features, the lots to be severed shall be
designed in such a manner that the feature together with any buffer area shall be fully
located within one lot.

ZONING BY-LAW

The subject lands are zoned General Agricultural (A1). Given that the Al Zone requires
a minimum lot area of 18 hectares, the re-created lots will be zoned fo the Rural
Residential (RR) Zone. In addition, in order to fuffill requirements of the NVCA and
recommendations of the EiS, a water feature will be zoned Open Space Conservation
(OS2). Finally, the retained balance of the parcel will be zoned to a General Agricultural
(A1-145) Zone to limit land use fo residential uses and accessory uses.

ANALYSIS

The proposed amendment conforms with the Township's Official Plan and is required as
a condition of provisional consent.

RECOMMENDATION
lf Council concurs with the findings and analyses of this report | would recommend

approval of the attached zoning by-law amendment.

Respectfully Submitted,

Chris Jones MCIP, RPP

* Municipal Planning Services Ltd.*
Barrie, Ontario




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
BY-LAW NO.
(Ghotra — June 13, 2022)

Being a By-law to amend By-law No. 12-79, as amended, the Zoning By-
law for the Township of Melancthon for lands described legally as Parts 1,
2, 3,4 and 5, Plan 7R-6754 and located in and including remaining lands
in the West Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 O.S. in the Township of
Melancthon, County of Dufferin.

WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon is empowered
to pass By-laws to regulate the use of land pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act,
1990;

AND WHEREAS the owner of the subject lands has requested a zoning by-law
amendment to fulfill a condition of Provisional Consent;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon deem:s it
advisable to amend By-Law 12-79, as amended;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon enacts
as follows:

1. Schedule ‘A’ to Zoning By-law No. 12-79 as amended, is further amended by zoning
lands described legally as Parts 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, Plan 7R-6754 and located in and
including remaining lands in the West Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 O.S. in the
Township of Melancthon, from the General Agricultural (A1) Zone to the General
Agricultural Exception (A1-145) Zone, the Rural Residential (RR) Zone and to the
Open Space Conservation (OS2) Zone, as shown on Schedule A-1 attached hereto,
which forms part of this By-law.

2. And Furthermore, Section 4.7 to Zoning By-law 12-79 as amended, is further
amended by adding the following new sub-section after sub-section 4.7 hhhhhh):

1iifif) Notwithstanding the permitted uses of the AT Zone, on lands located in
the West Part of Lots 7 and 8, Concession 2 O.S,, not including Parts 1 to
5 Plan 7R-6754, and located in the AT-145 Zone, the only permitted use
shall be a residential use together with accessory uses authorized by By-
law 12-79.

3. In all other respects, the provisions of By-law 12-79, as amended shall apply.

This By-law shall come into effect upon the date of passage hereof, subject to the
provisions of Section 34 (30) and (31) of the Planning Act (Ontario).

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME on the day of June, 2022.

READ A THIRD TIME and finally passed this day of June, 2022.

Mayor Clerk



Schedule 'A-1'

By-law 2022-

Part of the West Part of Lots 7 & 8, Concession 2 OS
Township of Melancthon

Conlll 1 = _— - “\ Conll

| BFR

m Lands to be rezoned from the General Agricultural (A1) Zone
to the Open Space Two (0S2) Zone

Lands to be rezoned from the General Agricultural (A1) Zone
z to the Rural Residential (RR) Zone

P> Lands to be rezoned from the General Agricultural (A1) Zone
9% to the General Agricultural Exception (A1-145) Zone

This is Schedule 'A-1' to By-law

Passed this day of

, 2022.

Mayor Clerk
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